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Oxford BioMedica

Oxford BioMedica is a leading biopharmaceutical company in gene
therapy and immunotherapy that designs and develops highly
innovative gene-based medicines for the treatment of age-related or
inherited neurodegenerative disorders, cancer and ocular diseases.
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During 2009, we have strengthened our financial resources and enhanced

the potential of our core LentiVector and 5T4 antigen technologies. Our new
collaboration with sanofi-aventis enables us to advance the development of
four LentiVector-based products to treat ocular diseases.

Highlights

LentiVector®
ProSavin®: Parkinson's disease

« First dose level in Phase I/l trial
showed sustained efficacy at 12
months

+ Enhanced administration has
potential to accelerate development

* Regulatory approval to evaluate
higher dose level

« Ground-breaking preclinical results
published in journal

Financial

Year ended 31 December 2009

LentiVector®
Ocular Gene Therapies

» Landmark partnership with
sanofi-aventis in ophthalmology

- Recerved US$26 million upfront
payment

* Committed funding for three years to
develop four gene therapies

* RetinoStat and StarGen on track to
enter clinical development 1n 2010

* Revenue of £19 1 million {2008 £18 4 million)
* Research & development costs of £18 3 million (2008 £27 0 million)
* Net loss before exceptional items of £3 5 million (2008 £5 5 million)

- Net loss after exceptional items of £3 5 million (2008 £10 0 million)
* Net cash generated' of £3 0 million (2008 net cash burn' of £16 9 million)
« Net cash? of £25 3 million (2008 £21 9 million)

01  Oxford BioMedica ple
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5T4 Tumour Antigen
TroVax®: Cancer

+ Further analysis of Phase lll TRIST
study confirmed subset efficacy

= Recerved US$17 4 millton regarding
termination from sanofi-aventis

« Support from FDA for further tnals in
multiple cancers

* Phase Il tnal in prostate cancer
expected to start in 2010

1 Net cash generated/used in operating activitles plus sales and purchases of non-current assets

2 Cash cash equivalents and current fimancial assets
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Oxford BioMedica
Company Overview

Gene therapy and immunotherapy have enormous potential to benefit
the lives of patients. Oxford BioMedica is one of the leading companies in
this field with a platform of exclusive and innovative technologies to
design and develop unique gene-based medicines.

Through in-house and collaborative development, we have established a
broad pipeline of gene-based medicines. Our in-house capabilities span
research, clinical development, regulatory affairs and manufacturing.

At the end of 2009, our staff numbered 65, mainly based in our
laboratories and offices in Oxford. We also have a wholly owned
subsidiary, BioMedica Inc, based in San Diego, USA.

Our two lead programmes are a gene therapy for Parkinson’s disease
(ProSavin) in Phase I/ll development and a therapeutic cancer vaccine
(TroVax) in Phase Il development. Through our collaboration with
sanofi-aventis, two of the four gene therapies for ocular diseases are
expected to enter clinical developmentin 2010.

In addition to sanofi-aventis, our partners include Pfizer, Sigma-Aldrich
and charitable organisations such as the Foundation Fighting Blindness,
the ALS Therapy Development Institute and the Motor Neurone Disease
Association. Our proprietary LentiVector technology is used extensively
in drug discovery and has been licensed by leading pharmaceutical
companies, including Biogen Idec, GlaxoSmithKline, Merck & Co and
Pfizer for their own research activities.

We maintain the highest standards of integrity in our dealings with

all parties, including shareholders, employees, patients, healthcare
professionals, partners, and licensees. Through scientific, commercial and
operational excellence, we aim to maximise returns for shareholders.

Oxford BloMedica plc
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Our novel gene-based medicines have the potential to transform
treatment prospects, thus improving the quality and duration of
life for patients with debilitating and life threatening diseases.

Product Pipeline

Platform Product
Partner/Funding

ProSavin®

RetinoStat?
sanofi-aventis

StarGen™
sanofi-aventis
LentiVector®

UshStat™
sanofi-aventis

EncorStat®
sanofi-aventis

MoNuDin®
ALSTDI

TroVax®
5T4 Tumour

Antigen
Anti-ST4 antibody

Pfizer
Prime Boost Hi-8® MEL

GDEPT? MetXia®

Anti EndoAnglo-GT
Angicgenesis

Indication

Parkinson's disease

Wet age-related macular degeneration

Stargardt disease

Usher syndrome

Corneal graft rejection

Motor neuron disease

Prostate cancer

Cancer

Melanoma

Pancreatic cancer

Cancer

1 Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis Therapy Development Institute 2 Gene-directed enzyme prodrug therapy

Oxford 8laMedica plc
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Stage of Development

Phase I/l trial ongoing
IND preparation

CTA preparation
Preclinucal

Prechinical

Research

Phase |l trial preparation

Prechinical

Phase ila trial completed

Phase lla tnal completed

Research
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Chief Executive’s Viewpoint
Strategy and Objectives

John Dawson, Chief Executive Officer of
Oxford BioMedica, sets out the three
inter-related themes of the Company’s core
strategy. He reflects on the progress made
and actions taken during 2009 and describes
the Company’s strategic priorities and goals.

1.Risk Management

Our gene-based treatments have the potential to change
the face of healthcare, but realising the value of innovation
wrthin the field of biotechnology comes with inherent nisk
Our strategy Is to mitigate both technical and financial

risk through partnerships that bring the chinical and
commercialisation capabilities required to maximise the
market potential of our products

The structure of our ophthalmic collaboration with
sanofi-aventis llustrates our approach to risk management
With funding from sanofi-aventis, we are able to drive the
development of our four gene therapy candidates for ocular
diseases and as these products move closer to market

we will benefit from the development and commercial
expertise of our partner The broad scope of our partnership
mitigates our risk and leverages our technology platform

We are pursuing multiple partnering imitiatives in 2010 with
a pnmary focus on TroVax and ProSavin We are seeking
collaborations for both products as we plan the next stages
of their development With patience and tenaanty,! believe
that we can secure the nght deal with the nght partner to
take these programmes forward We are also seeking
partners for our other chinical programmes, H1-8 MEL

and MetXia

o4 Oxford BioMedica plc
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“Our strategy is to retain maximum value from

the commercialisation of our technology
platform by working with academic and
industry partners to manage internal risk
and resources; and also to explore new

opportunities for sustainable value creation.”

2.Resource Allocation

We operate a business model that combines in-house

and collaborative Research and Development (R&D)

Our development prniorities and in-house R&D investment
are a trade-off between benefit, nsk and budget constraints
Naturally, our strategy 1s to optimise our iInvestment in R&D
to get the maximum return However, as we are constrained
by a hmited budget, we have iImplemented a ngorous
project evaluation process and have set clearly defined
targets for go/no-go decisions

In 2009, our R&D activities were focused on TroVax,
ProSavin and the funded ocular programmes We also
maintained important iInvestment in our LentiVector
platform and we continue to work with varnous academic
groups and charntable organisations as a cost-effective
means of advancing some early-stage opportunities By
expanding our use of external clinical and regulatory
experts and engaging more scientific advisors, our project
teams have access to medical opinion leaders and
experienced industry professionals

For our in-house prionty programmes, we have set a budget
to achieve specific value creation development milestones
within our current financial resources These include
completion of the ongoing Phase /Il tnial of ProSavin and
conducting cost-effective Phase |l studies of TroVax with
support from clinicians or trial networks We believe that
further investment 1n these two programmes is the most
effective use of our resources as we seek to create value,
secure partnerships and accelerate our path to profitability

05 Oxford BioMedica plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2009

3.Timely Delivery |

The history of biological drug development 1s beset with :
challenges that have extended the time to market for many

of today’s most commercially successful drugs Consistent

with other biotech companies in the sector, forecasting

development umelines 1s particularly exacting for products,

such as ours, which are based on ground-breaking sclence

that offer new treatment approaches

As a leader in the field of gene therapy, we are working In

partnership with regulatory agencies to define de novo

development paths for our LentiVector-based product

candidates We are committed to provide guidance on |
timelines that 1s based on realistic assumptions and
transparency with regards to the regulatory uncertainties

We continuously review the efficiency of our in-house
R&D efforts to ensure that roles and responsibilittes are
aligned with the Company's strategic priorities In 2009,
we implemented several organisational changes that are
designed to enhance our productivity and the timely
delivery of our in-house development goals
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Business Development
ProSavin®; Parkinson’s Disease

LentiVector®

ProSavin®: Parkinson’s Disease

ProSavin has the potential to address an unmet medical need in
Parkinson's disease, offering long-lasting benefit from a single
administration with an excellent safety profile.The product could
also reduce the social care burden that is associated with mid to
late-stage disease.

Daopamine replacement Market opportunity
ProSavin Is a gene-based dopamine replacement strategy ~ Parkinson's disease affects approximately 4 1 milion
Using the LentiVector system to deliver three genes people worldwide and the prevalence Is nsing owing to

required for the synthesis of dopamine, ProSavin createsa  demegraphic changes None of the current treatments
new source of dopamine production in the striatum of the  provide long-term relief from symptoms, yet, by 2012,
brain By boosting continuous dopamine release, ProSavin  sales could exceed US54 6 billion in the major developed
aims to restore patients’ motor function without the countries (source Lead Discovery)

side-effect associated with oral dopamine therapies

Development progress

A Phase I/l tnal in patients with mid-stage Parkinson's
disease I1s advancing to a third cohort of patents The first
two dose levels were safe and well tolerated in all patients
and showed encouraging evidence of efficacy One year
after treatment, patients at the lowest dose lavel
demonstrated an average Improvement in motor function
of 28% and an average enhancement in quality of hfe

of 42%

more on

page 18

08 Onford BloMedica pk
Annual Report & Accounts 2009




Introduction | Chalman's Statement | Business Review | Corparate Information Flnandclal Statements
EEEss—— !

| Business Developmant | H |
ProSavin Parkinsons Disease

PARKINSON'S
DISEASE
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Business Development
Ocular Gene Therapies

LentiVector®

Ocular Gene Therapies

In collaboration with sanofi-aventis, we are advancing four
LentiVector-based product candidates into clinical trials for the
treatment of ocular diseases: These gene-based approaches have
unique potential to benefit patients and families affected by these

debilitating ocular diseases.

Landmark collaboration

The collaboration, signed in April 2009, was a landmark
for Oxford BicMedica and also for the field gena therapy
The potential commercial value of this gene-therapy
partnership 1s arquably unprecedented in both value and
field of application 1ts broad scope 1s testament to the
quality and utility of our LentlVector gene delivery system
Furthermore, sanofi-aventis’investment in the LentiVector
platform benefits cur development programmes in other
therapeutic areas

Development on track

The first two gene therapy candidates are expected to
enter chinical development in 2010 Our lead programme,
RetinoStat for wet age-related macular degeneration, 1s
designed to block aberrant bloed vessel growth by
delivering two anti-anglogenic genes The second
candidate, StarGen for Stargardt disease, delivers a
corrected version of a defective gene associated with this
inherited disease

08 Oxford BloMedica plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2009

Market opportunity

RetinoStat®. wet age-related macular degeneration
AMD affects an estimated 25 to 30 mullion people inthe
Western world and the wet form accounts for 90% of all
severe wision loss from the disease

StarGen™: Stargardt disease

Stargardt disease 1s the most commeon juvenile
degenerative retinal disease with a US and EU prevalence
of approximately 50,000 patients

UshStat™. Usher syndrome 1B

Usher syndrome is the most common form of deaf-
blindness and affects around 70,000 people in the USA
and EU An estimated &,000 have the 1B subtype

EncorStat® corneal graft rejection

Corneal graft rejection 1s a significant Issue for many of
the estimated 60,000 corneal transplant performed in
the USA and EU each year page 20

more on
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TroVax®:; Cancer

5T4 Tumour Antigen

TroVax®: Cancer

TroVax is a novel therapeutic cancer vaccine that has the potential to offer
a safe and effective treatment option by stimulating a cancer-specific
immune response. It has the potential to prevent metastatic spread,
which has proved challenging with traditional cancer treatment.

Unique anti-cancer target

TroVax targets a tumour antigen called 5T4 The 5T4
tumaour antigen 15 a umgue protain, which 1s highly
prevalent on both primary and also metastatic cancerous
cells, but 1s only minimally evident on normal tissues

The fact that 5T4 1s found on most common types of sohd
cancer makes it a potentially valuable target for targeted
anti-cancer interventions

Patient selection

The effectiveness of cancer vaccines depends on a
patient’s ability to mount the requisite immune response
The recent Phase lII TRIST study in renal cancer showed
that patients' blood cell counts affected the magnitude of
their 5T4-specific Inmune response and, hence, their
TroVax-related survival Selecting patients on this basis
may identify those more likely to benefit from treatment

10  Oxford BioMedica plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2005

Planning new trials

As previously reported, the TRIST study did not achieve

its primary endpoint However, there 1s wide support from
the oncology community for conducting further tnals of
TroVax A Phase [l tnial in prostate cancer 1s expected to
start in 2010 In addibion, the Company 1s working with
chimcal tnal networks to explore opportunities in other
cancer settings, Including ovanan cancer and breast cancer

Market opportunity

The global cancer market Is expected to generate sales in
excess of US$60 bilhon by 2010 Therapeutic cancer
vaccines have proved to be an elusive goal for the
industry, although recent development successes have
boosted confidence in the field Vacane strategies that
are spealfic to tumour-associated antigens, such as 5T4,
are among the most promising approaches

maore on

page 22
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“2009 was a good year for Oxford BioMedica in what has
been a difficult period for emerging biopharmaceutical
companies globally. Notable achievements included
our landmark collaboration in gene therapy with
sanofi-aventis and new value-enhancing data for TroVax
and ProSavin.| am pleased to report that we entered
2010 with a stronger cash’ balance than last year and
a number of exciting opportunities ahead of us.”

1 Cash cash equivalents and short-term financial iInvestments

Professor Alan Kingsman, Chalrman

Gene therapy and immunotherapy have enormous
potential to benefit the lives of patients. Oxford BioMedica
continues to be one of the leading companies in this field
and has established a valuable pipeline of development
candidates addressing diseases that are untreatable

or poorly treated today. Our strategy aims to realise

the potential of our innovation through in-house and
collaborative development. We have set challenging
targets, and the management team, under the leadership
of John Dawson as Chief Executive Officer, has been

working tirelessly and effectively in pursuit of these goals.




Introduction

|

13 Oxford BioMedica plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2009

Chalrmans Statement
I

Business Review { Corporate Information

Landmark collaboration

Our new collaboration with sanofi-aventis in
ophthalmology was a landmark agreement

for Oxford BioMedica and also for the field of
gene therapy The potential commercial value

of this gene therapy partnership is arguably
unprecedented in both value and field of
application its broad scope Is testament to the
quatity and uulity of our LentiVector gene delivery
system Besldes being an endorsement of our
technology, the commitment of sancfi-aventis
to fund four preclinical programmes through
Phase I/l tnals 1s a good example of the
implementation of our nsk management strategy

Building value

Qur two lead programmes, TroVax and ProSavin,
were strengthened during 2009 To put this
into context, firstly, further analysis of the TRIST
study of TroVax has shown clear ¢linical benefit
in a substantial subset of patients Secondly,
12-month data from the Phase I/l study of
PraSavin have confirmed the product’s
long-term chinical activity and, therefore,1ts
substanttal potential to benefit patients with
Parkinson's disease Furthermore, both
programmes have clear development paths
following the outcome of regulatory reviews

This progress was in the context of sanofi-aventis’
decisian not to progress their therapeutic
cancer vaccine programmes, which were corner-
stoned by TroVax, following their portfolio
review In addition, our successful proposal to
introduce additional dose levels and a refined
delivery procedure within the ProSavin clinical
study required protracted discussions with the
French regulatory agency, but is expected to
accelerate chinical progress in the later phases of
clinical development and thus accelerate time
to market It would therefore be fair to say that
these programmes are far stronger today than
they were a year ago

Financial Statements Appendix

Strategy commitment

In the 2008 Annual Report, we outlined a new
strategy to achieve sustamnable profitability
hawing implemented decisive cost reduction
measures durlng the second half of 2008 We
remain committed to this strategy and we are
pursuing several partnerships as well as
evaluating other opportunities to build the
Company

Board changes

Two new Non-Executive Directors, Paul Blake
and Andrew Heath, were appointed to the
Board at the start of 2010 Both Paul and
Andrew are industry veterans with extensive
experience in buillding successful
biopharmaceutical companles internationally
Mark Berninger retired from the Board having
served as a Non-Executive Director for more
than ten years | would like to record my sincere
thanks to Mark for his dedicated service to the
Company and to welcome Paul and Andrew to [
the Board

In conclusion

Qur progress during 2009 was only made
possible by the talent and hard work of our staff
I would like to thank all of our employees, our
partners and our shareholders for their support
With a strong platform and robust strateqgy, we
are well posltioned to build on the achievements
of 2009 and | believe that our management
team has the experlence and capability to
deliver real value over the coming year

Prof
Chair

n Kingsman
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The Team

Taking us forward

The executive team at Oxford BioMedica understands the

importance of sound management - the right people with the right
skills in the right place.The team is highly motivated and comprises
individuals with relevant expertise and experience, committed to

the successful future of the Company.

JOHN DAWSON

Chief Executive Officer

John Dawson joined Oxford BioMedica’s Board
as Non-Executive Director in August 2008 and
was appointed Chief Executive Officer on

13 October 2008 From 1996 to 2007 he held
senior management positlons in the European
operations of Cephalon Inc ,where he led the
many deals that built the European business
from having no sales in 1998 to a turnover of
several hundred millien US dollars

ANDREWWOOD

Chief Financial Officer

Andrew Wood has been a Director of Oxford
BioMedica since 1996 He 1s a Chartered
Accountant with wide industry experience He
also holds a first class degree in biochemistry
from Oxford University Before Joining Oxford
BioMedica he was finance dlrector at the
Yorkshire Cable Group (part of General Cable)

14 Oxford BioMedica plc
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STUART NAYLOR

Chief Saentific Officer

Dr Stuart Naylor joined Oxford BioMedica
in 1997 and was appointed to the board in
July 2008 He established an international

reputation at two world class cancer institutes,

the Impenal Cancer Research Fund and the
Institute of Cancer Research

PETER NOLAN

Executive Director and Senior Vice
President, Commercial Development

Peter Nolan was appointed to Oxford
BioMedica's board in May 2002, having been a
senlor member of the Company since its
foundation He is also a Director of the UK
Biolndustry Association and is a past chairman
of the Oxfordshire Bioscience Network Prior to
Joining Oxford BioMedica, he served as head of
the Biotechnelogy Unit at the UK Department
of Trade & Industry for eight years

NICK WOOLF

Chief Business Officer

Nick Woolf was appointed to the board of
Oxford BioMedica in March 2005 and was
appointed Chief Business Officer in July 2008
Nick joined Oxford BioMedica in 2002 from
ABN AMRO, where he was a Director and
Head of European Biotechnology Research

Directors

page 34
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Left to right Peter Nolan,
Andrew Wood,
Nick Woeolf,
John Dawson,
Stuart Naylor
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“We made significant progress during the year in
both our development and our commercial activities.
We enhanced the value of our lead programmes, secured
a major collaboration, and made headway towards our
key strategic objectives. Looking back over my first full
year as Chief Executive Officer,| am pleased to reflect
on our achievements and | look forward to building on
these going forward.”

John Dawsan, Chief Executive Officer

The new data and analyses in 2009 from the ProSavin
and TroVax programmes have boosted our expectations.
We now have regulatory guidance and support to initiate
the next development steps for both programmes.
Furthermore, our ground-breaking collaboration

with sanofi-aventis in ophthalmology enables us to
leverage our LentiVector technology and accelerate the
development of our four product candidates addressing
debilitating causes of vision loss.
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Development progress

The Phase i/ll study of ProSavin in Parkinson’s
disease continues to yield promising data

We are exclted by the potential for further
enhancement in 2010 by incorporating the
new administration procedure and escalating
the dose For TroVax, we have gained valuable
insights for optimising the design of further
trials from our analyses of the Phase I TRIST
study in renal cancer,and we are prepanng to
start new studies in 2010 In partnershup with
sanofi-aventis, we are on track with the
development plans for our four ocular
programmes and we are completing non-chnical
activities to support applications for chinical tnals

Partnering progress

Our ocular collaboration with sanofi-aventis,
signed in Apnl 2009, was an important value
driver during the year The deal included an
upfront receipt of U5$26 mullion (£17 milhion)
and committed funding over three years
Separately, following a re-priontisation and
change of focus by sanofi-aventis, we regained
worldwide nghts to TroVax, and subsequently
implemented a new iniiative to partner the
product Our other key partnering prionty is
ProSavin, and discussions are progressing with
several key players in the field of Parkinson's
disease Furthermore, we are exploring other
opportunities to maximise the value of our
pipeline and to leverage our extensive intellectual
praperty portfolio through strategic deals

Finanaal management

We were cash generative in 2009, increasing
cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments by £3 million, and ended the year
with a balance of £25 million As a result of our
decisive steps to focus resources and reduce
underlying operating cash burn, we can support
our operations through to the beginning of 2012
We recognise the importance of maintaining
our financial flexibiity and we are allocating
resources to achieve key milestones withun our
current cash runway

Financial Statements ; Appendn:

Outlook

The next 12 months could be transformational
for Oxford BioMedica We have clear targets for
our in-house and collaborative development
programmes By the end of 2010, we aim to
reach the optimal dose of ProSavin for
evaluation in randomised trials and to have a
partnership in place for the next stage of
development We are also targeting new Phase
Il trials of TroVax in prostate cancer and other
metastalic cancers as part of a strategic process
of adding value and attracting a partner
Furthermore, with two of our ocular products,
RetinoStat and StarGen, earmarked for chinical
development in 2010, the pipeline will be
significantly strengthened by the end of the
year We are committed to doing the right
transactions with the rnght partners for our lead
programmes and to bringing these deals to
frurtion at the earliest opportunity We are also
considering other corporate activity to add new
growth drivers and to expand our capabilitles
The successful and timely execution of these
goals will further enhance the value of our
business and accelerate sustainable profitability

John Daw
hief §xecutive Officer
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Operational Review
LentiVector®

Our LentiVector technology is a highly efficient
system for the delivery of therapeutic genes to a
wide range of tissues, and it has specific advantages
for targeting diseases of the central nervous system
and the eye. Our most advanced LentiVector product
candidate is ProSavin for Parkinson’s disease.In
partnership with sanofi-aventis, we are applying our
LentiVector technology to develop treatments for
ocular diseases and we are working with leading
scientific teams to address other unmet needs, such
as in the treatment of motor neuron disease.

ProSavin®

Highlights

* First dose level in Phase I/l tnal showed
sustained efficacy at 12 months

+ Enhanced administration has potential to
accelerate development

- Regulatory approval to evaluate higher
dose level

+ Ground-breaking preclinical results
published 1n Journal

Oxford BioMedica plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2009

PROSAVIN®: Parkinson’s disease
-]
ProSavin is being evaluated in a Phase I/} trial in
patlents with mid-stage Parkinson’s disease who
are experiencing reduced benefit on L-DOPA
‘equivalent’ therapy The first stage of the study
15 an open-label dose escalation of ProSavinin
cohorts of three patients Two dose levels have
been evaluated to date The Principal Investigator
15 Professor Stéphane Palfi and the trial is being
conducted at the Henn Mondor Hospital in
Panis,which 15 a European centre of excellence
for neurosurgery

Potential long-term efficacy

The first two dose levels were safe and well
tolerated in all patients and showed encouraging
evidence of efficacy One year after treatment,
patients at the lowest dose level demonstrated
an average improvement in motor function of
28% and a maximum of 44% The average
Increase in patients’ quality of ife was 42%
based on a standard measure of benefit thats
recorded by the patient In October 2009, we
reported that patients at the second dose level
had completed their six-month assessments of
motor function and achieved an average
improvement of 34% and a maximum of 53%

If these results are confirmed in placebo-
controfled studies, ProSavin would reprasent

a significant advancement to current treatment
options, given its potential to enhance quality of
Iife and to suppress the complications caused
by oral L-DOPA therapy However, as the chnical
programme goes forward it 1s concervable that
hugher levels of efflcacy may be achleved

Clear path forward

In the second half of 2009, we made a
submission to the French regulatory agency
{AFSSAPS) to amend the trial design to
incorporate our improved administration
procedure and to increase the dose level The
new adrministration procedure reduces surgery
ume, which should increase the throughput of
patients at chinical sites Furthermore, preclinical
studies suggest that it provides a broader
distribution of PraSavin throughout the
striatum of the brain and potentially higher
efficacy per dose relative to the current
administration technigue

In aur constructive dialogue with AFSSAPS,

we concluded that it was important to evaluate
the relative efficacy of the new procedure prior
to dose escalation In March 2010, AFSSAPS
provided 1ts verbal approval to continue the
study The next cohort of patients will be treated
using the new technique at the second dose
level to inform our assumptions or possibly
negate the need for a third dose level Patient
treatment 15 expacted to start in May 2010
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Ground-breaking publication

Our ground-breaking prechinical results were
published In the 14 October 2009 1ssue of Science
Translational Medicine, a leading scientific journal
The paper described several proof-of-concept studies
in the industry-standard preclinical model of severe
Parkinson’s disease In this model, ProSavin significantly
increased dopamine production without the addition
and side-effects of standard L-DOPA therapy and
suggested for the first time that ProSavin may
ameliorate dyskinesia The publication has attracted
substantial interest from the medical community and
has bolstered our partnering discussions

Transforming patients’lives

Professor Stéphane Palfi stated that ProSavin showed
profound and prolonged efficacy in preclinical
models of late-stage Parkinson’s disease. ProSavin
potentially offers significant advantages to the
current alternatives of Deep Brain Stimulation or
mechanical delivery of continuous dopamine.
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Accelerating development

The inclusion of the enhanced administration
procedure in the Phase I/l trial has prolonged
our advancement into randomised trials, but

15 expected to reduce the overall clinical
development timeline for the programme

To accelerate the completion of the current tnial,
we are planning to open a second clinical site in
the UK and the regulatory process to achieve
this 15 well underway In parallel, we are seeking
guidance from the European Medicaines Agency
(EMA) and the US Food and Drug Administration
{FDA} regarding our development plan that aims
to achieve registration in both ternitories

Manufactunng development has accelerated
to optimise the production process of ProSavin
for larger studies and for commeraal supply
We have designed stable producer cell hnes as
a basis for a readily scalable process These
improvements could significantly reduce the
costs per dose and the regulatory nsk
associated with manufacturing

Partnering progress

As we advance to larger trials, we are negotiating
with prospective partners who could add value
through their expertise in Parkinson's disease
and could bring additional resources for the
next stage of development Our collaboration
strategy is to license out certain terntoral nghts
to retasn others in order that we may establish our
own specialist sales forca for commercialisation
of ProSavin Our objective 1s to complete the
Phase I/l study and advance Into larger studies
with a partner at the earliest opportunity

Next milestones

The patfents in the first and second cohorts
continue to be assessed and we aim to report 24-
month and 12-month respective motor function
scores in June 2010 Following regulatory clearance
to incorporate the enhanced administration
procedure, we are recruiting patients for the
third cohort and anticipate first treatment In
May 2010 Based on our revised timelines, we
could start the third, and theoretically optimal,
dose level in the fourth quarter of 2010

Market opportunity

Parkinson's disease affects approximately 4 1
million people worldwide and the prevalence 1s
nsing owing to demographic changes None of
the current treatments provide long-term relief
from symptoms, yet, by 2012, sales of these
treatments could exceed U5%4 6 billion in the
major developed countnies {source Lead
Discovery} ProSavin has the potential to
address an unmet madical need in Parkinson’s
disease, offering long-lasting benefit from a
single admmistration with an excellent safety
profile The product could also reduce the social
care burden that 1s associated with the mid to
late-stage of disease
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OCULAR GENE THERAPIES

In collaboration with sanofi-aventis, we are
advancing four preclinical LentiVector-based
product candidates into clirucal trials for the
treatment of ocular diseases RetinoStat for wet
age-related macular degeneration, StarGen for
Stargardt disease, UshStat for Usher syndrome
1B and EncorStat for corneal graft rejection
This landmark collaboration is a significant
milestone for the Company and an
endorsement of our LentiVector technology
Furthermore, sanofi-aventis’ investment in the
LentVector platform benefits our development
programmes i other therapeutic areas

2¢  Oxford BioMedica pic
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Financial support

The collaboration, signed in April 2009,
included an upfrant receipt of US$26 million
(£17 million) and up to a further U524 million
in development funding over three years

This committed funding 1s based on a joint
development plan that 1s designed to progress
all four candidates into the chinicin 2010-11

If successful, Oxford BioMedica wili receive
further undisclosed license fees, milestone
payments and royalties on product sales, the
terms of which are consistent with other deals
of this scope and slze

Development on track

RetinoStat fs the most advanced chinlcal
candidate In 2009, we reached agreement with
the FDA on the requirements for RetinoStat’s
Investigational New Drug (IND) application
We are on track to complete the non-clinical
package and submit the IND application for
RetinoStatin the third quarter of 2010 We aim
to conduct the Phase I/l tnal at the Wilmer Eye
Institute at Johns Hopkins in Balttmore, USA,In
partnership with a renowned expert \n ocular
gene therapy Our second candidate, StarGen,
1s also expected to enter clinical development
before the end of 2010 We are working with

a prospective Principal Investigator based i
Paris,who is a leading clinician in Stargardt
disease, and we plan to submit a Chinlcal Tnal
Application for StarGen to AFSSAPS in the
saecond half of 2010

Orphan drug designation

StarGen and UshStat received orphan
designation from the Committee for Orphan
Medicinal Products of the European Medicines
Agency (EMA) for Stargardt disease and retinitis
prgmentosa ansing as a result of Usher syndrome
1B respectively Both of these hereditary
disorders are caused by abnormalities in
specific disease-related genes and can lead to
vision loss from an early age The EMA grants
orphan drug designation to products that

may provide a significant advantage in the
treatment of chronically debilitating conditions
affecting up to five in 10,000 people in the
European Union With orphan drug designation,
StarGen and UshStat will benefit from
development, regulatory and commercial
advantages, Including reduced regulatory fees
and ten years of marketing exclusivity We are
seeking a stmilar designation in the USA

Market opportunity

Qur lead candidate, RetingStat, 15 addressing a
major cause of biindness Age-related macular
degeneration (AMD} affects an estimated 25 to
30 million people in the Western world and the
wet form accounts for 90% of all severe vision
loss from the disease RetinoStat Is designed to
require tess frequent injections into the eye
than current therapies for wet AMD, a major
marketing advantage for this disease Our three
other preduct candidates are alsc addressing
important unmet needs in ophthalmolegy
There are currently no existing treatments for
Stargardt disease, Usher syndrome and corneal
graft rejection Our gene-based approaches
have unique potential to benefit patients and
famulies affected by these debilitating ocular
diseases

Ocular Gene Therapies

Highlights

+ Landmark partnership with
sanofi-avents in ophthalmology

* Recewved US526 million upfront payment

+ Committed funding for three years to
develop four gene therapies

+ RetinoStat and StarGen on track to enter
clinical development 1n 2010
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Leveraging in-house expertise

Given our expertise and know-how In developing gene
therapies, we have primary responsibility for advancing
the four ocular programmes through Phase I/l tnals and
the assodiated costs will be reimbursed by our partner
Sanofi-aventis then has the option to assume responsibility
for further development and commerciabsation of these
products We have estabhished an expenenced in-house
team to drive the programmes forward Furthermore,
there 1s considerable scope to expand the collaboration
with the addition of other tndications and related product
candidates For example, RetinoStat could be evaluated as
a treatment for diabetic macular cedema

Gene therapy advantages

The current leading treatment for wet age-related
macular degeneration requires repeated injections
directly into the eye. RetinoStat could require only
a single or infrequent administration, and could
also provide a safer and more efficient means of
inhibiting angiogenesis.
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MONUDIN®: motor neuron disease
|
The praclinical development of MoNuDinis
supported by the UK Motor Neurone Disease
Association, the US ALS Therapy Development
Institute and the US Muscultar Dystrophy
Association MoNuDin has shown promising
results In early preclinical studies and we are
optimising the product for clinical trials

Our LentiVector technology has the ability to
deliver genes safely and efficiently to the
neuronal cells affected by motor neuron
disease We are working with UK and US non-
profit orgamisations to accelerate MoNuDin's
development and to explore new disease-
specific pathways as potential targets for
genetic intervention

Extended collaboration I
In 2009, we successfully completed the first
phase of our research collaboration with the
US non-profit organisation, the ALS Therapy
Development Institute (ALS TDI) The |
collaboration Is funded by the US Muscular

Dystrophy Assoclation and prowvides access to

the ALS TDJ's extensive gene expression I
database and drug screening capabilities for |
maoter neuron disease The first phase of the

collaboration included the development of

new techniques to evaluate and 1dentify gene ‘
therapy candidates at the ALSTDI's US research

faciity in Cambndge, MA

We announced the extension of this
collaboration with the ALS TDi in January 2010
In the second phase, the ALS TDl 1s conducting
further preclinical efficacy studies of MoNuDin
in established maodels of motor neuron disease
Furthermore, the joint teams are exploring
other LentiVector-based approaches to mhibit
or regulate specific genetic pathways associated
with disease onset or progression

Market opportunity

Despite being one of the most commaon
neurodegenerative diseases of adult onset,
motor neuron disease has a igh unmet need I
Amyotrophic lateral sclerosis (ALS), often

referred to as Lou Gehnig's disease, 1s the most

prevalent type of motor nauron disease Inthe

USA, there are an estmated 30,000 patients

with ALS and nearly 6,000 new cases are

diagnosed annually (source ALS Association)

Only one drug Is approved for the treatment of

ALS, and its only benefit Is a modest increase in

survival tme If MoNuDin proves to be an

effective neuroprotective treatment that can

slow or arrest Injury to patients’ motor neurens,

it would have compelling competitive

advantages
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The 5T4 antigen is an ideal target for anti-cancer
treatment given its restricted expression on
normal tissues and its high prevalence on the
surface of cancerous cells. Qur 5T4-specific
therapeutic vaccine candidate, TroVax, is in

Phase Il development and, in collaboration with
Pfizer, our 5T4-targeted antibody therapy is
expected to enter the clinicin 2011. Another
therapeutic approach, using bi-specific antibodies,
is also the subject of collaboration discussions.

TroVax®
Highlights

= Further analysis of Phase Il TRIST study
confirmed subset efficacy

» Received US517 4 milhion regarding
termination from sanofi-aventis

« Support from FDA for further trials in
multiple cancers

* Phase Il trial in prostate cancer expected to
startin 2010

Oxford BioMedica plc
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TROVAX®: cancer
e
The follow-up anatysis of the Phase Il TRIST study
of TroVax in renal cancer has yielded valuable
insights into the efflcacy of TroVax and the
selectlon of patients who are more likely to
benefit from treatment We are working with
chinical centres and networks to start new cost-
effactive Phase |l tnals and have implemented

a new partnernng initlative, having regained
worldwide rights from sanofi-aventls With
support from the FDA, we are targeting several
cancer settings for further development, including
prostate, ovanian, colorectal and breast cancer

Valuable msights from TRIST

Detaited results from the TRIST study were
presented at the joint congress of the European
Cancer Organisation and the European Society for
Medical Oncology in September 2009 As previously
reported,the TRIST study did not achieve its pnmary
endpoint of an improvemnent in survival However,
the results confirmed the findings from previous
trials, demonstrating that the anti-5T4 immune
response iInduced by TroVax s assoctated with
enhanced survival Encouragingly, In one of the
pre-defined patient subsets, Trovax showed
statistically sigrificant survival benefit comparable
to market leading treatment for renal cancer

FDA guidance

In July 2009, we receved final comments from
the FDA, following its review of the TRIST data,
in which the agency acknowledged all of the
points raised by our analysis The competitive
landscape for the treatment of renal cancer 1s
considerably more crowded today than when the
TRIST study was initiated Hence, we presented to
the FDA several alternative settings for future
cinicat tnals of TroVax These included ovanan
cancer, hormone-refractory prostate cancer and
tnple-negative breast cancer, which have clear
unmet needs and a lack of effective treatments
The agency was supportive of pursuing trials in
these proposed indications and provided a clear
path for further development of TroVax

Planning new trials

In future tnals, the ability to select patients who
are more hkely to mount stronger anti-5T4
immune responses and benefit from TroVax
could increase the predictability of clinical
outcome and the likelihood of successful
development There is wide support from
chinicians for conducting further trials in our
targeted settings and we are exploring funding
options through clinical networks Ouraimis to
initiate at least one new Phase Il trial in 2010,
the first of which will be in prostate cancer We
expect that some of the proposed studies will
be partially funded, reducing Oxford BioMedica's
mvestment Through these studies, we are
seeking to demonstrate proof-of-concept in our i
targeted cancer settings at the earliest opportunity
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TRIST insights Partnering initiative

Explcratory analyses of the TRIST data The repriontisation of sanofi-aventis’ portfolio
identified a relationship between pattents’ in April 2009 resulted in our regalning the
bload cell counts and TroVax-related survival worldwide rights to TroVax As part of this
benefit TroVax was less beneficial in patients agreement, we received an immediate payment
with aberrant levels of certam blood cells at of US$16 5 mullion from sanofi-aventis, which

the start of the study Excluding these patients,  Included an amount for reimbursement of
there was a promising survival trend in favour  Certain previously committed development

of TroVax versus placebo and the indicative casts Following the outcome of the FDA'
efficacy was consistent with the study’s review and our follow-up analysis of TRIST, we
primary endpoint embarked on an intiative to re-partner TroVax

Partnenng TroVax for Phase (Il development
remains a key strategic priority for Oxford

BioMedica, and discussions are underway
-~ " ]

Market opportunity
L. . The global cancer market Is expected to
Clinical opportunities generate sales in excess of US$60 billion in 2010
o] The market for therapeutic cancer vaceines,
The FDA su ppOI‘tEd our Proposal to pu I'Sl..le clinical although minimal at present, has the potential
development of TroVax in other metastatic cancers, to mirror the growth seen in the monaclonal
notably colorectal, ovarian, hormone-refractory fj';g‘;‘:)dﬂf magke;o 31“2"( reach SaR'es In excess of
. . Hion by source hesearch an

prOState a nd. trlple'nEQatlve breast cancer.The Markets) With the potential to benefit pavents
agency provided a clear path for further development  with some of the most common cancers, TroVax
in these setti ngs could capture a significant share of the market

We believe that, unlike renal cancer, abnormal
haematology is less evident in patients with
most other types of solid tumours Hence, we
believe the exclusion of such patients from
future trials has only a modest impact on the
market opportunity for TroVax

Cross-license agreement

in January 2010, we reached a settlement and
cross-hcense agreement with Bavarian Nordic to
resolve patent litigation by Bavarian Nordic in
the USA and our opposition to Bavarlan Nordic's
European MVA-BN® patents Under the
agreement, Bavarian Nordic granted Oxford
BioMed:ca a license to its patents in return for
being granted a license to our heterologous
prime-boost patents and a sub-hicense to
poxvirus patents that we licensed from
sanofi-aventis All pending itigation has ceased
and we are exploning possible collaboration
opporturnities with Bavanan Nordic te leverage
both companies’ expertise in poxvirus vaccines
Oxford BioMedica and Bavarian Nordic are
entitled to undisclosed milestone and royzlty
payments on commercialisation of the other’s
respective product

23 Oxford BioMedica plc
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TARGETED ANTIBODY THERAPY: cancer

We licensed global nghts to develop antibodies
targeting the 5T4 tumour antigen for the
treatment of cancer to Wyeth in 2001 The
agreement Is potentially worth US$24 million
plus royalties on product sales, and the next
milestone payment is triggered by the start of
chnical trnials Following Pfizer's acquisition of
Wyeth in 2009 and subsequent portfolio review,
Pfizer has indicated its continuing commitment
to the collaboration

Market opportunity

The concept of an anti-cancer therapy, which
has antibody-like specifiaity as well as
chamotherapy-like potency, is clearly attractive
The 5T4-targeted antibody therapy has the
potential to benefit pattents with any solid
cancer that expresses the 5T4 tumour antigen,
which represents a multi-billion US dollar
market Based on the product’s profile, it could
have appltcation as a single agent or could be
used In combination with other treatments,
including therapeutic vaccines, such as TroVax

Oxford BloMedica pke
Annual Report & Accounts 2009

Prechinical optimisation

Pfizer has responsibility for the development
and commercialisation of the 5T4-targeted
antibody therapy Their product candidate
comprises a toxin linked to a humanised
5T4-specific antibody for targeted delivery of
the anti-cancer agent paytoad to cancer cells
Preclinical avaluation 1s ongoing to optimise
the product for clinical development, and Pfizer
may submit an IND apphication during 2011

From Wyeth to Pfizer

Wyeth licensed global rights to Oxford BioMedica's
5T4-specific antibodies in 2001. Following Pfizer’s
acquisition of Wyeth in 2009 and subsequent
portfolio review, Pfizer has indicated its continuing
commitment to the collaboration and to the
development of the product.
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Other Products

Preclinical development
of our gene-based anti-
angiogenic therapy for
cancer, EndoAngio-GT,
is ongoing. However,
following our strategic
realignment during the
second half of 2008, we
curtailed development
expenditure on two
clinical programmes,
Hi-8 MEL and MetXia.
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These programmes continue to have significant
potential and we aim to reahise the value of
these assets through partnerships Furthermore,
we continue to pursue technology hicensing
opportunities to leverage our broad intellectual
property estate Qur objective I1s to retain a
financial interest In the successful development
and commeraahsation of any product
candidate that derwes from our technologies
through milestone payments and royalties

HI-8® MEL: melanoma
]
The two completed chnical tnals of Hi-8 MEL
showed encouraging proof of concept In
metastatic melanoma, demonstrating good
safety and dose-dependent efficacy These
results support further evaluation in
randomised Phase Il tnals,and we aim to
advance the programme with a suitable
partner We are increasing our partnering
activities on Hi-8 MEL in 2010 to realise the
investment made in this programme to date

Market opportunity

More than 100,000 people are diagnosed with
melanoma each year in the seven major
pharmaceutical markets Existing therapies for
Stage II/IV metastatic melanoma offer imited
efficacy and often have serious side-effects
Worldwide sales of treatments for melanoma
are expected to exceed US5775 million In 2010
(source Datamonitor)

ENDOANGIO-GT: cancer
]
We have identified a potentially optimal gene
delivery system for our anti-cancer EndoAngio-
GT programme With further prechinical
development, we believe that the product could
be a potentially valuable chinical candidate

Market opportunity

There is substantal interest within the industry
for novel anti-anglogenic approaches for the
treatment of cancer The market leaderin the
field, Avastin® (Roche/Genentech) generated
sales in excess of US$4 billion in 2008
EndoAngio-GT could have competitive
advantages i terms of safety and potency

Financlal Statements Appendix

METXIA®: pancreatic cancer
]
We are finahising the cinical study reponrt for the
completed Phase I/l tnal of MetXla in 35 patients
with non-resectable pancreatic cancer In this
trial, we 1dentified the optimal dose of MetXia
and the prodrug for evaluation randomised
studies Median survival for evaluable patients,
who received at least one dose of MetXia and
three doses of cyclophosphamide, was 27 weeks
Increasad cycles of cycdlophosphamide
appeared to be associated with longer survival
Our objective 15 to partner this product for
further development

Market opportunity

Pancreatic cancer Is the fifth leading cause of
cancer-related mortality in the USA with over
30,000 deaths attributable to this disease
annually 1t 1s one of the most aggressive forms
of cancer with a five-year survival rate In the low
single percentage digits The US pancreatic
cancer drug market 1s expected to reach US51 1
billion by 2013 (source EPIQ Markat Intelligence)
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Proprietary Technologies

“Our proprietary technologies are based on scientific
innovation.We have core in-house expertise in genetic
engineering,immunology and manufacturing. We also
work closely with leading academic groups in the field.
Our development candidates have the potential to
benefit patients in many therapeutic areas.”

Dr Stuart Naylor, Chief Scientiffc Officer

26 Oxtord BioMedica plc
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LENTIVECTOR®
]
Our LentiVector technology is one of the most
advanced gene delivery systems currently
avaitable, which has many applications in
product development and in discovery research
It is the system of choice for gene-based
treatments addressing chronic and inherited
diseases Oxford BioMedica has established a
dominant intellectual property estate in the
field of lentiviral-vector mediated gene delivery
through its in-house research and from work
conducted by the Company’s co-founders at
Oxford University

Rationale

Gene therapy i1s the treatment or prevention

of disease by gene transfer and involves the
genetic modification of human cells by the
introduction of one or more genes The ability
to deliver genes effectively has been a key
chaltenge for the successful development of
gene therapy Viral vectors are widely used for
gene delivery since they have a natural ability
to enter a cell and deliver genetic matenal both
efficiently and in a defined manner While there
1s no universal delivery system that can be used
to treat every disorder, our LentiVector system s
the vector of choice for long-term therapy

Opportunity: gene therapy

The versatility of our LentiVector system to
deliver genetic material safely and efficiently
to various cell types makes it ideal for gene
therapy or for gene silencing using RNA
interference The technology could be used in
many therapeutic areas, but it has specific
advantages as a gene delivery system for the
treatment of neurological and ophthalmic
disorders In these settings,a single
adminustration of a LentiVector-based gene
therapy could achieve permanent therapeutic
benefit

Opportunity: research tool

Gene delivery has become animportant tool
for biological research The efficiency of
LentiVector-mediated gene transfer makes the
technology the preferred system for stable,
sustained transgene expression In drug
discovery, target valldation and biological
manufactuning Our technology is being applied
In many research laboratories, including those
of GlaxoSmithKline, Merck & Co and Pfizer
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The 5T4 tumour antlgen Is a unique protein
found on most common types of cancer, which
makes it a potentially valuable target for novel
anti-cancer Interventions The 5T4 antigen was
discovered by scientists at Cancer Research UK
{formerly Cancer Research Campaign), which
was a founding shareholder of Oxford BioMedica
in 1996 and which granted the Company
exclusive rights to its intellectual property
relating to the 5T4 antigen

Rationale

When cells mutate and become cancerous, they
often produce and display different proteins,
known as tumour-specific antigens, which in
some cIrcumstances an trigger an immune
response Some tumour antigens are unique to
tumours, whife others may also be found on
normal cells in certain organs, often at lower
concentrations than on cancerous cells Immune
responses to these antigens may be suppressed
because they are considered "self

Cancer was traditionally treated by a
combination of surgery, radiation and/or
chemotherapy However, praventing the
metastatic spread of tumours has proved
challenging and requires therapies that can be
targeted to the disseminated cancerous cells
The 5T4 antigen 1s an tdeal target given its
restnicted expression in normal tissues and Iits
high prevalence on the surface of both primary
and metastatic cancetrous cells

Opportunity:immunotherapy

Actlve iImmunotherapy, also called therapeutic
vaccination, 1s designed to treat cancer by
stimulating a patient’s own immune system to
eradicate disseminated cancerous cells and
metastases in distant organs Vaccine strategies
that are specific to tumour-associated antigens,
such as 574, are among the most promising
approaches for active immunotherapy

Opportunity antibody therapy
Monoclonal antibodies targeting tumour
antigens are widely used for the treatment of
cancer today Antibodies can function alone
{naked) or as conjugates, linked to active
moieties such as radicactive 1sotopes,
chemotherapeutics or other toxins Preclinical
studtes suggest that 5T4 has ideal
charactenstics as a target for conjugated
antibody therapy
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ANTI-ANGIOGENESIS
"
The creation of new blood vessels, known as
anglogenesis, is a critical element in tumour
formation and growth A number of ant)-
angiogenic treatments have proven effective
against solid tumours with the added benefit of
having less toxiaty than chemotherapy Oxford
BioMedica secured exclusive rights to two anti-
angiogenic agents, endostatin and angiostatin,
for anti-cancer gene therapy from the Children’s
Hospital Boston in 2007 The Company also has
rights to employ these genes for ocular gene
therapy Endostatin and angiostatin are the
genetic payload in both RetinoStat and
EncorStat, which are destgned to block aberrant
blood vessel growth in the retina and cornea
respectively

Opportunity

Manufactuning challenges have prevented
further development of the two proteins as
product candidates A gene-based approach
could overcome the imitations of direct
administration to exploit the full potential of
these anti-angiogenic agents for the treatment
of cancer and ocular diseases

H1-8® PRIMEBOOST
L__________________________________________ |
Heterclogous pnme-boest immunaotherapy
involves priming the immune system 1o a target
antigen using one delivery system and then
boosting the response by administration of the
same antigen but using a different vector This
strategy can stimulate greater levels of
immunity, particularly cellular immune
responses Oxford BioMedica's Hi-8 PrimeBoost
technology is based on the use of DNA vaccines
and recombinant poxvirus vectors

Opportunity

Hi-8 PrimeBoost i1s a flexible and powerful
technology that could be applied to any disease
that can be controlled by a disease-specific
cellular mmune response such as cancer or
infection In clinical and preclinical studies, the
technology stimulatad potent and specific
cellular mmune responses targeting melanoma,
hepatitis B, HIV/AIDS and tuberculosis

Frnanclal 5 18 | Appendb

GDEPT

. ________________________________________ ]
Gene-directed enzyme prodrug therapy (GDEPT)
1s based on delivenng Into diseased cells a gene
enceding an enzyme that can activate a non-toxic
prodrug into 2 toxic agent Oxford BioMedica has
intellectual property covering genetic delivery
of P450 enzymes and broader claims covering
other retroviral-based prodrug strategies

Opportunity

GDEPT strategies could be used to treatany
sohd tumour that 15 accessible either directly or
via local perfusion The technology could also
benefit therapeutic strategies tn other types of
disease, including graft versus host disease

e %@

Dr Stuart Naylor
Chief Saentific Officer

Further detailed information on these
technologies and associated development
programmes can be found in the appendix
on pages 82 and 83,
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“We maintained our financial strength through 2009,
making the transition from the TroVax collaboration
with sanofi-aventis that had been a key feature of the
financial results for the two previous years, to the new
ocular collaboration in 2009.The cash inflows associated
with the sanofi-aventis collaborations, together with
continuing careful focus on expenditure, resulted in
a stronger cash balance at the end of 2009 than at
the beginning.”

Andrew Wood, Chief Financial Officer

Our present funds, together with licence income and
anticipated revenues from current collaborations, are
sufficient to meet operational needs until the beginning
of 2012.This gives the Group a strong platform from
which to build a profitable, sustainable business.
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Financial overview

The termination of the TroVax collaboration in April 2009 and the revised strategy for TraVax development following the FDA review of the TRIST study
in June 2009 had a matenial effact on the Company, and resulted in 3 £6 0 million exceptlonal profit in the statement of comprehensive income In
contrast, in 2008 we recognised an exceptional loss of £4 & million from impairment of intangible assets Before exceptional items, revenue for 2009 was
£9 0 million (2008 £18 4 million) and costs {cost of sales, research and development costs and administrative expenses) were significantly reduced at
£20 9 miulhion (2008 £27 6 millon)

Cash, cash equivalents and current financial assets increased by £3 4 milhon in 2009, leaving a balance of £25 3 million at 31 December 2009

Revenue £19,120,000 (2008 £18,394,000)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
TroVax collaboration — non-exceptional revenue 2,609 18,064 6,970 - -
Ocular collaboration revenue 6,224 - - - -
Technology licences and other revenue 158 330 249 760 824
Total non-exceptional revenue 9,031 18,394 7,219 760 824
TroVax collaboration - exceptional revenue 10,089 - - - -
Tetal revenue 19,120 18,394 7,219 760 824

Non-exceptional TroVax revenue of £2 6 mithon in 2009 compnsed the recognition of deferred income up to the termination of the collaboration
in Apri! 2009 The remaining £5 7 milhon of deferred TroVax Income was recognised in 2009 as exceptional revenue A termination payment of
U556 5 million (£4 4 milhon) paid by sanofi-aventis made up the remainder of exceptional revenue

The ocular collaboration with sanofi-aventis contnbuted revenue of £6 2 million in 2009 The collaboration has two elements an upfront payment of
US$26 mullion (£16 6 million) was receved in 2009, and R&D funding of up to US524 million will be recevable over the current phase of the collaboration
Revenue recogrised in 2009 compnised £3 1 million of the upfront payment and £3 1 miflion of R&D funding Deferred income of £13 7 million s
expected to be recognised between 2011 and 2013

Cost of sales £437,000 (2008: £1,295,000)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Royalty payable on third party licenses
Non-exceptional (credit)/cost of sales (90) 1,295 449 - -
Exceptional cost of sales 527 - - - -
Total cost of sales 437 1,295 449 - -

Cost of sales is the royalty payable to third party licensors attributable to upfront and milestone payments that are recognised as revenue Where the
recognition of upfront and/or milestone payments is deferred in part or in full, the appropriate proportion of cost of sales is also deferred and is
classified as a prepayment In 2009 a credit of £545,000 was recognised within non-exceptional cost of sales following a reduction in the esumated
royalty rate that had been applied to TroVax collaboration revenue in 2007 and 2008
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Operating expenses before exceptional items £20,955,000

{2008 £26,322,000) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-exceptional research and development costs 14,899 22,482 22,142 19,523 9,327
Non-exceptional administrative expenses 6,056 3,840 4,282 2,699 2,865
Total non-exceptional operating expenses 20,955 26,322 26,424 22,222 12,192

Non-exceptional operating expenses were £5 4 million lower than 2008 at £21 0 million The reduction in R&D costs came mainly from lower external
chrucal costs, and in particular from lower TRIST expenditure Costs incurred in the sanofi-aventts ocular programme are included 1n R&D costs

The increase in expenditure on these products has offset some of the reduction in TroVax expenditure Administrative expenses Increased in 2009,
principally due to foreign exchange losses, bonus payments and legal costs related to patent litigation

Research & development costs £14,899,000 (2008 £22,482,000)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
External prechnical & clinical costs 6,328 13,397 11,833 11,153 1,730
In-house R&D costs UK 8,138 8,660 9,848 7,983 7.310
In-house R&D costs USA 433 425 461 387 287
Total non-exceptional research & development costs 14,899 22,482 22,142 19,523 9,327

R&D costs comprise in-house expenditure (staff, R&D consumables, intellectual property, facilies and depreciation of R&D assets) and external costs
(prechnical studies, GMP manufactuning, regulatory affairs, and chnical tnials) External clinical and preclinical costs from 2006 to 2008 had been high due
to TroVax development costs, particularly costs of the TRIST study As expected, these costs fell back sigruficantly in 2009, with non-exceptional external
TroVax development costs recognised in 2009 down to £0 7 million compared to £10 0 million 1n 2008 Costs related to the TRIST study from June 2009
onwards are part of exceptional R&D costs Offsetting some of the reduction, ocular product and ProSavin external costs were £2 7 million higher in
2009 at £5 2 million Most of the 2009 ocular programme spend was covered by R&D funding from sanofi-aventis In-house R&D costs in 2009 were 6%
lower than in 2008 at £8 1 million

Administrative expenses £6,056,000 (2008: £3,840,000)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Administrative staff costs 2,815 2,016 1,958 1,123 1,224
Legal costs 1,411 867 852 353 119
Net fareign exchange losses/(gains) 465 (695) 3 2 {24}
Other adminustratlve expenses 1,365 1,652 1,469 1,221 1,546
Total non-exceptional administrative expenses 6,056 3,840 4,282 2,695 2,865

Admirustrative expenses in 2009 were overall £2 2 million (58%) higher than 2008 Foreign exchange losses account for £1 2 million of the increase

The exchange loss of £0 5 milllon in 2009 was mainly due to weakening of the US dollar over the course of the year In 2008 foreign exchange gains of
£0 7 million were recogrused Administrative staff costs were £0 8 million (40%) higher than 2008 at £2 8 million, due mostly to bonuses 2009 bonuses
inctuded £0 3 million costs in relation to a share-settled bonus paid to John Dawson, Chief Executive Officer There were no bonuses in 2008 Legal costs
in 2009 were £0 S million higher than 2008 at £1 4 million £1 O million of the 2009 legal costs retated to the Bavarian Nordic liigation and patent
oppositions In January 2010 the Bavanian Nordic htigation was settled
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Headcount
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Number Number Number Number Numbaer
R&D headcount (year end) 53 64 69 63 61
Administrative haadcount {year end) 12 12 13 10 10
Total headcount at year end 65 76 82 73 A
R&D headcount (average for the year) 58 73 68 62 59
Administrative headcount (average for the year) n 12 12 10 10
Total headcount( average for the year) 69 85 80 72 &9

In 2009 there was a net reduction In headcount of 11, continuing a downward trend that started in July 2008 following the TRIST sethack Subsequent to
the year end this trend has begun to reverse, with a net galn of 4 In January and February 2010 One full-time employee and one part-time employee are
based at the wholly owned subsidiary, BioMedica Ing, in San Diego, USA All other staff are based at the main offices and laboratornies in Oxford, UK

Exceptional operating expenses £3,561,000 (2008: £4,561,000)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Research and development costs
Ansing on termination of the TroVax collaboration 676 - - - -
Provision for TRIST study close-out 2,202 - - - -
Write-off re planned Quasar chinical tral 514 - - - -
Impaument of intangible assets - 4,561 - - -
Total exceptional research and development costs 3,392 4,561 - - -
Administrative expenses:
Arising on termination of the TroVax collaboration 169 - - - -
Rastructunng costs - - EELY - -
Total exceptional administrative expenses 169 - 335 - -
Total exceptional operating expenses 3,561 4,561 335 - -

Exceptional items are described fully in note 5 to the financial statements On termination of the TroVax collaboration with sanofi-aventis, net
unrecoverable costs of £0 8 milhon were wnitten off This 1s net of receipts of US$10 9 mullion (£7 2 million) - reimbursements by sanofi-aventis as part of
the termination process Following the FDA review of TRIST in June 2009 and the revision of the development strategy for TroVax, £2 2 million was
provided to meet the costs of closing out the TRIST study, and £0 5 million of expenses related to the planned Quasar TroVax clinlcal trial were written off
Between June 2009 and the end of the year, costs of £1 4 million were incurred and set against the TRIST provision

Finance ncome £636,000 (2008 £1,638,000)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest receivable - bank 642 1,661 2,113 1,743 955
Other interest recevable 27 1 4 - 14
Interest payable — discount on provisions (10} {19) (30) (29} (20)
Other interest payable (23) (5} - - (1)
Net finance income 636 1,638 2,087 1,714 a3g
Average balance on deposit in the year 24,549 28,941 37,731 37,689 19,955
Average rate of interest on deposits 261% 573% 558% 4 62% 477%

The Group places its cash in bank depaosits for periods of up to 12 months and generates interest on those deposits The maturity profile of deposits 1s
intended to match planned expenditure As expected, the dramatic fall in market rates from the end of 2008 has resutted tn much lower interest Income
in 2009 The Group has no debt, but is recognising as a finance expense the discount on a lease provislon and a dilapidation provision The lower charge
1n 2009 reflects the level of interest rates in the year
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Tax credit £1,579,000 (2008 £1,992,000)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
UK R&D tax credit - current year 1,650 2,119 2,526 1,709 1175
UK R&D tax cradit - prior year adjustment - (72) - 75 101
Overseas tax payable - current year (61) (59) {60) (38) (43)
Overseas tax payable - prior year adjustment (10} 4 (14) 16 (23)
Net tax credit 1,579 1,992 2,452 1,762 1,210
Debtor for R&D tax credit 2,269 2,119 2,623 2,309 1,175

Our UK operating subsidiary 1s entitled to claim R&D tax credit The credit s based on certain eligible expenses, to which a mark-up of 75% and a tax rate
of 14% are applied, restricted where appropriate to the lower of UK payroll tax {Income Tax and National Insurance) paid in the year and Corporation Tax
losses for the year The lower tax credit in 2009 results from restriction due to the amount of tax losses In 2009 the Group received a £1 5 million
payment on account of the 2008 R&D tax credit The remaining £0 6 mulion of the 20608 claim was paid in January 2010 The Group's US subsichary
supplies services to the UK subsidiary subject to a fixed mark-up Interest s charged by the substdiary at statutory rates for an inter-company loan This
generates a low level of taxable income in the USA

Loss for the financial year including exceptional items £3,515,000 (2008 £10,041,000)

As a result of recognising an exceptional profit of £6 0 milhon in 2009 (2008 exceptional loss of £4 6 million), the Group's net loss for the year was 65%
lower than 2008 At the pre-exceptional level however, despite lower operating costs in 2009 the net loss was 74% higher Principally this Is due to the
higher level of recognised revenue in 2008, which included a total of £18 1 million under the TroVax collaboration

Intangible assets £11,119,000 (2008 £11,119,000)

Intanglble assets were unchanged at 31 December 2009 The Group continues to monitar the carrying value of intangibles No addiional impairment
was required following the impairment review for 2009

Trade and other receivables £4,628,000 (2008: £7,305,000)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade receivables 88 106 91 241 119
Accrued income 1,925 - 34 223 93
Other costs recoverable from sanofi-aventis - 3,913 109 - -
Other receivables 298 481 1,020 765 676
Prepaid clinical tnal expenses 70 790 969 - -
Prepaid royalty on deferred income 1,465 870 1,330 " -
Prepayments 487 652 587 592 442
Other tax recewvable (VAT and US income tax) 150 333 414 220 242
Rent deposit on US lease 145 160 118 150 205
Total trade and other receivables 4,628 7,305 4,672 2,202 1,777

Trade and other recevables reduced by £2 7 million in 2009 to £4 6 mulhion £1 § accrued income at 31 December 2009 was R&D funding recoverable
from sanofi-aventis £3 9 milhion of recoverable costs related to the development of TroVax that was included in receivables in 2008 was settled as part
of the US510 9 (£72 million) rembursement of costs by sanofi-aventis in 2009
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Trade and other payables £7,669,000 (2008. £10,558,000)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade payables 1,965 3,298 2,948 1,579 397
Accruals - chinical & preclinical costs 1,924 3,924 3,536 1,782 i
Accruals - royalties on sales 1,788 2,259 1,483 68 68
Accruals - staff costs 639 94 210 74 68
Accruals - other 1,049 847 962 853 558
Other taxation and social security 304 135 418 315 263
Total trade and other payables 7,669 10,558 9,557 4,671 2,075

Trade and other payables reduced by £2 9 mullion in 2009 Most of the reduction is attrtbutable to lower trade creditors and accruals for external chinical
and preclintcal costs Staff cost accruals at December 2009 included £396,000 for bonuses

Deferred Income £13,765,000 (2008 £8,443,000)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
QOcular deferred income {current) 4,665 - - - -
Ocular deferred income (non-current}) 9,024 - - - -
Other deferred income (current) 76 119 a0 92 105
TroVax deferred income - 8,324 18,823 - -
Total deferred income 13,765 8,443 18,913 92 105

Deferred revenue reflects payments received under licensing agreements that exceed the amount of recognised revenue Receipts in 2009 from the
ocular collaboratton with sanofi-aventis are being recognised as revenue over a period of 42 to 51 months £2 6 million of deferred TroVax income was
recegnised as non-exceptional revenue prior to the termination of the collaboration in 2009 The remaining £5 7 million deferred TroVax income has
been recognised as exceptional revenue

Shareissues
At the end of 2009, the Company had 541,185,828 shares m issue During the year, shares issued for cash raised £0 4 million

Cash and deposits £25,302,000 {2008: £21,891,000).

Operational cash generated £3,026,000 (2008 cash burn £16,889,000)

The total of cash, cash equivalents and current asset Investments at the end of 2009 was £25 3 million, an increase of £3 4 million over the year

The format of the cash flow statement under IFRS does not readily confer an assessment of cash burn However, based on the aggregate of cash from
operating activities, proceeds of sale of property, plant and equipment and purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, the cash
inflow in 2009 was £3 0 million, In contrast to a cash burn of £16 9 mullion 1n 2008

Finanaal outlook

The new collaboration with sanofi-aventis has strengthened the balance sheet through the upfront payment, and 1s providing R&D funding to take our
four ocular products into therr first chnical tnals Taking account of icensing income and anticipated receipts from existing collaborations, the present
level of funds 1s sufficient to meet operational needs up to the beginning of 2012 This gives the Group a strong platform from which to build a
sustamnable, profitable business We aim to develop our pipehne through a combination of focussed investment in certain programmes, and further
partnerships and colilaborations Sustainable profitability depends on the ability of Oxford BioMedica and our collaborators to develop and bring to
market safe and effective medicines that benefit patients and achieve commeraial success We also continue to explore opportunities to accelerate
profitability through value-enhancing corporate activity

A 53

Andrew Wood
Chief Financial Officer
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ALAN KINGSMAN

Chairman

Professor Alan Kingsman, age 53,15 a co-founder
of Oxford BioMedica and servad as Chief
Executive Officer from 1996 to 2008 He was
appointed Chairman in July 2008 He is an
internationally recognised authority on gene
expression and retrovirus research and has

over 25 years' experience In this field, including
17 years as co-director (with Susan Kingsman} of
the Retrovirus Molecular Biology Group within
the Blochemistry department of the University
of Oxford He continues to hold the title of
Professor of Bliochemstry at Oxford University
and 1s a former fellow of 5t Catherine’s College,
Qxford He has published extensively in the field
and 15 named inventor on numerous patent
apphcations and issued patents He has acted as
an adwvisor or consultant to UK research councils,
World Health Organization {WHO} and a
number of UK and international comparues

JOHN DAWSON

Chief Executive Officer

John Dawson, age 50, joined Oxford BioMedica's
Board as Non-Executive Director on 1 August
2008 He was then appointed Chief Executive
Officer an 13 October 2008, having served as
Acting Chlef Executive Officer since 29 August
2008 From 1996 to 2007 he held senior
management positions In the European
operations of Cephalon Inc, including from
2005, a management board position as

Chief Financial Officer and Head of Business
Development Europe In his time at Cephalon
he led the many deals that built the European
business to over 1,000 people, taking the
business from having no salesin 1998to a
turnover of several hundred millien US dollars
In 2005 he led the US5360 million acquisition of
Zeneus by Cephalon
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ANDREWWOOD

Chief Financial Officer

Andrew Wood, age 51, has been a Director of
Oxford BioMedtca since 1996 He s a Chartered
Accountant with wide expenience of finanaial
management in a number of iIndustries He alsa
holds a first class degree In biochemistry from
Oxford University Before joining Oxford
BioMedica he was finance director at the
Yorkshire Cable Group (part of General Cable)
Previously, he held senior financial positions
with subsichanies of the Burton Group,
Associated Newspapers,and Fenner plc

STUART NAYLOR

Chuef Scientific Officer

Dr Stuart Naylor, age 46, joined Oxford BioMedica
In 1997 and was appaointed {o the board in July
2008 He established an international reputation
at two world class cancer institutes, the Imperiat
Cancer Research Fund and the Institute of
Cancer Research His career has covered many
aspects of tumour biology from 1ts molecular
basls to the clinlc He has published numerous
primary and review articles notably in the field
of cytokine research and brings with him an
extensive network of collaborators in many
aspects of basic research and chnical oncology

PETER NOLAN

Executive Director and Senlor Vice President,
Commercial Development

Peter Nolan, age 56, was appointed to Oxford
BioMedica's board in May 2002, having been a
senior member of the Company since its
foundation He s also a Director of the UK
Biolndustry Association and 15 a past chairman
of the Oxfordshire Bioscience Network. He has
hroad experience and knowledge of the
biotechnology sector Prior to joining Oxford
BioMedica, he served as head of the
Biotechnology Unit at the UK Department of
Trade & Industry for erght years In that role he
was responsible for establishing and managing
complex collaborative research programmes
involving Industry, research councils and other
government departments Previously he held
senior positions in the Laboratory of the
Government Chemist and also the Metropolitan
Police Laboratory in London where he was a
senior forensic scientist

NICK WOCLF

Chief Business Officer

Nick Woolf, age 41, was appolnted to the board ‘
of Oxford BioMedica in March 2005 and was

appointed Chief Business Officer in July 2008

He has extensive experlence in investment

banking and equity research in the

biotechnology and pharmaceutical sectors

Nick joined Oxford BioMedica in 2002 from

ABN AMRO, where he was a Director and Head

of Eurapean Biotechnology Research Priorto

ABN AMRQ, he was a Vice President and Sentor

European Biotechnology Analyst at Robertson :
Stephens, and was previously at Nomura and

SBC Warburg Nick i1s a qualified FCCA

accountant and holds an MA in Chemistry from

the University of Oxford
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NICK RODGERS

Deputy Chalrman and Senior

Independent Director

Mick Rodgers, age 51, was appointed to Oxford
BioMedica's board in March 2004 He 1s a former
investment banker with considerable expenence
in the life sciences sector He Is now chief
executive of Ipso Ventures ple, an intellectual
property commerciahization business, having
been head of life sciences and joint head of
corporate finance at Evolution Beeson Gregory
until December 2003 Nick Jjoined Beeson
Gregory in 1989 from accountants Ernst & Young,
having also worked in the listing department of
the London Stock Exchange He Is Chairman of
Oxford BioMedica'’s audit committee

PAUL BLAKE

Non-Executive Director

Paul Blake, aged 62, was appointed to Oxford
BioMedica’s board in January 2010 Dr Blake has
over 30 years international pharmaceutical/biotech
experience, and is currently Senior Vice
Prasident and Chref Medical Officer of £terna
Zentaris Inc, a global biopharmaceutical
¢ompany focused on oncology and endrocnne
therapy From 2001 to 2006, he held senior
management positions at Cephalon Ing,
including Executive Vice President, Worldwide
Medical & Regulatory Operations from 2005

Dr Blake's previous positions include SeniorVice
President and Medical Director, Clinical Research
and Development at SmithKline Beacham
Pharmaceuticals He gained hls medical degree
from the London University, Royal Free Hospital
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ANDREW HEATH

Non-Executive Director

Andrew Heath, aged 60, was appeinted to
Oxford BioMedica’s board in January 2010

Dr Heath is a healthcare and biopharmaceutical
executive with in-depth knowledge of US and
UK capital markets and international experience
in marketing and sales, R & D and business
development He was Chief Executive Officer

of Prothencs plc from 1997 to 2008, taking the
company from 30 to 350 staff and managing its
eventual acquisition by BTG for £220 million
Prior to this, Dr Heath was President and Chief
Executive Officer of Aerogen Inc, and previously
held senior positions at Astra AB and Astra USA,
Including Vice President Marketing & Sales, and
at Glaxo Sweden as Assoclate Medical Director
He Is currently a non-exacutive director of XL
TechGroup Inc, Anew Inc, Pioneer Technology
Inc, and 1s a director of the Biolndustry
Assoclation

Financlal Statements | Appendix
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ALEX LEWIS

Non-Executive Director

Dr Alex Lewis, age 47, was appointed to Oxford
BioMedica’s board in April 2008 Dr Lewis 1san
experienced consultant to the pharmaceutical
and biotech industry with a background in
medical research and drug development

(24 years) Dr Lews Is Director, Transactions and
Due Diligence at Datamonitor Previously, he
was head of the Partnenng and Due Diligence
practice of consultants Wood Mackenzie

Dr Lewis has been involved in the provision of
Expert Reports and technical advice for the
Initial Pubhc Offerings (IPOs) and fundraising
activities for biotech companies based In the
US and Europe He 1s Chairman of Oxford
BioMedica'’s remuneration committee

Alan Kingsiman John Dawson

Andrew Wood Stuart Naylor Pater Nolan

Nick Woolf Nick Rodgars

Paul Blake Andrew Haath Alax Lawis
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk assessment and evaluation is an integral
part of our planning Most of our nisks and
uncertainties are common to all development-
stage biopharmaceutical companies Where
possible, our strategy I1s designed to manage
and mitigate these issues

Intellectual property and patent protection
risk

Our commeraial success depends, amongst
other things, on maintamming proprietary nghts
to our products and technologies and the Board
gives high prionty to the strateqic management
of our intellectual property portfolio There can
be no assurance that our products and
technologies are adequately protected by
intellectual property If proceedings are initiated
against our patents, the defence of such rights
could involve substantial costs and an uncertain
outcome

Third-party patents may emerge contalning
claims that impact our freedom to operate
There can be no assurance that we will be
able to obtain licences to these patents at
reasonable cost,if at all, or be able to develop
or obtain alternative technology

Development and regulatory risk

Safety or efficacy 1ssues may anse at any stage
of the drug development process Adverse or
inconclusive results from preclinical testing or
chnical tnals may substantially delay, or halt,
the development of our product candidates,
consequently affecting our timelines for
profitability

The chnical development and marketing
approval of our product candidates are
regulated by healthcare regulatory agencies,
such as the FDA, EMA, AFSSAPS and MHRA, In
respective terntories During the development
stage, regulatory reviews of clinical trial
applications or amendments can prolong our
anticipated development timelines Similarly,
there can be no assurance of gaining the
necessary marketing approvals to
commerciahse our products Each regulatory
authority may impose its own restrnictions on
the product’s use or may require additional
data before granting approval

Collaboration and third party risk
Collaborations and hcensing are an important
component of our strategy to realise value and
manage nsk There can be no assurance that our
existing relationships will not be terminated or
require re-negotiation for reasons that may be
unrelated to the potential of the programme
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Circumstances may also anse where the fallure
by collaborators and third parties, such as
contract manufacturers, to perform their
obligations in accordance with our agreements
could delay, or halt entirely, development,
production or commercialisation of ocur
products, or adversely impact our cash flows

Pharmaceutical priclng risk

The ability of Oxford BioMedica and our
partners to commercialise our products may
depend on the availability of reimbursement
from government health adrministration
authorities, private health coverage Insurers and
other arganisations There 1s no assurance that
adeguate reimbursemant will be available or
that satisfactory price levels will be reached

There 1s pressure in all terntories to contain
healthcare costs by limiting both coverage and
the level of reimbursement Qur LentiVector-
based product candidates have the unique
potential to provide permanent therapeutic
benefit from a single administration The pricing
of these therapies will depend on assessments
of their cost-benefit and cost effectiveness

Competition nisk

Our competitors and potential competitors
include major pharmaceutical and
biotechnolegy companias, many of whom
have substantially greater resources than us
Through our collaborative strategy, we aim to
work with leading companies in respective
therapeutic areas However,there can be no
assurance that competitors will not succeed in
developing products and technologies that are
more effective or econemic than ours

Financial nsk

We recorded a net cash inflow from operations
in 2009 as a result of our business development
activities Under the terms of our collaborations,
the receipt of further income 1s dependent on
the achievement of specific milestones related
to development, regulatory or commercial
progress Similarly, the timing and magnitude of
income from new collaborations is inherently
unpredictable

Our strategy 1s to add value to our prionty
In-house programmes by investing [n further
development We aim to offset our operating
costs through partnering and other hicensing
income Based on our current budget, we have
sufficient working capital to support our
operating activities until the beginning of
2012 in the absence of iIncome from new
collaborations

We may require additional financing for the
future operation of our business, including
further equity funding as appropriate There is
no certainty that adequate resources will be
available on a timely basis, particularly if the
difficult condittons of financial markets persist

Staff risk

While we have employment contracts with all
of our personnel, the retention of their services
cannot be guaranteed Recruiting and retaining
key management and scientific personnel is
critical to our success

Gene therapy risk

No gene-based medicines are currently
approved for sale in the USA or EU The
commercial success of our products will
depend,in part, on acceptance by the medical
community and the public Furthermore,
speclfic regulatory requirements, over and
above those iImposed on other products, apply
1o gene therapy and there can be no assurance
that additional requirements will not be
imposed in the future This may Increase the
cost and time required for successful
development of our products
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APPLICATION OF THE PRINCIPLES IN THE
FRC COMBINED CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The policy of the Board I1s to manage the affairs
of Oxford BioMedica to the highest standards of
corporate governance and in accordance with
the principles of good governance and the code
of best practice as set out in the FRC combined
code on corporate governance as revised in
June 2008 (the ‘Combined Code’) A copy of the
code 15 available from www frc org

The Board considers that it has complied
throughout the year with the provisions for
companies set out in Section 1 of the Combined
Code, unless otherwise indicated below

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS

OF THE COMBINED CODE

The Board

QOxford BioMedica 15 led and controlled by a
Board currently consisting of a Chairman, four
Non-Executive Directors and five Executive
Directors Throughout 2009 there were three
Non-Executive Directors As set out In their
biographies on pages 34 and 35, the Directors
have significant experience of the management
and development of a biopharmaceutical group
and of pharmaceutical research and the new
drug development process There s a clear
dvision of responsibilities, set out in writing,
between the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer The Board considers that the Non-
Executive Diractors (other than the Chairman)
are independent of management This includes
Mark Berninger, who has now retired from the
Board, having served as a Director for 10 years
All Directors have access to advice and services
of the Company Secretary, who is responsible to
the Board for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with The appointment and
removal of the Company Secretary 1s a matter
for the Board as a whole to consider Provision
A2 2 of the Combined Code requires that the
Chairman should meet the independence
cnteria on appointment The present Chairman
was until July 2008 the Chief Executive Officer,
and for the first year of his tenure as Chatrman
held an executive position Hence he did not
meet this requirement The Chairman also holds
share options and Long Term Incentive Plan
Awards that were granted when he was CEO
and while he was Executive Chairman, whichis
contrary to the requirements for independence
set outin provision A 3 1 Since July 2009 the
position of Chairrman has been non-executive
The Chairman has no significant external
commercial commitments that would impact
the performance of his duties Provision A 3 2 of
the Combined Code requires a small company
1o have at least two independent Non-Executive
Directors The Company has fully met this
requirement
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Board meetings

The Board meets regularly and at least eight
times per yaar, with meeting dates agreed for
each yearin advance There 1s a formal schedule
of matters reserved to the Board for its decision
The schedule covers senior appoiniments,
business strategy and budgets, substantial
transactions, contracts and commitments,
financing treasury and nsk policies, and the
approval of certain documents and
announcements including the Annual Report
There is frequent contact between Executive
and Non-Executive Directors, and each Director
1s supplied on a imely basis with finanaal and
operational Information sufficient for the Board
to discharge its duties All Directors have access,
as required, to Independent professional advice
During 2009 there were 10 Board meetings The
attendance of individual Directors at Board
meetings was as follows

Number Number of
Director attended meetings
Professor Alan Kingsman 10 10
Mark Berninger 9 10
Dr Alex Lewis 10 10
Nick Rodgers 10 10
John Dawsan 10 10
Dr Stuart Naylor 9 10
Peter Nolan 10 10
Andrew Wood 9 10
Nick Woolf 9 10

As required, the Chairman holds meetings with
Non-Executive Directors without the Executive
Directors in attendance

Board committees

As appropnate, the Board has delegated certain
responsibtlities to Board committees, which
operate within defined terms of reference

and constitution There 1s a Remuneration
Commuttee, the report and membership of which
1s set out on pages 44 to 49 The Remuneration
Committee met nine times tn 2009 All meetings
were attended by both members

Audit Committee

There is also an Audit Committee Throughout
2009 the Audit Committee compnsed two
Non-Executive Directors Nick Rodgers (chairman)
and Dr Alex Lewts On 1 January 2010

Dr Andrew Heath jolned the Commitiee

The Board constder that all the members of the
Audit Commitiee possess recent and relevant
financial experience The Audit Committee has
written terms of reference which have been
published on the Company's web site

It monitors the integrity of the financial
statements of Oxford BioMedica and any formal
announcements relating to the Company’s
financial performance, reviewing significant
financlal reporting judgements contained in
them It reviews internal financial controls and

FInancial Statements Appendix

the internal control and nsk management
systems It makes recommendations to the
Board, for it to put to shareholders for their
approval in general meeting, in relation to the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the external auditors, and approves the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors

PhcewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been
auditors to the Company and the Group since
1997 The Audit Committee considers that the
relationship with the auditors 1s working well
and remains satisfied with their effectiveness
Accordingly it has not considered 1t necessary
to date to require the firm to tender for the
audit work There are no contractual obligations
restricting the Company's choice of external
auditor The incumbent independent auditors
continue to operate procedures to safeguard
against the possibility that their objectivity and
independence could be compromised This
includes the use of quality review partners, use
of a technical review board (where appropriate}
and annual independence proceduras,
including confirmations by all staff The auditors
report to the Audit Commttee on matters
including independence and non-audit fees on
an annual basis In addition, the role of the audit
partner is rotated on a periodic basis The Audit
Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditors’ independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process, taking into
consideration relevant UK professional and
regulatory requirements The Audit Committee
15 advised of and approves all non audit services
provided by the Company’s auditars As part of
this approval process, the Audit Committee
ensures that the provision of non audit services
will not impact the auditors’ objectivity and
independence It reparts to the Board as
necessary, idenufying matters in respect of
which 1t considers that action or improvement Is
needed, making recommendations as to the
steps to be taken

Oxford BioMedica has a public interest
disclosure policy,and the Audit Committee 1s
responsible for reviewing arrangements by
which staff may raise concerns about possible
improprieties It akso reviews from ttme to time
the need for an internal audit function Given
the Group's current size and simple structure,
the Committee considers there nottoba a
requirement for internal audit At the
Commttee’s invitation or request, the Chief
Executive Officer and other Directors may
attend meetings of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee met twice in 2009 with
the Chief Financial Officer present, at the
Commuttee’s invitation, and also in private All
meetings were attended by the full Committee
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises the Non-
Executive Directors and the Company Chalrman
Nick Rodgers (Senior Independent Director) is
the Committee chairman The Nomination
Committee met once 1n 2009, to consider the
appolntments of Dr Paul Blake and Dr Andrew
Heath as Non-Executive Directors All members
of the Commuttee attended the meeting

The Nomination Committee evaluates the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience on
the Board and, in the light of this evaluauon,
determines the role and capabilities required for
particular appointments

For the appointments of Dr Paul Blake and Dr
Andrew Heath (effective from 1 January 2010)
the Commuttee used 1ts own network of contacts
and consulted with the Company’s Financial
Adwisors prior to making the appointments
Consequently, external search consultancy and
open advertising were not required

Retirement of Directors

In accordance with the articles of association, at
each annual meeting any Director who was
appointed after the last annual general meeting
or has served for three years, and one third of
the other Directors {or if their number s nota
muttiple of three the number nearest to but not
exceeding one third) retire from office by
rotation

Review of performance

Provision A 6 of the Combined Code requires an
annual review of the performance of the Board,
the committees and the individual Directors
The Chairman, Semior Independent Director and
the Chilef Executive Officer have kept this matter
under review throughout 2009 and some
procedural and other changes have been
introduced as a result of these reviews The
Chairman and the Senior Independent Director
have also conducted an informal review of the
performance of the committees and the
individual Directors At least once per year the
Nen-Executive Directors meet under the
leadership of the Semior Independent Director
to appraise the Chairman’s performance
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Management committees

The Board retains overall responsibility for, and
control of, the Company Management is
conducted by the Chief Executive Officer and
the Executive Directors who, together with
other sentor managers, form the senior
management team Executive Directors sit on
the following commuttees and management
groups the sentor management group, the
executive research group, the chnical
development group, the safety committee, the
commercial development committee, the
guahty commuttee and the internal patent
group By this means, a direct and ongoing link
exists between the determination of strategy by
the Board and the execution of the Company’s
policies by its employees

Relations with shareholders

We attach a high priority to effective
communication with both private and
institutional shareholders The Annual Report
contains a detailed Business Review and a
descnption of our candidate products and of
our research and development portfelio An
Interim Business Review 15 also provided with
the half-year report sent to shareholders With
these documents and the Company’s press
releases, we seek to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of Oxford
BioMedica's position and prospects Our website
(www oxfordbiomedica co uk) provides
extensive other information about the
Company

The Annual General Meeting Is the prinapal
forum for dialogue with private shareholders A
business presentation is made by the Chief
Executive Officer and there I1s an opportunity for
shareholders to put questions to the Directors
At the AGM the Directors’ service contracts or
letters of appointment are available for
inspection

We maintain regular contact with institutional
shareholders through a programme of one-to-
one visits and bniefings The Senvor Independent
Director has contact with a range of major
shareholders to listen to their views in order to
help develop a balanced understanding of therr
views and concerns In addition, the Senior
Independent Director 1s available to
shareholders if contact through the normal
channels s iInappropriate, or has failled to
resolve concerns

Internal control

The Directors are responsible for Oxford
BioMedica’s system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness Such a system s
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss
As described above, the active involvement of
the Executive Directors in our management
committees allows the Board continually to
maonitor and assess significant business,
operational, financial, compliance and other
risks, and to review the effectiveness of internal
control This 15 reinforced by the provision to the
Board by the Executive Directors of regular and
detailed reports covering, inter aha, financing,
investor relations, research and development,
clinical development, finanaial performance,
commercial interactions and intellectual
property management In addition the Board
annually reviews the effectiveness of all
significant aspects of internal control,including
financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management The review for 2009 did
not highlight any matters that require reporting
to shareholders

Oxford BioMedica has procedures in place
which incorparate the recommendations on
internal control guidance for directors on the
Combined Code (Turnbull)
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) requires
consideration of the economic, social and
environmental tmpacts of our business
activities The Board recognises the potential
benefits of CSR for the competitiveness of
Oxford BioMedica and encourages a culture of
continuous Improvement in CSR-related 1ssues
We have set speafic policies that cover key
aspects of CSR and we strlve to operate at the
highest level of integnty

Employees

Attracting, motivating and retaining a highly
skilled workforce are critical to our business
success Our employment policies are based on
guidelines for best practice They recognise the
rights of all employees and ensure equal
opportunities for all staff without
discomination

We aim to develop and maintain a motivated
and professional workforce through career
development, performance evaluation and
feedback, training and promotion Training is
given in a wide varlety of ways including
on-the-job coaching and in-house or external
courses Our staff appraisal process continues to
funcuon well, by providing a formal process for
setting objectives and reviewing performance

In 2009, we undertook a review of the working
space in our offices on The Oxford Science Park
Following a consultation process with staff, we
implemented various recommendations,
including the creation of a new break-out and
coffee area and other refurbishments

Health and Safety

Oxford BioMedica is committed to protecting
the health, safety and welfare of all its
employees Qur Health and Safety Management
System covers all work activities such as the
usage of biological, chemical and radicactive
materials, and the operation of laboratory
equipment

We recently upgraded our Containment Level 3
faciity, which has specally engineered design
features for the production of our |entiVector-
based products These enhancements support
the increased development activities,
particularly in retation to our ocular
programmes This high-category laboratory
successfully passed an HSE Specified Animal
Pathogen Order (SAPO)} inspection in
September 2009
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Furthermore, the Environmental Agency
conducted a routine inspection of all our
laboratory activities, including our Radiation
Management System, in February 2009
Encouragingly, there were no critical or major
findings from the agency’s inspection and our
systems were deemed to be robust

Our Quality Management System ensures good
practice for all of our staff, particularly those
working in our research, development and
manufacturing team, who recelve suitable
tralning and adhere to our guidelines for good
practice In January 2010, the UK Medicines and
Healthcare products Regulatory Agency (MHRA)
completed a successful GMP audit Again, no
major or cnitical observations were noted

We strive to maintain an effective health
and safety culture within Oxford BioMedica
The Importance of health and safety to our
organisation 1s reflected through the active
involvement of senior management and
representation at Board level

External relationships

Our external stakeholders include suppliers,
adwisors, shareholders, patients, healthcare
professionals, partners and licensees These
relationships are a fundamental aspect of our
business activities We are committed to
Interacting with these third parties in an ethical
manner, and to ensuring that the relationships
are maintatned at a professional and
appropnate level Our internal procedures for
dealing with third parties are reviewed annually

We have a policy for the management of
chrical tnals to ensure compliance with
appropnate guidelines and legislation

Our website (www oxfordbiomedica co uk)
provides Information on ongoing chmical trials,
and we also list our US-based trals on a US
government-sponsored website

(www ClinicalTrials gov)

The Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Directors have pnmary responsibility for
communtcation with shareholders and related
stakeholders We also use the services of external
financial and corporate communications
agencies We seek to disseminate information in
a timely, reliable and comprehensive fashion,
and we comply with the rules and guidelines of
the UK Listing Authonity for a company on the
Official List
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Environment

We fully recognise our responsibiiity to protect
the environment and we review our
environmental pelicy, objectives and guidelines
regularly The Company complies with all
regulations that cover the processing and
disposal of laboratory waste, using qualified
hcensed contractors for the collection and
disposal of chemical and radioactive waste and
decontaminated biological materials No
laboratory waste goes to landfill sites

As part of our commitment to the environment,
our policies are designed to motivate our staff
to be energy conscious and environmentally
friendly The Company’s recycling program
continues to function effectively and the
majenity of our cardboard and office paper 1s
recycled Again, given its importance to Oxford
BroMedica, environmental 1ssues are
represented at Board level
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Principal actlvity

Oxford BloMedica (LSE OXB) is a biopharmaceutical company developing innovative gene-based medicines and therapeutic vaccines that aim to
improve the lives of patients with high unmet medical needs The Company was established In 1995 as a spin-out from Oxford University, and has its
primary listing on the London Stock Exchange

The Company has a platform of gene delivery technologies, which are based on highly engineered viral systems Oxford BloMedica also has in-house
clinical, requlatory and manufacturing know-how The Company's technology platform includes a highly efficient gene delivery system (LentiVector®),
which has specific advantages for targeting diseases of the central nervous system and the eye, and a unique tumour antigen (5T4), which 1s an i1deal
target for anti-cancer therapy

ProSavin®, Oxford BloMedica's novel gene-based therapeutic for the treatment of Parkinson's disease is in a Phase I/l clinical tnal at the Henn Mondor
Hospital in Paris, France ProSavin utihises Oxford BioMedica’s proprietary LentiVector system to deliver three genes which reprogramme cells in the
stniatum in the brain to manufacture and secrete dopamine, thereby replacing the dopamine synthesising cells lost during the course of Parkinson’s
disease

In collaboration with sanofi-aventis, Oxford BioMedica 15 developing four novel LentiVector-based product ¢andidates in the field of ophthalmology
RetnoStat® for wet age-related macular degeneration, StarGen™ for Stargardt disease, UshStat™ for Usher syndrome 1B and EncorStat™ for corneal
graft rejection In 2009 Oxford BioMedica granted sanofi-aventis a icense to develop the products, and an option for further development,
manufacture and commercialisation on a worldwide basis

The lead vaccine product candidate 1s TroVax®, an immunotherapy for multiple solid cancers In a Phase |l trial of TroVax in renal cancer (the TRIST
study) a significant survival advantage was shown in a predefined subset, namely in patients with a good prognostic profile receiving interleukin-2 as
standard of care {n = 100, p =0 046) Additional exploratory analyses have confirmed that the anti-5T4 iImmune response induced by TroVax Is
associated with enhanced survival (p = 0 002), and have also identified haematological factors that were predictive of a more favourable immune
response and greater sunaival benefit from TroVax Overall, however the TRIST study did not show a significant survival advantage for TroVax
compared to placebo in the total population

The Company is underpinned by over 60 patent familtes, which represent one of the broadest patent estates in the field Oxford BloMedica’s partners
include sanofi-aventss, Sigma-Aldnich and Pfizer Technology licensees include Biogen fdec, GlaxoSmithKline, Merck & Co and Pfizer

At 31 December 2009 the Group had a staff of 65 All full-time employees but one are based at the main operational site 1n Oxford The Group has a
wholly owned subsidiary, BloMedica Inc,in San Diego, California

Oxford BioMedica plc 1s a pubtic imited company incorporated in England and Wales, domiciled in England with its registered office at The Medawar
Centre, Robert Robinson Avenue, The Oxford Science Park, Oxford OX4 4GA, United Kingdom

Further information 15 availlable at www oxfordblomedica couk

Review of the business and future developments

The consolidated statement of comprehensive Income for the year is set out on page 51 A review of the Group's activities and future developments 1s
contained within the Highhghts, the Company Overview, the Chief Executive's Viewpoint, the Chairman’s Statement and the Business Review on pages
1toSand12to 33

Share capital

During 2009 the Company Issued a total of 3,896,067 new ordinary shares 187,025 on the exercise of share options by employees, 2,209,042 In a cash
subscription linked te funding the development of StarGen for the treatment of Stargardt disease, and 1,500,000 in a share-settled bonus payment to
the Chief Executive Officer lohn Dawson Subsequent to the year end, a further 173,330 shares were Issued on the exerclse of share options by
employees, and on 21 January 2010 1,699,876 shares were issued In connection with the purchase of intellectual property rights

Dividends
The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend (2008 nil)

Group research and development activities
During the year the Group incurred non-exceptional research and development expenditure of £14,899,000(2008 £22,482,000), and exceptional
research and development expenditure of £3,392,000 (2008 £4,561,000) all of which was written off in the statement of comprehensive income

Charitable donations
The Group made no charitable donations in 2009 (2008 nil)

Oxford BioMedIca plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2009
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The Directors of the Company at the date of signing the finandial statements who had been Directors for the whole of 2009 unless otherwise

Indicated were

Professor Alan Kingsman
Mark Berninger®

Dr Paul Blake*

Dr Andrew Heath!

Dr Alex Lewls

Nick Redgers

John Dawson
Dr Stuart Naylor
Peter Nolan
Andrew Wood
Nick Woolf

Chairman

Non-Executive Director, member of the Nomination Committee

Non-Executive Director, member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Commitiee
Non-Executive Director, member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
Non-Executive Director, Chatrman of the Rermuneration Committee, member of the Audit and Nomination Committees
Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent Director, Chairman of the Nomination and Audit Commuttees,
member of the Remuneration Committee

Chief Executive Officer

Chref Scientific Officer

Senlor Vice President Commercial Development

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Business Officer

1 On 1 January 2010 Mark Berninger retired from the Board and Dr Paul Blake and Dr Andrew Heath were appointed

All Directors are subject to election by shareholders at the first opportunity after their appointment, and to re-election thereafter at intervals of not ‘
more than three years At the 2010 Annual General Meeting the following Directors will retire from the Board

Directors appeinted subsequent to the 200% Annual General Meeting, who will retire in accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of ‘
association and offer themselves for re-election

+ DrPaul Blake
» Dr Andrew Heath

Other Directors retiring in accordance with article 93 of the Company’s articles of association, all of whom will offer themselves for re-election

» Dr Alex Lewis
» Peter Nolan

+ Nick Rodgers
» Andrew Wood

The appointments of Non-Executive Directors are subject to three months' notice The contracts of employment of Executive Directors are subject to

twelve months’ notice

Biographical detalls of all the Directors, including those submitted for re-election, are given on pages 34 and 35

The interests of the Directors at 31 December 2009 in the share capital of the Company are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages

4410 49

Directors’ third party indemnity provision
The Company maintains insurance ta provide cover for legal action against its Directors

Employeas

The Group communicates and consults regularly with employees throughout the year Employees’involvement in the Group’s performance is
encouraged, with all employees eligible to participate in the Share Incentive Plan and either the Share Option Scheme or the Long Term Incentive
Plan Certain employees participate in discretionary bonus schemes

The Group's aim for all members of staff and applicants for employment is to fit the qualifications, aptitude and abllity of each indwvidual to the
appropnate job, and to provide equal oppertunity regardless of sex, religion or ethnic origin The Group does all that 1s practicable to meet its
responsiblility towards the employment and training of disabled people

Further details on employees, health and safety, envirorimental matters and corporate social responsibility are in the Corporate Social Responsibility

Statement on page 39

41  Oxford BloMedica plc
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Substantial shareholdings
At 23 February 2010, the latest practical date prior to approval of the Directors'report, the Company had been notified of the following shareholdings
amounting to 3% or more of the ordinary share capital of the Company

Shareholder Number of ordinary shares Percentage of issued share capital
M&G Investment Management Limited 67,620,223 12 45%
Cubana Investments Limited 48,765,201 8 98%
Barclays plc 31,055,905 572%
TD Waterhouse 29,496,135 5 43%
GAM London Limited 29,339,574 5 40%
Legal & General Group plc 26,512,625 4 88%
Lloyds TSB Share Dealing 18,776,806 3 46%
Halifax Share Dealing Limited 17,700,965 3 26%
Sputnik Group 17,155,576 316%

No other person has reported an interest in the ordinary shares of the Company required to be notified to the Company
No person holds shares carrying speaal rights with regard to control of the Company

Employee share schemes
The Company has a Share Incentive Plan under which shares may be held in trust for employees The trustees may only exercise the voting rights in
respect of such shares in accordance with the employees’ instructions Currantly there are no such shares held in trust

Agreements that take effect, alter or terminate because of a takeover bid or on change of control
There are no such agreements that the Directors consider are matenal There are no agreements providing for compensation for loss of office for
Directors or employees In the event of a takeover bid

Creditor payment policy

The Company and its subsidiaries agree the terms of payment when agreeing the terms and conditions for their transactions with suppliers Payment
1s made In compliance with those terms, subject to the terms and coenditions of the relevant transaction having been met by the supplier The Group’s
average creditor payment penod at 31 December 2009 was 30 days (2008 44 days} The Company has no trade creditors (2008 nil)

Golng concern

Oxford BioMedica plc 1s a research and development basad business with no currently marketed preducts The Group's business activities, together
with the factors likely to affect its future develepment, performance and position are set out in the Chief Executive’s Viewpoint, the Chairman’s
Statement, the Business Review and the Principal Risks and Uncertainties on pages 4 and 5,12 to 27 and 36 The financial position of the Group,
including its cash flows, 1s described in the Financial Review on pages 28 to 33 In addition, nate 2 to the Financial Statements includes the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its financial nsk management objectives, and its exposure to cash fiow and hquidity risk
The Group is expected to incur significant further costs as It continues to develop its portfolio of candidate products and related technology The
Directors expect that these costs wil! be met from existing financial resources, the proceeds of icensing agreements, and ultimately from the proceeds
of sales of products However, there 1s no certainty that adequate resources will be available on a imely basis, and the Group may require additional
financing for the future operation of its business, iIncluding further equity funding as appropriate, before it reaches sustained profitability The current
turbulence in credit markets has no direct impact on the Group as it has no borrowings and no plans to issue debt instruments

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements

BlA code

The UK BicIndustry Association ('BIA'), of which the Company is a member, adopted a code of best practice in 1999 The BIA code includes principles
and provisions relating to corporate governance matters, access to external advice, confidentiality, dealings in the Company's shares, and standards of
public announcements Itis intended to operate by reference to the particular arcumstances of bioscience companies and in support of the Combined
Code and the rules of the Financial Services Authonty Throughout 2009 the Company has complhed with the relevant provisions of the BIA code

Information required to be disclosed by the Takeover Directive

Structure of the Company’s capital

The Company's share caprtal compnises a single class of 1p ordinary shares, each carrying one vote and all ranking equally with each other At 9 March 2010
the authonised share capital was £10,000,000 compnsing 1,000,000,000 1p ordinary shares 543,059,034 1p ordimary shares were allotted and fully paid
There are no restrictions on the transfer of shares in the Company or on voting nghts All shares are admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange

Rights to issue and buy back shares

Each year at the Annual General Meeting the Directors seek nghts 1o allot shares The authonty, when granted lasts for 15 months or until the
conclusien of the next Annual General Meeting if sooner At the last Annual General Meeting held on 4 une 2009, authority was given to allot up to
179,832,900 shares, subject to the normal pre-emption nghts reserved to shareholders contatned in the Companies Act 2006, that number being one
third of total 1ssued share capital of the Company at the time Authority was also given, subject to certain conditions, to walve pre-emption rights over
up to 83,624,700 shares, being 15% of the shares then in 1ssue No rights have been granted to the Directors to buy back shares

Ondford BicMedica plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2009
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Appointment and replacement of Directars

Directors may be appointed by an ordinary resolution at any general meeting of shareholders, or may be appointed by the existing Directors,
provided that any Director 5o appointed shall retire at the next following annual general meeting and may offer himself for re-election At each annual
general meeting any Director who has served for three years, and one third of the other Directors must retire, and may offer themselves for re-election
A Directar may be removed in the following ways, if he i1s prohibited by law from being a Director, In the event of bankruptcy, if he 1s suffering from
specified mental disorders, If he s absent without consent for more than six months, or by request in writing by all the ather Directors Any Director
may appoint another Director or another person approved by the other Directors as an Alternate Director

Amendment of the Company’s Articles of Association
Amendmaent of the Company’s articles may be made by special resolution at a general meeting of shareholders

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and requlations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare the
Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with Internatronal Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs} as adopted by the European
Union Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that penod In prepanng these financial statements, the
Directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
« make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting recerds that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactlons and
disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pesition of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Directors’Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation They are also responstble for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website, www oxfordbiomedica co uk Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in this section confirm that, to the best of their knowledge

+ the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and loss of the Group, and

~ the Directors’ Report contained in this section includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principal nisks and uncertainties that it faces

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each Director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit Information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all
the steps that he ought to have taken as a director In order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditors are aware of that information

Auditors
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution concerning their reappointment will
be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Corporate Governance
The Company'’s statement on corporate governance Is included in the Corporate Governance report on pages 37 and 38 of these financial statements

By order of the Board

N A

Andrew Wood
Company Secretary
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Only paragraphs marked with " within this report have been audited

Throughout 2009 the Remuneration Committee comprised two Non-Executive Directors Dr Alex Lewis (Chairman) and Nick Rodgers On 1 January
2010 Dr Paul Blake jomned the Committee The Committee determines, on behalf of the Board, the Company’s policy for executive remuneration, and
the individual remuneration packages of the Executive Directors including awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan The Committee also
determines the remuneration package of the Chairman At the Committee's invitation or request, the Chief Executive Officer and other Directors may
be In attendance at the meetings of the Remuneration Committee The Committee has access to professional advice, both inside and outside the
Company as required

Remuneration policy

The Company’s pelicy on remuneration is to attract, retain and incentivise the best staff in a manner consistent with the goals of corporate
governance In setting the Company’s remuneration policy, the Remuneration Committee considers a number of factors, including the basic salaries
and benefits available to Directors of comparable companies as provided by infarmation in independent remuneration reports, and the level of pay
for other employees in the Group

Remuneration of Executive Directors and the Chairman

Consistent with this policy, the Company's remuneration packages awarded to Executive Directors are intended to be competitive and comprise a mix
of performance-related and nen-performance-related elements Salaries are normally reviewed on 1 January each year Other than for Dr Stuart Naylor,
who was appointed as a Director on 1 July 2008 and whose salary was increased in 2008, Executive Director salanes have been frozen at their

2008 levels

There Is a discretionary non-pensionable bonus scheme for Executive Directors, subject to the achievement of agreed goals and targets that are
designed to Incentivise them to perform at the highest levels and to align their interests with those of the shareholders The pnncipal part of
performance-linked remuneration is related to overall measures of Group performance with a small amount being linked to indivnidual targets For
2009 the Group performance measures related to partnering of the Company’s products and achievement of chinical and development milestones
For the Executive Directors the performance-related annual bonus potential i1s up to 60% of basic salary The Commuttee approved bonuses of
42%-489% of salary for 2009 based on the achievements in 2009 In 2008 no annual bonuses were paid

Professor Alan Kingsman was Chief Executive Officer until 1 July 2008, when he became Chairman In his first year as Chairman (year ended 30 June
2009) he continued to hold an executive position, in order to support the CEQ and senior management in a transition phase for the Company, with a
salary of £175,000 per annum In 2009 a bonus of £30,000 was paid, and an award was made over 899,000 Ordinary Shares under the Long Term
Incentive Plan, both items being linked to his service as an executive up to 30 June 2009 As agreed with the Committee, from 1 July 2009 the position
of Chairman became non-executive, with a non-pensionable fee of £75,000 per annum A one-off additional pension centribution of £50,000 was paid
on termination of Alan Kingsman's executive position in June 2009 In order for the Company to continue to have access to Alan's expertise and time,
he entered into a consultancy agreement with the Group, commencing 1 July 2009 for an initial penod of 2 years, at the rate of £75,000 per annum

Dr Susan Kingsman, wife of Professor Alan Kingsman and former Chief Scientific Officer also has a consultancy agreement with the Group, from 1 July
2008 for an initial period of 2 years at the rate of £50,000 per annum

On 1 September 2009 1,500,000 new Ordinary Shares of 1p each were allotted to John Dawson The shares were fully pard, and were a one-off share-
based bonus payment, in accordance with his contract of employment, for successful achievement of the transactions with sanofi-aventis in April
2009 The value of the shares at the closing mad-market price on 28 August 2009 {the trading day Immediately prior to 1ssue), was £172,500 The
Company has borne an addittonal cost of £119,873 required to gross up the value of the shares for income tax and National Insurance

Benefits, detalled in the table of Directors' emoluments, mainly comprise healthcare Insurance
The Company makes contnbuttons to a defined contnibution personal pension scheme for the Executive Directors at 10% of salary

Directors and senior managers may participate In a share-based long term incentive plan (LTIP) Details of the awards made in 2009 under the LTIP are
on page 48 Awards under the LTIP may be conditional shares or nil-cost options, the release of which will depend on the completion of a holding
period of at least three years and the satisfaction of performance conditions [t 1s the intention of the Remuneration Committee to have one main
performance condition attached to share awards granted under the LTIP, which Is comparative Total Shareholder Return measured against a
comparator group of companies The comparator group for the LTIP awards made In March 2009 was

Alizyme plc?, Allergy Therapeutics plc, Antisoma plc, Ark Therapeutics Group ple, Axis-Shield plc, Bliocompatibles International ple, BTG ple, Corin Group
plc, Dechra Pharmaceuticals ple, Goldshield Group plc, GW Pharmaceuticals Ple, Optos ple, ProStrakan Group plc, Proteome Sciences ple, Renovo Ple,
Silence Therapeutics Pl, Sinclair Pharma Ple, SkyePharma plc, Summit Corporation plc

1 This 1s the same group used for the 2008 LTIP awards apart from the substitution of Acambis plc, Meldex International plc and Protherics ple by
GW Pharmaceuticals Plc, Renovo Ple and Sinclair Pharma Ple

2 After the comparator group was selected, Alizyme plc went into administration on 24 July 2009 It remains (n the comparator group but with a share
price of zero from that date

No awards under the LTIP will be released for less than median performance at the testing date Median performance will result in release of 25% of
the shares Upper quartile performance (1 e greater than 75th percentile performance) will result in release of 100% of the shares, with straight line
release between these points If the performance condittons are not satisfied or are partially satisfied at the end of the holding penod, the LTIP award
or the balance of the award (as appropriate) not released shall lapse There will be no re-testing of the performance conditions
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The maximum level of awards under the LTIP in any calendar year 15 150% of each eligible employee’s emoluments The Committee intends that
annual awards to Executive Directors will not normally exceed 100% of salary Taking account of the level of the Company's share price in March 2009
and of the potentially high number of shares and the dilutive Impact of an award of 1009, the 2009 LTIP award was scaled back to 30%-46% of salary
The overall limit on dilution from share schemes allows the Company to Issue up to 10% of its shares withina ten year period to satisfy awards to
participants In the LTIP and any other share plan operated by the Company under which shares are issued Including the LTIP and all other share plans,
assuming that 100% of presently un-vested LTIP awards and share options vest and are exercised, and taking into account all options granted in the
last 10 years that had been exercised by 31 December 2009, the maximum potential dilution against this hmit was 7 01%

Following the introduction of the LTIP Iin 2007, it Is no longer the Group's policy to award share options to Executive Directors Share options continue
to be awarded to other eligible employees Prior to 2007, share options were awarded to Executive Directors, including the present Chairman The
exercise pnice for all share options i1s the market price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the last trading day before the date of grant Full details of
Directors' share options are on page 47 A summary of all share options outstanding at 31 December 2009 15 given in note 22 to the financial
statements The remaining share options held by Directors at 31 December 2009 are subject to the rules of the Oxford BioMadica 1996 (No 1) Share
QOption Scheme These options became exercisable three years from the date of grant, and will cease to be exercisable seven years from the date of
grant All awards of share options are at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee Share options held by Directors are mostly subject to a
performance-based conditton, described 1n note 1 on page 47

In September 2009 Nick Woolf agreed to surrender the night to exercise a vested option over 801,124 shares that had been granted in September
2002 with an exercise price of 8 75p per share and were required to be exercised within 7 years of the grant A taxable compensatlon payment of
£19,211 was paid for this surrender This course of action was agreed on after the Company’s broker advisad that a sale at the time would have a
significant negative effect on the share price due to the size of the transaction, a lack of iquidity and the nature of the sale The Committee was
consulted and agreed that it would be in the best interest of shareholders as a whole to allow the share options to lapse and to make the payment
to Nick Woolf in compensation

Remuneration of Non-Executlve Directors
The fees paid to Non-Executive Directors (and prior to July 2008 to the Chairman) are determined by the Board Non-Executive Directors do not
receive pension contributions or a bonus Non-Executive Directors do not participate in the Company’s share option schemes

The Non-Executive Directors have appointments that are for three years unless terminated by three months’ written netice by either party
Non-Executive Directors’ appointments may be renewed by mutual agreement As recommended by Combined Code provision A 7 2, any term
beyond six years for a Non-Executive Director 15 subject to considered review by the Board Non-Executive directors serving beyond nine years are
subject to renewal for one year at a time, and are submitted for re-election each year at the Annual General Meeting

Directors’ service contracts
It 1s Oxford BioMedica pic's policy that Directors' service contracts should have notice periods of not more than one year and that the contractual
termination payments should not exceed the Director’s current salary, benefits and bonus entitlement for the notice penod

The details of service contracts of those who served as Directors during the year are

Unexpired term at Contractual termination
Contract date 31 December 2009 Notice period payments
Mark Berninger 30 January 2009 NIt 3 months Notice period only
John Dawsan 10 October 2008 NIR 12 months Notice penod only
Professor Alan Kingsman? 20 May 2009 2 years 6 manths 3 months Notice period only
Dr Alex Lewts 3 April 2008 1 year 3 months 3 months Notice penod only
Dr Stuart Naylor 1 July 2008 Nil2 12 months Notice period only
Petar Nolan 1 May 2002 Nil? 12 months Notice period only
Nick Redgers 2 March 2007 2 months 3 months Notice peniod only
Andrew Wood 31 Qctober 1996 Nif? 12 months Notice penod only
Nick Woolf 3 March 2005 NIz 12 months Notice penod only

1 Mark Berninger resigned from the Board on 1 January 2010

2 Executive Directors’ contracts are for an imtial term of 12 months and thereafter are subject to 12 months notice

3 In addition to his appointment as Chairman, Professor Alan Kingsman entered into a consultancy agreement with the Group, commencing 1 July
2009 for an imitial peniod of 2 years
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ remuneration *
Detalls of individual Directors’ emaoluments for the year are as follows

Compensation
Salary and Annual for loss Other 2009 total 2009 2008 total 12008
Name of Director fees Bonus Benefits of office payments emoluments pension emoluments pension
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Chairman
Professor Alan Kingsman? 112,500 30,000 6,073 50,000 372,500 186,073 6,250 223,239 22,034
Dr Peter Johnson? - - - - - - - 587,750 -
Executive
John Dawson 330,000 158,400 3,204 - - 491,604 33,000 123,944 5,500
John Dawson one-off
share-settled bonus* - 292,373 - - - 292,373 - - -
Dr Stuart Naylor 170,833 84,000 291 - - 257,754 17,083 78,568 7,750
Peter Nolan 173,565 78,104 4,559 - - 256,228 17,357 177,410 17357
Andrew Wood 219,945 98,975 2,986 - - 321,906 21,995 222,057 21,995
Nick Woolfs 174,515 74,521 5,284 - - 254,320 17,743 179,307 17,743
Professor Susan Kingsman® - - - - - - - 64,576 6,363
Dr Michael McDonald - - - - - - - 477,095 -
Non-Executive
Mark Berninger*? 32,402 - - 8,030 - 40,432 - 34,675 -
Dr Alex Lewis 38,947 - - - - 38,947 - 28,3986 -
Nick Rodgers? 48,968 - - - - 48,968 - 52,926 -
1,301,675 816,373 25,027 58,030 37,500 2,188,605 113,428 1,719,943 98,742

Comparative figures for 2008 may not be for a full year 2008 figures for John Dawsan, Dr Stuart Naylor and Dr Alex Lewis are for the pengds from their
dates of appointment to the Board respectively 1 August 2008, 1 July 2008 and 3 Apnl 2008 For 3 directors who left the Board in 2008, the 2008
figures are for the periods from 1 January 2008 up to the dates that they resigned 1 July 2008 for Dr Peter Johnson and Professor Susan Kingsman,
and 28 August 2008 for Dr Michael McDonald

Professor Alan Kingsman was Chief Executive Officer until 1 July 2008, when he became Chairman The amounts reported for 2008 include his
remuneration both as Chief Executive Officer and as Chairman A one-off additional pension contribution of £50,000 was paid In 2009 when the position
of Chairman became non-executive In addiven to the amounts above, Professor Alan Xingsman received consultancy fees of £37,500 (2008 nil)

3 These amounts represent amounts payable to third partles for the services of Non-Executive Directors

4 John Dawson receved a one-off share-based bonus paymentin 2009 The value, grossed-up for income tax and National Insurance, was £252,373

§ In addiion to the amounts above, a compensation payment of £18,211 was paid to Nick Woolf In relation to the surrender of certain share options

6 In addition to the amounts above, Professor Susan Kingsman was paid consultancy fees of £50,000 (2008 £25,000)

7 Mark Berninger resigned fram the Board on 01 January 2010

(]

Retirement benefits are accruing to five Directors (2008 six) under Oxford BioMedica (UK) Limited’s money purchase pension scheme

Directors ‘' interests

Interest in shares

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company at 31 December 2009, together with their interests at 1 January 2009, were as follows

Number of ordinary shares’

31 December 1 January
The Company - ordinary shares of 1p each 2009 2009
John Dawson 1,500,000 -
Professor Alan Kingsman 13,032,590 13,032,590
Dr Alex Lews 100,000 100,000
Or Stuart Naylor 8,921 8,921
Peter Nolan 263,638 263,638
Nick Rodgers 52,000 52,000
Andrew Wood 305,067 305,067
MNick Woolf 195,000 195,000

1 Includes shares held by persons connected with the Director
2 Mark Berninger did not have any interest in the Company’s shares at 1 January or 31 December 2009

There were no changes in the Directors' shareholdings between 31 December 2009 and the date of this report
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The interests of the Directors in options over the ordinary shares of the Company were as follows
Options over ordinary shares of 1p each
Date from
1 January 31 December Exercise which Expiry
2009 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2009 price exerciseable Date
Prof Alan Kingsman® 180,000 - - - 180,000 19 25p 271006 271010
Prof Susan Kingsman'? 150,000 - - - 150,000 1925p 271006 271010
Prof Alan Kingsman' 190,000 - - - 190,000 205p 121007 1210 11
Prof Susan Kingsman'? 155,000 - - - 155,000 205p 121007 121011
Prof Alan Kingsman!' 208,000 - - - 208,000 290p 151208 151212
Prof Susan Kingsman'? 170,000 - - - 170,000 _ 290p 151208 151212
1,053,000 - - - 1,053,000
Dr Michael McDonald? 379,500 - - {379,500} - 4275p 270908 270912
Dr Michael McDonald? 759,000 - - {759,000) - 290p 151208 151212
Dr Michael McDonald? 205,000 - - {209,000) - 310p 060909 060913
1,347,500 - - (1,347,500) -
Dr Stuart Naylor 97,485 - - - 97,485 20 5p 121007 12101
Dr Stuart Naylor! 120,750 - - - 120,750 290p 151208 151212
218,235 - - - 218,235
Peter Nolan® 140,000 - - - 140,000 205p 121007 121011
Peter Nolan' 153,000 - - - 153,000 290p 151208 151212
293,000 - - - 193,000
Andrew Wood’ 175,000 - - - 175,000 205p 121007 12101
Andrew Wood' 193,000 - - - 193,000 290p 151208 151212
Andrew Wood* 172,531 - - - 172,531 290p 210309 210313
Andrew Wood* 172,531 - - - 172,531 310p 06 09 09 060913
Andrew Wood* - 25,000 - (18,402} 6,598 61p 250312 250319
713,062 25,000 - (18,402} 719,660
Nick Woolf® 801,124 - - {801,124) - 875 160905 16 0909
Nick Woolf 132,000 - - - 132,000 19 25p 271006 271010
Nick Woolf* 153,000 - - - 153,000 290p 151208 151212
1,086,124 - - (801,124) 285,000

1 A performance-based condition apphes to these options The options are exercisable only if at the ime of exerase, or for a period of at least 12
months in aggregate in the three years before exercise, the percentage increase in Oxford BioMedica plc’s total shareholder return since the grant of
the option exceeds the percentage increase in the FTSE techMARK mediscience index This target was chosen because the Directors believe that the
FTSE techMARK mediscience index should be a benchmark that reflects the factors bearing on the UK biotechnology sector

2 Dr Susan Kingsman resigned from the Board on 1 July 2008, and became a Senior Scientific Consultant In accordance with the rules of the Oxford
BioMedica 1996 (No 1) Share Option Scheme, the options held at 1 July 2008 remain in place on their original terms Dr Susan Kingsman 15 the wife

of Professor Alan Kingsman

w

Dr Michael McDonald resigned on 28 August 2008 In accordance with the rules of the Oxford BioMedica 1996 (No 1) Share Option Scheme these
options remained in place, but subsequently lapsed on 28 February 2009

4 As part of Company-wide awards of share options to employees of Oxford BioMedica (UK) Limited tn 2006 and 2009, a total of 370,062 options have
been awarded to Sharon Wood, wife of Andrew Wood, who was a Group employee until 31 December 2009 On the termination of Sharon Wood's
employment on 31 December 2009, in accordance with the Option Scheme rules, 6,598 of the options granted on 25 March 2009 vested, and the
rematning 18,402 options lapsed All of Sharon Wood's rematning share options are exeraisable untl 30 June 2010 at which paint if not exercised,

they will lapse

5 InSeptember 2009 Nick Woolf agreed not to exercise these options, and they lapsed on 16 September 2009 A compensation payment of £19,211

was made
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Long-term incentive plan *
Awards have been made to Executive Directors under the LTIP as follows

1 lanuary 31 December Award Vesting

2009 Awarded Vested Lapsed 2009 date Date

John Dawson 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 131008 13101

John Dawson - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 250309 250312
2,500,000 2,500,000 - - 5,000,000

Prof Alan Kingsman 735,533 - - - 735,533 030407 030410

Prof Alan Kingsman 1,291,871 - - - 1,291,871 130308 130311

Prof Susan Kingsman - 899,000 - - 899,000 250309 250312
2,027,404 899,000 - - 2,926,404

Dr Stuart Naylor 215,975 - - - 215,975 030407 030410

Dr Stuart Naylor 311,284 - - - 311,284 130308 130311

Dr Stuart Nayler - 811,000 - - 811,000 250309 250312
527,259 811,000 - - 1,338,259

Peter Nolan 547,955 - - - 547,955 0304 07 030410

Peter Nolan 711,400 - - - 771,400 130308 130311

Peter Nolan - 854,000 - - 854,000 250309 250312
1,319,355 854,000 - - 2,173,355

Andrew Wood 694,379 - - - 694,379 30407 030410

Andrew Wood 977,533 - - - 977,533 130308 130311

Andrew Wood - 1,082,000 - - 1,082,000 250309 250312
1,671,912 1,082,000 - - 2,753,912

Nick Woolf 560,161 - - - 560,161 030407 030410

Nick Woolf 788,582 - - - 788,582 130308 130311

Nick Woolf - 873,000 - - 873,000 250309 250312
1,348,743 873,000 - - 2,221,743

1 Awards made under the LTIP are nil-cost share options

2 The performance condition for these awards compares the Company’s TSR to the TSR of a chosen group of healthcare and biotechnology companies
over a three year period A median ranking must be achieved before any part of the award vests {25% of the award) and an upper quartile ranking
must be achleved for the award to vest In full

The Company has reviewed the performance conditions that apply to the LTIP awards in order to estimate the extent to which the awards might vest
Assuming that relative share price performance in the comparator groups remains consistent with performance up to 31 December 2009, the Directors
estimate that the LTIP awards would vest as follows

= Award made on 3 April 2007 less than median performance — none of this award would vest

+ Award made on 17 March 2008 less than median performance - none of this award would vest

+ Award made on 13 October 2008 performance ranked at 75th percentile - all of this award would vest

+ Award made on 25 March 2009 performance ranked at 85th percentile - all of this award would vest

The market value of ordinary shares as at 31 Decernber 2009 was 11 25p (31 December 2008 6 63p} The market value of ordinary shares during the year
ranged from § 88p to 17 Op

Except as detailed above, no Directors had interests in shares or share options of the Company or any ather Group company at 31 December 2009 There
have been no changes in the interests of the Directors in ordinary shares of the Company between 31 December 2009 and the date of this report
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Companson of five year total shareholder return

Oxfard BiaMedica plc
FTSE all-share index
FTSE techMARK mediscience Index

The chart shows the value at the end of each year of £100 invested on 31 Decembaer 2004 in Oxford BioMedica 1p ordinary shares (OXB) compared to
the change in the FTSE all-share index and the FTSE techMARK mediscience index over the same penod As we have seen in previous years, the
Company’s share price tends to follow the trends shown by tha benchmark indices, but with significantly greater volatility In 2005, when the market was
generally nsing, the OXB share price rose very strongly The abrupt drop in the OXB share price in the 4th quarter of 2005 reflects the pncing of an OXB
share issue 1n December 2005 Despite this, OXB still outperformed the benchmark indices in 2005 by a wide margin In the second half of 2006 the OXB
share price recovered strongly, and once again significantly outperformed a rising market This cycle reached a peak when we secured a partner for the
development of TroVax in quarter 1 of 2007 However, through the rest of 2007 and 2008, the OXB price followed the established pattern in a falling
market, falling more rapidly than the market On top of this, the abrupt drop In quarter 3 of 2008 was a result of the setback with TRIST, which was
announced on 11 July 2008 The market as a whole made a recovery from quarter 2 of 2009, and as usual the OXB share price rose more rapidly than the
benchmark indices Over the whole of 2009 the OXB share price rose by 70%, compared to a galn in the FTSE all-share Index of 25% and a gain of 29% In
the FTSE techMARK index

The Directors consider that this extreme volatility in share price Is not unique to Oxford BioMedica, but is a feature shared by many high-tech companies
whose valuations are significantly influenced by newsflow, investor sentiment and attitude to risk

In the opimon of the Directors, the FTSE all-share index should be a reasonable index against which the total shareholder return of Oxford BioMedica plc
may be measured over a five-year term, because 1t represents a broad-based, objective measure of investment return from equities The FTSE techMARK

mediscience index, made up of emerging healthcare compantes 1n the early stages of growth, provides a second benchmark that may better reflect the

factors bearing on valuations in the UK biotechnalogy sactor

/

Dr Alex Lewis

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Oxford BioMedica plc

We have audited the financial statements of
Oxtford BioMedica plc for the year ended

31 December 2009 which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Group and Parent Company
Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Company
Statements of Cash Flows, the Group and Parent
Company Statements of Changes in Equity and
the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their
preparation ts applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and, as regards
the Parent Company financial statements, as
apphed in accordance with the provisions of the
Compantes Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of Directors and
auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statement set out on page 43,
the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financal statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur
responsibility is to audit the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, Induding the opinions, has been
prepared for and only for the Company’s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006 and for
no other purpose We do not, in giving these
optnions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report Is shown or iInto whose hands
1t may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An audit invalves obtaining evidence about the
amaounts and disclosures tn the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free
from materral misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of
whaether the accounting poltcies are
appropriate to the Group's and the Parent
Company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the finanaial statements
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Opinion on financial statements
tn our opinion

« the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s and of the
Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 December
2009 and of the Group’s loss and the Group'’s
and Parent Company’s cash flows for the year
then ended,

~ the Group financiat statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union,

+ the Parent Company financial statements
have been properly prepared In accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union
and as applied 1n accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

- the finanaal statements have been prepared
in accerdance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

- the part of the Directors'Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006,

+ the information given In the Directors’Report
for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with
the financial statements, and

« the information given in the Corporate
Governance Statement set out on pages 37
and 38 with respect to internal control and
nsk management systems and about share
capital structures Is consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required
to report to you if, In our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the Parent Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

+ the Parent Company financial statements and
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
speafied by law are not made, or

» we have not recewved all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or

- acorporate governance statement has not
been prepared by the Parent Company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to
review

- the Directors'statemant, set out on page 42,
In relation to going concern, and

= the parts of the Corperate Governance
Statement relating to the company’s
compliance with the nine provisions of the
June 2008 Combined Code specified for our
review

WAET SadsdeJ-

Miles Saunders {Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Reading

9 March 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2009

Appendix

2009 2008
Pre- Exceptional Pre- Exceptional
exceptional items exceptional Items
items {note 5} Total Items (note 5) Total
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 3 9,031 10,089 19,320 18,394 - 18,394
Cost of sales credit/(charge) 7 20 (527) (437) {1,295) - (1,295)
Gross profit 9,121 9,562 18,683 17,099 - 17,099
Research and development costs 7 (14,899) (3,392) (18,291) (22,482) {4,561) (27,043)
Administrative expenses 7 (6,056) {169) (6,225) (3,840) - (3.840)
Other operating income grants receivable 103 - 103 13 - 113
Operating (loss)/profit (11,731) 6,001 (5,730} (9,110) (4,561} (13,671)
Finance income 6 669 - 669 1,662 - 1,662
Finance costs 6 (33) - (33) 24) - (24)
{Loss)/profit before tax {11,095) 6,001 (5,094} (7,472) (4,561 {12,033)
Taxation 8 1,579 - 1,579 1,992 - 1,992
{Loss)/profit for the year 25 (9,516) 6,001 (3,515) (5,480) (4,561} (10,041}
Other comprehensive income
Exchange adjustments 16 - 16 (67) - (67)
Total recognlsed comprehensive
{expense)/income for the year {9,500) 65,001 (3.499) {5,547 (4,561) (10,108)
Basic loss and diluted loss per ordinary share 9 (176p) 111p (0 65p) (102p) {0 85p) {187p)

The results for the years above are derived entirely from continuing operations

There is no difference between the loss before tax and the loss for the years stated above, and their historical cost equivalents
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Balance Sheets

as at 31 December 2009

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 11 11,119 11,119 - -
Praperty, plant and equipment 12 631 688 - -
Financial assets Investments in subsidianes 13 - - 60,953 35,67
11,750 11,807 60,953 35,671
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 14 4,628 7,305 2
Current tax assets 2,269 2,119 - -
Financial assets Avatlable for sale investments i5 18,500 13,750 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 15 6,802 8,141 1 -
32,199 31,315 3 3
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 16 7,669 10,558 73 52
Deferred income 17 4,741 4,486 - -
Provisions 18 898 88 - -
13,308 15,132 73 52
Net current assets/(habihities) 18,891 16,183 {70} (49)
Non-current habilities
Other non-current llabilities 102 131 - -
Deferred tncome 17 9,024 3,957 - -
Provisions 18 539 631 - -
9,665 4,719 - -
Net assets 20,976 23,271 60,883 35622
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 2i 5,412 5,373 5412 5,373
Share premlum 24 110,043 109,686 110,043 109,686
Merger reserve 26 14,310 14,310 13,599 13,599
Other reserves 26 {676) (692) 3,329 2,521
Retained losses 25 (108,113) (105,406} {71,500) (95,557)
Total equity 20,976 23,271 60,883 35,622

The Company's registered number 15 3252665

The financial statements on pages 51 to 81 were approved by the Board of Directors on 9 March 2010 and were signed on its behalf by

H

Johh Daws
Chigf Executive Officer
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Annual Report & Accounts 2009




introduction t Chairman’s Statement Business Review | Corporate Information Financlal Statements :Appendhr
| —
E ! Statements of Cash Flows
Statements of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2009
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated by/(used in) operations 27 904 {20,610) {138) (173)
Net interest received 976 2,162 - -
Tax credit receved 1,500 2,551 - -
Overseas tax paid 67 74) - -
Net cash generated by/{used In) operating activities 3,313 (15,971) (136) (173)
Cash flows from investing activities
Loan to subsidiary - - {259) {438)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1 10 - -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (247) (162) - -
Purchases of intangible assets (41) (766) - -
Net (purchase)/maturity of available for sale investments (4,750) 13,435 - -
Net cash (used in}/generated by investing activities (5,037) 12,517 (259) (438)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary share capital 396 611 396 611
Net cash generated by financing activities 396 611 396 611
Net (decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents {1,328) (2,843) 1 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 814 10,962 - -
Effect of exchange rate changes (11 22 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 15 6,802 8,141 1 -
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2009

Share Share Merger Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserves losses Total

Group Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2008 5,347 109,101 14,310 {625) (96,201} 31,032
Year ended 31 December 2008
Exchange adjustments - - - (67) - 67)
Loss for the year - - - - (10,041} (10,041)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - 67 (10,041) (10,108)
Transactions with owners
Share options

Proceeds from shares i1ssued 21,24 2 50 - - - 52

Value of employee services 23 - - - - 836 836
Issue of shares exciuding options 21,24 24 545 - - - 569
Costs of share Issues 24 - (10} - - - (10}
At 21 December 2008 5,373 109,686 14,310 {692) {105,4086) 23,271
Year ended 31 December 2009
Exchange adjustments - - - 16 - 16
Loss for the year - - - - (3,515) (3,515)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - 16 (3,515) {3,499)
Transactions with owners:
Share options

Proceeds from shares issued 21,24 13 - - - 15

Value of employee services 23 - - - - 808 808
Issue of shares excluding options 21,24 37 308 - - - 345
Net credit for shares issue costs 24 - 36 - - - 36
At31 December 2009 5412 110,043 14,310 (676) (108,113) 20,976

Share Share Merger Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total

Company Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2008 5,347 109,101 13,599 1,685 (10,340) 118,392
Year ended 31 December 2008
Loss for the year - - - - {85,217) (85,217)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - - (85,217) (85.217)
Transactions with owners
Share options

Proceeds from shares 1ssued 21,24 2 S0 - - - 52

Creditin relation to

employee share schemes 26 - - - 836 - 836
Issue of shares excluding options 21,24 24 545 - - - 569
Costs of share 1ssues 24 - (10) - - - (10)
At 31 December 2008 5,373 109,686 13,599 2,521 (95,557) 35,622
Year ended 31 December 2009
Profit for the year - - - - 24,057 24,057
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 24,057 24,057
Transactions with owners
Share options

Proceeds from shares issued 21,24 2 13 - - - 15

Creditin relation to

employee share schemes 26 - - - 808 - 808
Issue of shares excluding options 21,24 37 308 - - - 345
Net credit for share issue costs 24 - 36 - - - 36
At 31 December 2009 5412 110,043 13.599 3,329 {71,500) 60,883
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2009

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies have been consistently ‘
apphed to all the financaial years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finanoal Reparting Standards (IFRS’) as adopted by the European Union
and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {'IFRIC) Interpretations endorsed by the European Union and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention
as modified by revaluation of avallable for sale investments As more fully explained in the Directors' report on page 42 the going concern basis has been
adopted in prepaning the financial statements

|

|

Accounting developments ‘
{a) Standards, amendments and interpretations mandatory 1 2009

The following new standards, amendmenits to standards or interpretations are mandatory for the first ime for the financial year beginning 1 January 2009

« IFRS 8,'Operating segments’ (effective 1 January 2009) IFRS 8 replaces |AS 14,'Segment reporting’ It requires a‘management approach’ under which

segment information s presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes Management considers that there is only one

reportable segment biotechnology research and development Cperating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Senior Management

Group that makes strategic decisions Assets, habilities and overheads are allocated to this one segment

1AS 1 {revised),'Presentation of financial statements’ (effective 1 January 2009) The revised standard prohibits the presentation of items of Income

and expenses (that 1s‘non-owner changes In equity’) in the statement of changes in equity, requinng 'non-owner changes in equity’to be presented

separately from owner changes In equity All ‘non-owner changes in equity’ are required to be shown in a performance statement Entities can

choose whether to present one performance statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or two statements (the income statement and

statement of comprehensive Income) The Group has elected to present a single statement of comprehensive income These financial statements

have been prepared under the revised disclosure requirements

+ IFRS 2 (amendment),’Share-based payment’(effective 1 January 2009} IFRS 2 (amendment) deals with vesting conditions and cancellations It
clarifies that vesting conditions are either service or performance conditions only Other features of a share-based payment would need to be
included in the grant date fair value calculauon for transactions with employees and others providing similar services, they would not impact the
number of awards expected 1o vest or valuation thereof subsequent to grant date All cancellations, whether by the entity or by other parties,
should receive the same accounting treatment The amendment does not have a matenal impact on the Group's financial statements

+ IFRS 7 (amendment), Financial instruments disclosures’ (effective 1 January 2009) This requires all financial instruments that are measured at fair
value in the balance sheet to be classified into a three-level fair value hierarchy The amendments are designed to assist understanding of the
determination of fair value measurements and are provided in Note 19

+ 1AS 32 (amendment), Financial instruments Presentation’(effective 1 fanuary 2009) Puttable financial instruments and obligations ansing on
liquidation require certain instruments to be classified as equity puttable finanaal instruments The amendment does not have a2 material impact
on the Group's financial statements

{b} Standards, amendments and interpretations mandatory in 2009 but not relevant

The following amendments and Interpretations to published standards are effective for accounting pertods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 but
are not relevant to the Group's operations

+ 1AS 16 (amendment), Property. plant and equipment’ {effective 1 January 2009) Whera entities routinely sell items of property, plant and equipment
that have been held for rental to others, they shall
— transfer such assets to inventories at thelr carrying amount when they cease to be rented and become held for sale
—- recognise the income on disposal of such assets in revenue in accordance with 1AS 18, Revenue
— classify cash flows upon the purchase and disposal of such assets within ‘operating activities' in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

- |AS 23 (amendment),’'Borrowing costs’ (effective 1 January 2009) This removes the option of immediately recognising as an expense those
borrowing costs which relate to assets that take a substantial penod of time to prepare for their Intended use

+ 1AS 39 and IFRIC 9 (amendments) regarding embedded denvatives (effective 1 July 2008) IFRIC 9,'Financial instruments’ introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets, simplifying the mixed measurement mode! currently applied under 1AS 39,
‘Financial instruments recogniticn and measurement, by defining two primary measurement categories for financial assets amortised cost and falr [
value The basis of classification depends on the entity’s businass model and the contractual cash fiow characteristics of the financial asset The new
standard also reguires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the many different impairment methods in 1AS 39

+ [FRIC 13,"Customer loyalty programmes’ (effective 1 July 2008 but EU-endorsed for use 1 January 2009) provides guidance on the treatment of
customer loyalty programmes An entity shall account for award credits which are granted as part of customer loyalty programmes as separately
identifiable components of a sales transaction The fair value of the consideration receved or receivable in respect of the Initial sale shall be
allocated between the award credits and other companents of the sale

+ IFRIC 14,1A5 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and therr interactton’ (effective 1 July 2008 but EU-endorsed
for use 1 January 2009) This applles in the imited circumstances when an entity is subject to minimum funding requirements and makes an early
payment of contributions to cover those requirements

- IFRIC 15,'Agreements for the construction of real estate’ (effective 1 January 2009 but EU-endorsed for use 1 January 2010) addresses the
accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(c} Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010 or later pericds, but the Group has not adopted them early

« 1AS 39 (amendment),'Financial instruments Recognition and measurement’ (effective 1 July 2009) has been amended to be consistent with IFRS
8, Operating segments, which requires disclosure for segments to be based on information reported to the chief operating decision-maker

« {FRIC 17, 'Distnbutions of non-cash assets to owners’ (effective 1 July 2009) applies to the entity making the distnibution, not to the recipient,
when non-cash assets are distributed to owners or when the owner Is given a choice of taking cash in lieu of the non-cash assets In particular,a
dividend payable should be recognised when the dividend is appropriately authorised and Is no longer at the discretion of the entity and should
be measured at the fair value of the net assets to be distnbuted

* IFRIC 18, Transfer of assets from customers’ {effective 1 July 2009) clanfies the requirements for agreements in which an entity recerves from a
customer an item of property, plant, and equipment that the entity must then use either to connect the customer to a network or to provide the
customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services When the item of property, plant and equipment transferred from a customer
meets the definition of an asset under the IASB Framework from the perspactive of the recipient, the recipient must recognise the asset in its
financial statements

{d) Interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet mandatory and not relevant for the Group’s operations

The following interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010 or later peniods but are not relevant for the Group's operations

= 145 27 (revised),'Consolidated and separate financial statements; and IFRS 1 {revised), First time adoption’ (both effective 1 July 2009}, allow first-
time adopters to use a deemead cost of either fair value or the carrying amount under previous accounting practice to measure the inltral cost of
investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates in the separate financial statements The amendment also removes the
definition of the cost method from IAS 27 and replaces it with 2 requirement to present dividends as income in the separate financial statements
of the investor The revised standard also specifies the accounting where there 1s no change In control or control Is lost Where there Is a change In
control, the effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests are recorded in equity and these transactions will ne longer result in goodwill
or gains and losses Any remaining interest in the entity 15 re-measured to fair value and a gain or loss 1s recognised in profit or boss

= IFRS 3 (revised},'Business combinations’ (effective 1 July 2009) requires that all payments to purchase a business are recorded at fair value at the
acquisition date, with contingent payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the Income Statement There 1s a choice on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interast in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acqurree’s net assets All acquisition-related costs should be expensed

+ IFRIC 12,’Service concession arrangements’ (effective 30 March 2009) apples to contractual arrangements whereby a private sector operator
participates In the development, financing, operatton and maintenance of infrastructure for public sector services, for example, under private
finance iitiative {PF1) contracts Under these arrangernents, assets are assessed as either intangible assets or finance recevables

+ IFRIC 16,’'Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation’ (effective 1 October 2008 but EU-endorsed for use 1 July 200%) provides guidance on
net investment hedging, Including
— which foreign currency risks qualify for hedge accounting and the amount that may be designated,
- where within the Group the hedging instrument may be held, and
= the amount which is reclassified to the Income Statement upon disposal of the hedged foreign operation

Use of estimates and assumptions

The preparation of finanaal statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain cntical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period Estimates and judgements are continually made and are based on histonic expenence and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable in the circumstances

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Where the Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, the resulting accounting estimates will seldom exactly match actual
results Due to the amounts [nvolved, the estimates and assumptions regarding revenue recognition, costs accrued for clinical trials and impatrment
of intangible assets have the greatest risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities

In 2009 the Group recewed an upfront non-refundable payment of US$26 million (£16,641,000) from sanofi-aventis under the ocular product
collaboratrion This 15 being recognised as revenue on a straight Iine basis over 42 to 51 months (the expected duration of the imibial stage of the
collaboratton for each of the four products) Revenue of £3,110,000 was recognised under this collaboration in 2009, with the remaining
£13,531,000 classified as deferred income If the revenue recognition periods had been six months longer, the amount of revenue recognised In
2009 would have been reduced by £383,000 and the amount of deferred Income increased by the same amount Had the revenue recognition
period been six months less, the amount of revenue recognised in 2009 would have increased by £508,000

For chinical tnal costs the Group uses a percentage-of-completion method to accrue for such costs This method requires the Group to estimate the
services performed by contractors to date as a proportion of total services to be performed If the accruals calculated using this method were
over/under estimated by 5% with all other variables held constant there would have been an increase/decrease in research and development costs
of £127,000 (2008 £193,000)
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The Group has significant intangible assets ansing from purchases of intellectual property nghts and from the acquisition of Oxocon Therapeutics Limited in
2007 Under IFRS, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful fife or which are not yet available for use are tested annually for Impairment The
impairment analysis i1s principally based on estimated discounted future cash flows Actual outcomes could vary significantly from such estimates of
discounted future cash flows, due to the highly sensitive assumptions used The determination of the assumptions Is subjective and requires the exercise of
considerable judgement Any changes In key assumptions about the Group's business and prospects or changes in market conditicns could materially
affect the amount of impairment

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Group balance sheet and the Group statement of cash flows include the accounts of the

Company and its subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 December Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date at which control Is transferred to the
Group

Subsidianes are entittes that are directly or indirectly controlled by the Group Control exists where the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities In assessing control, potential voting nghts that are currently exercisable
or convertible are taken into account

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group The cost of an acquisition 1s measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments tssued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attnbutable to
the acquisition Idenufiable assets acquired and habilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured imitially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring accounting policies used into line with those of the Group

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised galns on transactions between group companies are eliminated Unrealised losses are also
elimmated but considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred Accounting policies of subsidianies have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

The Group and Company have elected not to apply IFRS 3 'Business comblnations’ retrospectively to business combinations which took place prior to
1 January 2004, namely the acquisition in 1996 of 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Oxford BioMedica (UK) Limited that has been accounted for by
the merger accounting method

Joint ventures
Entities that are jointly controlled are consolidated using the proportionate consolidation method on a hine by line basis which combine’s the Group's

assets, habilities, iIncome and expenses with the Group’s share of assets, habilities, income and expenses of the joint venture in which the Group has an
interest

Revenue
The Group generates revenue from product and technology licence transactions and from funded research and development programmes

Product licence transactions typically have an initial upfrant non-refundable payment on execution of the hicence, and the potential for further
payments conditional on achieving specific milestones, plus royalties on product sales Technology licence transactions typically have an inrial
upfront non-refundable payment on execution of the licence and the potential for further annual maintenance payments for the term specified in the
hcence Where the initial fee paid is non-refundable and there are no ongoing commitments from the Group and the licence has no fixed end date, the
Group recognises the element received up front as a payment In consideration of the granting of the licence on execution of the contract Amounts
recervable in respect of milestone payments are recognised as revenue when the specific conditions stipulated in the licence agreement have been
met Payments linked to “success”such as regulatory filing or approval, achievement of specified sales volumes, are recognised in full when the
relevant event has occurrad Maintenance fees within the contracts are spread over the penod to which they relate, usually a year Otherwise, amounts
recevable are recognised in the penod in which related costs are Incurred, or over the estimated period to completion of the relevant phase of
development or associated chinical trials

Research and development funding is recognised as revenue over a period that corresponds with the performance of the funded research and
development services Where the Group incurs pass-through expenses in relation to collaborative partners’ own research and development
programmaes, such costs are included In the Group's financial statements as operating expenses net of collaborator reimbursement, and the
relmbursement received does not form part of the Group's revenue

Amounts recognised exclude value added tax Differences between cash received and amounts recogmised are included as deferred revenue where
cash received exceeds revenue recognised and as accrued ravenue where revenue has yet to be billed to the customer

Cost of sales

The Group's products and technologies include technology elements that are licensed from third parties Cost of sales is the royalty ansing on such
third party licenses Where royalty due on revenue has not been paid it 1s included in accruals Where revenue 1s spread over a number of accounting
periods, the royalty attributable to the deferred revenue 1s included in prepayments Pass-through costs reimbursed by collaborative partners do not
form part of cost of sales
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Segmental reporting

The Group has one single business segment based upon its proprietary technology, eperated out of two geographical locations — Oxford (UK),
which is the principal operating site, generating all the revenue, and San Diego (USA), which provides intellectual property management and
business development services to the UK subsidiary In prior years the Group also carned out laboratory-based research and development in San
Diego On termination of laboratory-based activities in 5an Drego the US subsidiary relocated to smaller premises The redundant laboratory
premises were sub-let to offset rental costs

Clinical trlal expenses

Where advances are made to clincal tnal sites, or stocks of materials for use of clinical trials are purchased and stored, the relevant costs are included
in trade and other recevables as prepaid dinical tnial expenses As described on page 56 under‘cnitical accounting estimates and assumptions;
expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive iIncome as clinical tral services are carned out, or ckinical tnal matenals are used

Exceptional items

Exceptional items represent significant items of income and expense which due to their nature or the expected infrequency of the events giving
nse to them, are presented separately on the face of the statement of comprehensive income to give a better understanding to shareholders of the
elements of financial performance in the period, so as to facilitate comparison with pnior penods and to better assess trends in financial
performance Exceptional items mclude non-recurring reorgamisation costs, costs to complete onerous or futile contracts, and intangible asset
Impairments

Financial Instruments

The Group and Company’s financial instruments compnse Investments in subsidianes and joint ventures, cash and cash equivalents, together with
avallable for sale investments and raceivables and payables arising directly from operations Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and
short term deposits which have an original matunty of three months or less and are readily convertible into known amounts of cash Available-for-
sale financial assets are non-dervatives that are either designated in this category or not classified In any of the other categories They are included
as non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investments within 12 months of the financial year end Bank deposits with
maturity of more than three months at the date of inception are included n the classification ‘financial assets available for sale investments; and are
carried at theur historic purchase price unless there 1s objective evidence of impairment, in which case they are wntten down to fair value Such
assets are classified as current where management intend to dispose of the asset within twelve months of the financial year end Financial
instruments are valued at fair valure, subject to review for impatrment at the finanaial year end Charges or credits for impairment are passed
through the statement of comprehensive income

Other than short term currency options, the Group does not enter into derivative transactions, and it 1s the Group's palicy not to undertake any
trading in financial instruments The Group does not have any committed borrowing facilities, as its cash, cash equivalents and available for sale
investments are sufficient to finance its current operations Cash balances are mainly held on short and medium term deposits with financial
mstitutions with a credit rating of at least A, in ine with the Group’s policy to minimise the risk of loss The main risks associated with the Group’s
financial instruments relate to Interest rate risk and foreign currency risk The Group’s policy in relation to Interest rate risk s to monitor short and
medium term interest rates and to place cash on deposit for periods that optimise the amount of interest earned while maintaining access to
sufficient funds to meet day to day cash requirements In relation to foreign currency risk, the Group's policy is to hold the majonty of its funds in
Sterling, and to use short term currency options and interest-bearing forergn currency deposits to manage short term fluctuations in exchange
rates No other hedging of foreign currency cash flows is undertaken

Leases

Assets acquired under leases are reviewed to see if they are operating leases or finance leases, based on the following assumptions
« If the leases transfer ownership of the assets at the end of the lease

» Ifthey have a bargain purchase option

+ Ifthe lease term 1s for the major part of the economic life of the asset

» Ifthe leased assets are specialised for the lease only

No leases have been classified as finance leases Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at their histonical purchase cost, together with any incidental expenses of acquisition, less depreciation

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values on a straight line basis
over the expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

%
Short leasehold improvements 20 or the remaining lease term if shorter
Computer equipment 33
Office and laboratory equipment, fixtures and fittings 20

The assets’residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end
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Intangible assets

Intangible fixed assets, relating to intellectual property rights acquired through licensing or assigning patents and know-how are carried at histonc
cost, less accumulated amortisation and impairments, where the useful economic life of the asset Is finite and the asset will probably generate
economl¢ benefits exceeding costs Where a finite useful life of the acquired intangible asset cannot be determined, the asset 1s tested annually for
impairment Amortisation would commence when products underpinned by the intellectual property rights became avallable for commercial use
Amortisation would be calculated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the remaining useful life of the intellectual property or the estimated
sales life of the products No amortisation has been charged to date, as the products underpinned by the intellectual property nghts are not yet
avaiiable for commercal use

Expenditure on product development is capitahised as an intangible asset and amortised over the expected useful economic life of the product
concerned Capitalisation commences from the pelnt at which technical feasibility and commercial viabllity of the product can be demonstrated and
the Group 15 satisfied that it 1s probable that future economic benefits will result from the product once completed Capitalisation ceases when the
product receives regulatory approval for launch No such costs have been capitalised to date

intellectual property rights and inteltectual property rnights generated internally by the Group,is charged to the statement of comprehensive income
as incurred Inteflectual property and in-process research and development from acquisitions are recognised as intangible assets at fair value Any
residual excess of consideration over the fair value of net assets 1n an acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill in the financial statements

Expenditure on research and development actrvities that do not meet the above cnitera, including ongoing costs associated with acquired }
i

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying value of non-financial assets with indefinite lives 1s reviewed annually for Impairment and provision made where appropriate Charges or
credits for impairment are passed through the statement of comprehensive income An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds Its recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use
For the purposes of assessing Impairments, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows or cash-
generating units

Financial assets: investments
Financial assets investments of the Group are carried at cost less any provision made for impairment

Trade receivables

Trade recevables are recogmised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment A provision for impairment of trade recevables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the orniginal terms of the recevables

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks, and other short term highly hquid investments with onginal
maturitles of three months or less Bank deposits with onginal maturities between three months and twelve months are included In current assets and
are classified as available for sale financial assets

Provisions

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligations The increase in the provision due to the passage of
fime is recognised as interest expense

When leasehold propertles become redundant or excess space arises in those properties, the Group provides for all costs to the end of the lease or the
anticipated date of surrender of the lease, net of anticipated income Onerous lease provisions are discounted using the UK government zero-coupon
bond yield applicable to the term of the cashflows

The Group recognises dilapidations provisions when property leases have a legal or constructive obligation to reinstate any alterations or to make
good dilapidations at the end of the lease, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated Dilapidations provisions are discounted using the UK government zero-coupon bond yield applicable to the remaining term
of the relevant leases

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Government and other grants

Income from Government and other grants 1s recognised over the penod necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic basis This grant income 1s included as other operating income within the statement of comprehensive income, and the
related costs are included within research and development costs and administrative expenses Where the purchase of property, plant and eguipment
15 supported by a grant, the relevant asset 15 included in the balance sheet at its full purchase price, and grant income Is recogrused over the useful life
of the asset The difference between grant income recevable and income recegnised 15 included 1n accruals
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Rental income
Rental income from the Group’s redundant former research and development facility in San Diego, USA is offset In the statement of comprehensive
Income agaimst the rent payable under the head lease

Employee benefit costs
The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for Its Directors and employees The assets of the scheme are held In independently
admunistered funds The pension cost charge recognised in the pernod represents amounts payable by the Group to the scheme

Share based payment

Equity settled share based payments under which the Group receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options)
are measured at fair value at the date of grant and expensed on a straight-line basis aver the vesting period of the award Options issued on the
same date are valued In batches where the valuation model assumptions are the same At each finanaial year end, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of options in each batch that are expected to become exercisable At the end of the vesting penod for each batch of options the
cumulative charge for share-based payment reflects the actual options that have vested, with no charge for those options which were forfeit prior
to vesting The financial consequances of revisions to the original estimates, If any, are recognised In the current year statement of comprehensive
income either as an addition to or a deduction from the charge for share-based payment, with a corresponding adjustment to equity

The fair value of share options 1s measured using a Black-Scholes option pricing model Where complex market performance criteria exist,a Monte
Carlo model has been used to establish the fair value on grant When share options are exercised the proceeds received are credited to share capital
{neminal value) and share premlum

Other employee benefits
The expected cost of compensated short term absence (e g holidays) is recogrised when employees render services that increase their entitlement
Accrual 1s made for holidays earned but not taken, and prepayments recognised for holidays taken in excess of days earned

Foreign currency translation

Items included In the finanaal statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the ‘functicnal currency’) The consolidated financial statements are presented In Sterling, which is the Company's
functtonal and the Group's presentational currency

Monetary assets and habilities in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
financial year Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction Foreign exchange differences are taken to the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they anse

Assets and habilities of the Company’s US subsidiary are translated to Sterling at the yaar-end exchange rate, whilst its statements of income and
cash flows are translated at monthly average rates Redundant assets at the US subsidiary’s former laboratones have been wnitten down to a book
value of zerc and have no impact on present or future exchange differences Translation differences that arise are taken directly to a currency
translation account within equity

Taxatlon Including deferred Income tax
The charge/credit for current tax s based on the results for the year, adjusted for items which are non-assessable or disallowed It1s calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the finanaial year end

Deferred income tax Is accounted for using the liability method in respect of temporary differences ansing from differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities n the finanaal statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit In principle,
deferred income tax liabilities are recogrvsed for all taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax liabilitles are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in jeint ventures, except where the Group and Company are able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it1s probable that the '
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax is calculated at the average tax rates that are expected to apply to the penod when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive income, except when it refates to 1tems credited or charged
diractly to equity, in which case the deferred income tax is also dealt with In equity
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2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's relatively simple structure, prnincipally operating in the United Kingdom, and the lack of debt financing reduces the range of financial nisks
to which it 1s exposed Monitoning of financial risk 1s part of the Board's ongoing risk management, the effectiveness of which s reviewed annually The
Group's agreed policies are kmplemented by the Chief Financial Officer, who submits reports at each Board meeting Other than occasional use of short
term currency options, the Group does not use financial dervatives, and it is the Group's policy not to undertake any trading in financal instruments

(o) Foretgn exchange nsk

At the current time,the Group’s revenues are mostly recervable in United States Dollars, and certain of its expenditures are payable in Euros and

US Dollars The majonty of operating costs are denominated in Sterling The Greup’s ongoing R&D funding from sanofi-avents 1s receivable in

US Dollars This presents a possible source of foreign exchange risk in respect of future receipts Funds received from sanofi-aventis to date have been
converted to Sterling, so they no longer represent a foreign exchange risk The Group uses short term currency purchase options and interest-bearing
deposits in Euros and US Dollars to manage short term fluctuations in exchange rates

(b} Interest rate risk

The Group does not have any committed borrowing facilities, as its cash balances are sufficient to finance its current operations The Group's policy 1s
to maximise interest recervable on deposits, subject to maintaining access to sufficient hquid funds to meet day to day operational requirements, and
preserving the security of invested funds To date, interest received on bank deposits has made a significant contribution to providing funding for the
Group Interest recelvable on bank deposits in 2009 was £642,000 (2008 £1,661,000) Interest rates across the market fell dramatically at the end of
2008, and this 15 raflected in much lower bank interest In 2009

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower in 2009, the impact on net loss in 2009 would have been a decrease/increase of £236,000
(2008 £289,000) due to changes In the amount of interest receivable

{c) Credit risks
The Group's policy Is to place funds with financial institutions rated at least A and to distribute deposits between several banks

{d} Cash flow and hquidity nsk

At present the Group’s operations are funded from its cash and short-term Investments The maturity profile of investments 1s structured to ensure
that suffictent hquid funds are available to meet planned operating requirements To date the Group's funding has been provided mainly by the i1ssue
of shares and from commercial collaborations, including the TroVax and ocular collaborations with sanofi-aventis Future working capital 1s expected
to be provided by commercial collaborations Such collaborations typically prowvide funding from milestone-based payments, which are significant in
size but infrequent There can be no certainty that this source of funding will be sufficient, and that additional funding from other sources, including
the 1ssue of further shares, will not be required In planning the Group's activities and its finanaal resources, the Directors take account of the
probability recerving income from commercial collaborations, and of the likely availability of other sources of funding The higher degree of risk-
aversion that we continue to see in equity capital markets makes the issue of new share capital challenging in the near term The Group's spending
plans have been set to achieve a balance between adding value to the key development programmes while seeking to maximise the operating
window provided by current funds The Directors’ current financial projections provide a reasonable basis from which they have concluded that the
Group’s financial resources are sufficient for the foreseeable future, and that there is presently no matertal cash flow or iguidity risk.

(e} Pricing risk
Currently revenue denves from collaboration milestones and reimbursement of funded research and development, which are not sensitive to pricing risk.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
There were ne derivatives at 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008, and hedge accounting has not been used

Fair value estimates
The fair value of short term deposits with a maturity of one year or less Is assumed to be the book value
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3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Senior Management Group (SMG) The SMG reviews the Group's internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources Management has determined the operating segments based on Internal management reports

The SMG considers that the business comprises a single activity, which is biotechnology research and development The SMG reviews the Group's
profit or loss and its cash fiows, assets and liabilities on a whole-company basis In carrying out these reviews, the SMG censiders all matenial items of
Income and expenditures that are directly attributable to Individual development programmes The internal management reports do net allocate
assets and liabilities or shared overheads to indvidual products, as the Group does not consider It meaningful,in the present development phase, to
attempt to attribute profits or losses to individual products

Based on the above considerations, there 1s considered to be one reportable segment biotechnology research and development
Internal and external reporting 1s on a consolidated basts, with purchases and sales between subsidiaries elminated on consolidation Therefore the
segment financial nformatron is the same as that set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome, the consolidated balance sheet,

the consoldated statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity

The Group’s revenue derives wholly from assets located in the United Kingdom Analysed by location of customers, revenue derives from the
European Umion and the United States of Amenca

2009 2008
Revenue by customer location £000 £000
Europe 18,991 18,141
United States of Amernica 129 253
Total revenue 19,120 18,394

Revenues attributable to the collaborations with sanofi-aventis were £18,922,000 (2008 £18,064,000)
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4 EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS
The average monthly number of persons (including Executive Directors) employed by the Group during the year was

2009 2008
By activity Number Number
Office and management 1" 12
Research and development 58 73
Total 69 85

2009 2008
Employee benefit costs £000 £000
Wages and salanes 4,716 4,289
Sodial security costs 634 369
Penston costs (note 28} 295 302
Share based payments (note 23) 808 836
Compensation for loss of office 149 350
Total employee benefit costs 6,602 6,146

2009 2008
Key management compensation £000 £000
Salaries and short term employee benefits 1,754 1,708
Pension costs 125 109
Share based payments 656 496
Compensation for loss of office 50 291
Total 2,585 2,604

The key management figures above include Executive and Non-Executive Directors Further information about the remuneration of individual

Directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 44 to 49, which forms part of these financlal statements

The Company had no employees during the year (2008 nil)
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5 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional items represent significant items of income or expense which due to their nature or the expected infrequency of the events giving rise to
them, are presented separately on the face of the statement of comprehensive iIncome to give a better understanding to shareholders of the elements
of financial performance in the year, so as to facilitate companson with prior periods and to better assess trends in financial performance

TroVax TroVax 31 December 31 December

collaboration clinical trals 2009 2008

Group £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 10,089 - 10,089 -
Cost of sales {(527) - {527) -
Research and development costs {676) (2,716) {3,392) (4,561)
Administrative expenses {(169) - {169) -
Exceptional operating profit/{loss} 8,717 {2,716) 6,001 (4,561}

On 28 Aprll 2009 the Group's development partner, sanofi-aventis, terminated the TroVax collaboration and returned the worldwide nghts relating to
TroVax In connection with the termination, sanofi-aventis made payments totalling US$17,425,000 (£11,599,000), of which US$6,500,000 (£4,372,000)
was a termination fee and US$10,925,000 (£7,227,000) was reimbursement of TroVax development expenditure incurrad by the Group for the planned
sancfi-aventis chnical development programme, treated as a pass-through cost to sanofi-aventis Exceplional expenses in 2009 are net of
reimbursement received from sanofi-aventis

The Group has classified the following as exceptional items in connection with the sanofi-aventis collaboration the termination fee of £4,372,000, the
remaining deferred TroVax income at the date of termmation (£5,717,000), the write-off of prepaid cost of sales (royalty) of £527,000 attributable to
the deferred income, and the write-off of £845,000 (R&D costs £676,000, administrative expenses £169,000) that, had the ceollaboration continued,
were expected to be reimbursed by sanofi-aventis

On 3 June 2009 the FDA held a type C meeting with Oxford BioMedica to discuss the TRIST clinical trial and the future development of TroVax The
FDA supported Oxford BioMedica's proposal to pursue chnical development of TroVax in metastatic disease, including colorectal, ovarian, hormone
refractory prostate cancer, and triple-negative breast cancer, prior to further tnals in renal cancer Proof of concept from new Phase Il studies in these
indications will be key to the successful development of TroVax in the future Data from the TRIST study in renal cancer will support the development
of TroVax, but will not be a pivotal component It is probable that preof of concept from Phase Il studies in metastatic disease will be required prior to
commencing clinical tnals in adjuvant settings

The Group has classified £2,716,000 as exceptional R&D costs in connection with the FDA review of TroVax development, comprising a provision of
£2,202,000 for the estimated costs to close out the TRIST study in renal cancer, and the wnte-off of £514,000 prepaid clinical tial expenses in respect
of the planned Quasar chnical tnal in adjuvant colorectal cancer

Exceptional costs of £4,561,000 in the year ended 31 Decernber 2008 resulted from impairment of intangible assets (in-process R&D and intellectual
property rights)

6 FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE

2009 2008
Group £000 £000
Finance income:
Bank interest receivable 642 1,661
Other interest receivable 27 1
Total finance income 669 1,662
Finance expense
Unwinding of discount in provisions {note 18} (10) {(19)
Other interest payable (23) (5
Total finance expense (33) (24)
Net finance income &36 1,638
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000
Excluding exceptional items:
Cost of sales (royalties payable) {90) 1,295 - -
Employee benefit costs (note 4) 6,602 6,146 - -
Consumables used 986 820 - -
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges {notes 11,12,13} 311 298 (24,215) 85,054
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1) (10 - -
Loss on disposal of intangible asset 78 - - -
Repairs and maintenance expenditure on property, plant and equipment 203 238 - -
Operating lease payments (note 12} 1,095 1,005 - -
Rental iIncome from sublease (note 12} {458) (376) - -
Consultants and subcontracted research 507 514 - -
Externally contracted climical and preclinical development 7,505 13,397 - -
Legal and professional fees including patent costs 2,753 2,226 149 154
Net loss/(gain} on foreign exchange 377 (695} - -
Other expenses 997 2,759 9 9
Total before exceptional items 20,865 27,617 (24,057) 85,217
Exceptional items
Cost of sales (royalties payable) 527 - - -
Externally contracted clinical and preclinical development 3,356 - - -
Legal and professional fees 169 - - -
Qther expenses 36 - - -
Impairment of intangible assets - 4,561 - -
Total for exceptional items 4,088 4,561 o -
Total cost of sales, research and development and administrative expenses 24,953 32,178 {24,057) 85,217
During the year the Group obtained services from the Group's auditors as detailed below
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Services provided by the Group's auditors £000 £000 £000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the
Parent Company and consolidated financial statements 36 34 36 34
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and 1ts associates for other services
The audit of the Company's subsidiartes pursuant to legislation 29 25 - -
Other services pursuant to legislation 18 15 10 9
Tax compliance and adwisory services 33 53 - -
Total 16 127 a6 43
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8 TAXATION

The Group 1s entitled to claim tax credits in the United Kingdom for certain research and development expenditure The amount included in the
staternent of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2009 comprises the credit receivable by the Group for the year less overseas tax
paid in the year The United Kingdom corporation tax research and development credit is paid in arrears once tax returns have been filed and agreed
The tax credit recogrised In the financial statements but not yet received Is included in current tax assets in the balance sheet The amounts for 2009
have not yet been agreed with the relevant tax authanties

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Continuing operations £000 £000 £000 £000
Current tax

United Kingdom corporation tax research and development credit {1,650} (2,119) - -
Overseas taxation 61 59 - -
(1,589) {2,060) - -

Adjustments in respect of prior periods
United Kingdom corporation tax research and development credit - 72 - -
Qverseas taxation 10 (4) - -
Taxation credit (1,579) (1,992) - -

The tax credit for the year 1s higher (2008 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK The differences are explamed below

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£000 £000 £000 £000
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before tax (5,094) (12,033) 24,057 {85,217}
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before tax muttiplied by the standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK of 28% (2008 28 5%) {1,426) {3,430) 6,736 {24,287)
Effects of
Accelerated tax depreciation and other timing differences 117 (319) - -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (permanent differences) 15 1,662 {6,780) 24,240
R&D relief mark-up on expenses {2,044) (1,834) - -
Difference in rate re R&D tax credits 1,650 1,916 - - |
Tax deduction for share options tess than [FRS 2 charge 32 (108) - - '
Overseas tax 6 6 - - !
Tax losses carned forward to future penods a4 47 44 47
Qverseas tax difference in rate 17 - - -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 10 68 - -
Current tax credit for the year {1,579) {1,992) - -

At 31 December 2009, the Group had tax losses to be carned forward of approximately £80 2 mullion (2008 £79 7 million) of which £80 1 mullion has
been agreed with the Revenue authorittes Of the Group tax losses, £80 2 million {2008 £79 7 mullion) arose in the United Kingdom

There is no deferred tax recognised (see note 20)

9 BASICLOSS AND DILUTED LOSS PER ORDINARY SHARE

The basic loss per share has been calculated by dwiding the loss for the year by the weighted average number of shares of 539,872,996 1n 1ssue duning
the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008 537,176,196)

As the Group 15 loss-making, there were no potentially dilutive eptions in either year There Is therefore no difference between the bastc loss per
ordinary share and the diluted loss per ordinary share
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As permitted by section 408 of the Companles Act 2006, the Company's statement of comprehensive income has not been included in these financial
statements The Company’s profit for tha year was £24,057,000 (2008 loss of £85,217,000) The profitiloss includes a £24,215,000 writeback of charges
for impairment of investments In subsidiaries (2008 impalrment charge of £85,054,000)

11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intellectual

In-process R&D property rights Total
Group £000 £000 £000
Cost
AL January 2009 10,400 5,505 15,905
Additions - 78 78
Disposal - (78} (78}
At 31 December 2009 10,400 5,505 15,905
Accumulated amortisation and imparirment
at 1 January and 31 December 2009 3,598 1,188 4,786
Net book amount at 31 December 2009 6,802 4,317 11,119
Cost
At 1 January 2008 10,400 4,780 15,180
Additions - 761 761
Disposal - (36) (38)
At 31 December 2008 10,400 5,505 15,905
Accumulated amortisation and impalrment
At 1 January 2008 - 270 270
Impairment in the year 3,598 954 4,552
Disposal - (36) (36)
At 31 December 2008 3,598 1,188 4,786
Net book amount at 31 December 2008 6,802 4,317 11,119

In-process R&D relates to the product HiI8-MEL acquired as part of the acquisition of Oxxon Therapeutics Limited in 2007 Intellectual property nghts
comprise third party patent nights that have been purchased by the Group No in-house research and development or patent costs are Included in

intangible assets

Impairment charges are included within research and development costs in the statement of comprehensive iIncome

Impairment losses are recogrused for the amount by which each asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s

the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use Value in use is calculated using estimated discounted future cash flows Key

assumptions In the discounted cash flow calculations are

+ The product 1s developed by a collaborative partner who funds all future development costs and markets the product

- The Group receives an initial licence fae, milestone payments and royalttes on sales

+ The cash flow projections include estimates for selling price, royalty rates, population growth, disease incidence and market penetration

+ The resulting cash receipts are discounted at 12% per annum
+ The cash flow projections are a long-term view, based on the expected patent life and a period after expiry of the patents Due to the length of the
development cycle for Innovative medicines, this periad 1s significantly longer than 5 years

The key assumptions are management estimates, based where possible on available information for similar products Due to the novelty and early
stage of development of the Group's products, it 1s not possible to benchmark these assumptions against past experience

The Company had no intangibles at 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
Short equipment,
leasehold fixtures Computer Laboratory

Improvements and fittings aquipment equipment Tatal
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2009 2,783 99 309 2,821 6,012
Exchange adjustments (43) - (2) - (45)
Additicns at cost 140 2 20 92 254
Disposals (16) - (33) (54) (103)
At 31 December 2009 2,864 101 294 2,859 6,118
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2009 2,547 89 177 251 5324
Exchange adjustments (43) - (2} - (45)
Charge for the year 109 3 58 141 3in
Disposals (16) - (33) (54) (103)
At 31 December 2009 2,597 92 200 2,598 5,487
Net book amount at 31 December 2009 267 9 94 261 631
Cost
At 1 January 2008 2,632 a5 295 2,826 5,848
Exchange adjustments 118 1 6 - 125
Additions at cost 33 3 88 59 183
Disposals - - (80) (64) (144)
At 37 December 2008 2,783 99 109 2,821 6,012
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2008 2,344 84 202 2,408 5,038
Exchange adjustments 118 1 4 - 123
Charge for the year 85 4 51 167 307
Disposals - - (80) (64) (144)
At 31 December 2008 2,547 89 177 2,51 5324
Netbook amount at 31 December 2008 236 10 132 310 688

The Company had no property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008

Lease rentals ameunting to £1,072,000 (2008 £988,000) and £23,000 (2008 £17,000) relating to the lease of property and machinery, respectively,and
sublease iIncome of £458,000 (2008 £376,000) are included In the statement of comprehensive Income (note 7)
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2009 2008
Fixed asset investments Company £000 £000
Shares in Group undertakings
At 1 January 17,158 17,158
Additions in the year - -
At 31 December 17,158 17,158
Loans to Group undertakings
At 1 January 110,161 109,723
Loan advanced in the year 259 438
At 31 December 110,420 110,161
Total investments In shares and loans to Group undertakings 127,578 127,319
fmpairment
At 1 January 94,169 9,115
Impairment {write-back)/charge in the year (24,215) 85,054
At 31 December 69,954 94,169
Net book amount at 31 December 57,624 33,150
Capital cantnibution i respect of employee share schemes (see note 26}
At 1 January 2,521 1,685
Addmons In the year 808 836
At 31 December 3,329 2,521
Total nvestments 60,953 35,671

The Group had no Investments at 31 December 2009 (2008 nil)

Interests [n subsidiary undertakings

Proportion of nominal
value of issued shares

Country of Description of held by the Group
Name of undertaking Incorporation shares held and Company Nature of business
Gene therapy research
Oxford BioMedica (UK) Limited Great Britain 1p ordinary shares 100% and development
United States Gene therapy research
BioMedica In¢ of Amernica $0 001 common stock 100% and development
Oxxon Therapeutics Limited Great Bnitain 1p ordinary shares 100% Dormant

All of the above subsidianes have been consolidated in these financial statements

At each year end the Directors review the carrying value of the Company’s investment in subsidiaries, by reference to the Group’s market capitalisation
on the London Stock Exchange Where there 1s a matenal and sustained shortfall, or a significant and sustained change in the business resulting In an
increase in market capitalisation, the Directors consider this to be a tngger of an impairment review as set out in |AS 36,and the carrying value of the
Company’s investments in subsidianes 1s adjusted The Directors consider that reference to the market capitalisation of the Group Is an appropriate

external measure of the value of the Group for this purpose Following an impairment review at 31 December 2009 £24,215,000 impairment

recognised in prior years was written back A cumulative impairment of £69,954,000 was held at 31 December 2009
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13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES continued

Interests in Joint ventures

The Company’s subsidiary Oxford BioMedica (UK) Limited holds 10,000 ordinary shares of 5,000 Won each, representing 50% of the issued share
capital of ViroTech Umited, a company incorporated in South Korea ViraTech Limited's business is gene therapy research and development To date,
no significant level of transactions has been entered into, and the Directors of Oxford BioMedica are In discussions with the joint venture partner to
dispose of Oxford BloMedica’s interest In ViroTech Limited The accounting year-end for ViroTech Limited is 31 December At 31 December 2009 the
share capital and reserves of ViroTech Limited were approximately £74,000 (2008 £75,000) The Directors have written down the Group's investment
in ViroTech Limited to zero Due to the Immaternial size of the joint venture 1t had been included in the Group accounts as a fixed asset Investment

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000

Non-current
Other recetvables - rent deposit 145 160 - -

Current

Trade recevables 88 106 - -
Accrued income 1,925 - - -
Other receivables 208 4,394 - -
Other tax recewvable 150 333 - -
Prepaid clinical tnal expensess 70 790 - -
Other prepayments 1,952 1,522 2 3
4,483 7,145 2 3
Total trade and other receivables 4,628 7.305 2 3

The fair value of trade and other receivables are the current book values

At 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 none of the trade recewvables was aged over three months No receivables were impaired Non-current

receivables are not discounted as the impact of discounting would not be matenal

Accrued income of £1,925,000 in 2009 relates to R&D funding from sanofi-aventis Other recelvables in 2008 includes £3,913,000 research and

development pass-through expenditure to be reimbursed by sanofi-aventis

Prepaid clinical trlal expenses comprise stocks of materials for use in chinical trials and advance payments to climical trial sites

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other recervables are denominated in the following currencies

2009 2008

£000 £000

Sterling 2,367 3,046
Us Dollar 2,261 4,241
Euro - 18
4,628 7,305

The Company’s recevables are all denominated in Sterling

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the fair value of each class of receivable above The Group does not hold any collateral

as security
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 3,802 3,14 1 -
Short term bank deposits 3,000 5,000 - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 6,802 8,141 1 -

in addition to the cash and cash equivalents described above, the Group held Sterling bank deposits of £18,500,000 (2008 £13,750,000) with an initial
term to maturlty betweaen three and twelve months classified as available for sale investments None of these deposits Is past due or impaired

Cash at bank and in hand includes £4,000 (2008 £33,000) held in escrow for expenses of the TRIST Phase Il chinical tnal

The Company held no available for sale investments in 2009 or 2008

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - CURRENT

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade payables 1,965 3,298 - -

Other taxation and social secunity 304 136 - -

Accruals 5,400 7124 73 52

Total trade and other payables 7,669 10,558 73 52
17 DEFERRED INCOME

2009 2008

Group £000 £000

Current 4,741 4,485

Non-current 9,024 3,957

Total deferred income 13,765 8,443

On 28 Apnl 2009 the Group entered into a new collaborative programme with sanofi-avents to develop four gene therapy products to treat ocular
diseases Aninitial non-refundable payment of U5$26 million (£16,641,000) was received This i1s being recognised as revenue on a straight line basis
over 42 to 51 months (the expected duration of the initial stage of the collaboration for each of the four products} Revenue of £3,110,000 has been
recogrised under this collaboration in 2009 The remaining £13,531,000 15 classified as deferred income £4,665,000 15 expected to be recognised as
income In the next 12 months and s classified as current the remaining £8,866,000 15 classified as non-current

Over the term of the ocular gene therapy collaboration, Oxford BioMedica may recover from sanofi-aventis up to US$24 mullion in research and
development funding Project costs in excess of US524 milhon will be borne by Oxford BioMedica £3,114,000 has been recognised as revenue in 2009

and £158,000 has been classified as non-current deferred income

Deferred ncome at 31 December 2008 was mainly attributable to the TroVax collaberation with sanofi-aventis On termination of this collaboration on
28 April 2009 the remaining deferred balance of £5,717,000 was released in the statement of comprehensive iIncome and has been classified as

exceptional revenue (see note 5)

The Company had no deferred income in 2009 or 2008
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18 PROVISIONS

Clinleal Onerous
trial  Dilapidations lease Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2009 - an 308 79
£xchange adjustments - - 27) (27)
Provided in the penod 2,202 - - 2,202
Utilised in the period (1,385} - (88) (1,473)
Amortisation of discount - 5 5 10
Change of discount rate -
charged in the statement of comprehensive Income - - 2 2
Change of discount rate - adjustment to recognised fixed asset - 4 - 4
At 31 December 2009 817 420 200 1,437
At 1 January 2008 - 37 279 650
Exchange adjustments - - 82 82
Utilised in the year - - (75) (75)
Amortisation of discount - 1n 8 19
Change of discount rate -
charged in the statement of comprehensive income - - 14 14
Change of discount rate - adjustment to recognised fixed asset - 29 - 29
At 31 December 2008 - 411 308 719
2009 2008
£000 £000
Current 898 88
Non-current 539 631
Total provisions 1,437 719

The clinical trial proviston was established following the FDA review of TroVax development in June 2009 (see note 5) It represents the anticipated
costs to complete the TRIST study in renal cancer from the date of the FDA review The TRIST study reached full recruitment (733 patients) in March
2008 Following an interim DSMB review, dosing of patrents with TroVax was stopped n July 2008 The close-out of the study was 1n progress at

31 December 2009 with all sites expected to be closed by 31 March 2010 In light of the relatively short time-line, this provision has not been
discounted, as the Directors do not consider the Impact would be matenal

The dilapidattons provision relates to anticipated costs of restoning the leasehold property in Oxford, UK to its original condition at the end of the
present leases in 2016, discounted at 3 40% per annum (2008 1 59%) The provision will be utilised at the end of the leases if they are not renewed

The onerous lease provision relates to the estimated rental shortfall in respect of a redundant property in $an Diego, USA which has been sub-let for
the remainder of the lease term until June 2012, discounted at 1 77% per annum {2008 2 23% per annum} The provision will be utilised over the term
of the lease

The Company had no provisions at 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's and Company’s financial instruments comprnise investments In subsidlaries and joint ventures, cash and cash equivalents, together with
available for sale investments, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables Additional disclosures are set out in the Corporate
Governance Statement relating to risk management

The Group had the following financial instruments at 31 December each year

Assets Liabilities

2009 2008 2009 2008

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents 6,802 8,141 - -
Avallable for sale investments 18,500 13,750 - -
Trade receivables and other receivablas (see note 14) 531 4,660 - -
Trade and other payables excluding tax - - 7,365 10,422
25,833 26,551 7,365 10,422

All the available for sale investments held at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 were denominated in Sterling

The weighted average interest rates and average deposit terms for fixed rate deposits are shown below Floating rate instant access deposits earned
interest at prevailing bank rates

2009 2008

Year end deposits  Year average Year end deposits Year average

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average average average average

rate term rate rate term rate

Sterling 1.45% 195 days 2.54% 4 70% 244 days 575%
Euro 0.45% 31 days 158% 287% 33 days 445%
Us Dollars 0.43% 31 days 3 09% 1 60% 33 days 357%

In accordance with 1AS 38 ‘Financial instruments Recognition and measurement’ the Group has reviewed all contracts for embedded denvatives that
are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet certain requirements set out in the standard There were no such derivatives identified

at 31 December 2009 or 31 Becember 2008
Falr value
The Directors consider that the fair values of the Group's financial instruments do not differ significantly from their book values

20 DEFERREDTAXATION

Neither the Company nor the Group had any recognised deferred tax assets or liabilities at 31 December 2009 (2008 nil} In hght of the Group's
continuing losses, recovery of the deferred tax asset 1s not sufficiently certain, and therefore no asset has been recognised

Accelerated tax

Group depreciation Provisions Taxlosses Share options Total

Deferred tax habilities/(assets) - not recogmised £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 January 2009 3,047 (332) (22,305) 47} (19,637}
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (998) {4} (400} {193) {1,595)
At 31 December 2009 2,049 (336) {22,705) (240) (21,232)
At 1 January 2008 2,915 (222) (21,530 (143) (18,980)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 132 (110} (775) 96 (657)
At31 December 2008 3.047 {332) (22,305) (47) {19,637}
Oxford BloMedica pic
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21 CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company 2009 2008
Authorised £000 £000
1,000,000,000 {2008 650,000,000} ordinary shares of 1p each 10,000 6,500
2009 2008
Issued and fully pald £000 £000
Ordinary shares of 1p each
At 1 January — 537,289,761 (2008 534,655,843) shares 5373 5,347
Subscription by collaborative partner - 2,209,042 shares 22 -
Allotted on exercise of share options — 187,025 (2008 264,100) shares 2 2
One off share-settled bonus payment - 1,500,000 shares 15 -
Allotted for cash in 2008 to licensors of patent rights — 2,369,818 shares - 24
At 31 December - 541,185,828 (2008 537,289,761} shares 5,412 5373

On 4 February 2009 the Company issued 2,209,042 ordinary shares of 1p each in a follow-on subscniption of US$250,000 (£172,000) under a

collaboration agreement with The Foundation Fighting Blindness through its translational research arm The National Neurovision Research Institute
{NNRI} The subscription, supporting the development of StarGen, oniginated from Paul Manning, a director of the NNR! Costs of £10,000 1n respect of

this share 1ssue have been charged to the share premium account

Between 28 May 2009 and 16 Octcber 2009 the Company 1ssued 187,025 ordinary shares of 1p each on the exercise of share options under share
option schemes for aggregate cash consideration of £15,000 There were no costs in respect of these share Issues

On 1 September 2009 the Company allotted 1,500,000 new Ordinary Shares of 1p each to John Dawson, Chief Executive Officer The shares are fully
pald, and were a one-off share-based bonus payment for successful achievement of key abjectives The value of the shares at the closing mid-market
price on 28 August 2009 (the trading day immediately prior to 1ssue), was £173,000 Costs of £5,000 in respect of this share 1ssue have been charged to

the share premium account

During 2009 the Company recovered £51,000 of previously disallowed VAT on share issue costs (a ‘Fleming’ claim)

Subsequent to the year end, on 21 January 2010, the Company 1ssued a further 1,699,876 new ordinary shares in a cash subscription linked to the
acquisition of patent nghts relating to the RetinoStat programme Between 18 February 2010 and 3 March 2010 173,330 shares were issued on the
exercise of share options by employees

22 OPTIONS OVER SHARES OF OXFORD BIOMEDICA PLC

The Company has issued share options under the following schemes

« the Oxford BioMedica 1996 (No 1) Share Option Scheme (closed October 2006)
= the Oxford BioMedica 1996 Share Option Plan (closed October 2006)

+ the Oxford BioMedica 2007 Share Option Scheme (approved February 2007)

+ the long term incentive plan (LTIP) for Executive Diractors and senior executives (approved February 2007)

Options have also been granted to a small number of iIndwiduals {(mainty employees of the Company’s US subsidiary BioMedica Inc) under individual

opltion agreements

The total number of options over ordinary shares of 1p each that had been granted and had not been exercised or lapsed at 31 December 2009 was

as follows

Options granted to employees (including Directors) under the Oxford BioMedica 1996 (No. 1) Share Option Scheme

2009 2008 Exercise price Date from which

Number of shares Number of shares per share exercisable Explry date

- 1,033,405 875pto33op 14/01/05 to 16/05/05 14/01/09 to 16/09/09

748,895 881,017 70pto1925p 07/03/06 to 27/10/06 07/03/i0to 27/10/10

2,108,713 2,284,145 165pto 23 0p 26/03/07 to 29/11/07 26/03/11 10 29/11/11

2,163,887 3,420,419 20 25pto 43 25p 01/04/08 to 15/12/08 01/04/12to 15/12/12

1,387,151 1,898,190 2825pto310p 21/03/09 to 06/09/09 21/03/13 to 06/09/13
6,408,646 9,517,176
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Options granted to employees under the Oxford BioMedica 2007 Share Option Scheme
2009 2008 Exercise price Date from which
Numbser of shares Number of shares pershare exercisable Explry date
1,301,091 1,690,230 220pto 49 25p 08/03/10to 14/12/10 08/03/17 10 1412/17
1,864,421 2477453 575pto225p 13/03/11 to 13/10/11 13/03/18 to 13/10/18
2,726,789 - 610pto1125p 25/03/12to0 08/10/12 25/03/19 to 08/10/19
5,892,301 4,167,683
Options granted under the Oxford BloMedica Long Term Incentive Plan
2009 2008 Exercise price Date from which
Number of shares Number of shares per share exercisable Expiry date
2,754,003 2,754,003 1p 03/04/10 04/04/17
4,140,670 4,140,670 1p 13/03/M 13/0318
2,875,000 2,875,000 1p 13710/ 13/10/18
7,296,000 - p 25/03/12 25/03/19
17,065,673 9,769,673
Options granted under the Oxford BioMedica 1996 Share Option Plan
2009 2008 Exercise price Date from which
Number of shares Number of shares per share exercisable Expiry date
- 211,100 31 0p 02/01/05 02/01/09
Options granted under individual contracts
2009 2008 Exercise price Date from which
Number of shares Number of shares per share exercisable Expiry date
3,865,194 4,023,519 430pta510p 25/05/02 to 25/06/02 25/05/11 to 25/06/11
- 87,500 2925p 06/06/07 06/06/16
3,865,194 4,111,019
33,221,814 27,776,651

Options granted to UK employees after 5 April 1999 could give rise to a National Insurance (NI} hability on exercise All relevant options granted prior
to 7 March 2003 have either been exeraised or have lapsed, so there 1s no Nl hability in respect of these options For options granted between 7 March
2003 and 6 September 2006, the Company obtained undertakings from the holders of the relevant options to pay any secondary Nl on exercise, so
there is no Nl liability in respect of these options In respect of options (including LTIP awards) granted on or after 8 March 2007 there are no such
employee undertakings, so an Nl liability could anse on the exercise of the options A provision of £108,000 (2008 £22,000) 1s included in accruals for
the potential N hability accrued to 31 December on relevant options that were above water, based on the year-end share price of 11 25p (2008 6 63p)

per share

23 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

All eligible employees of the Group are awarded share options Options granted to UK employees have been awarded under the Oxford BioMedica
1996 (No 1) Share Option Scheme ("the 1996 Scheme”) or its successor the Oxford BioMedica 2007 Share Option Scheme ("the 2007 Scheme™ It is the
Caompany’s policy under these schemes te make six grants of options to UK employees, at approximately si-month intervals duning their first three
years of employment At the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, additional options have also been granted to employees under the share
schemes in force from time to time Since the introductton of the long term incentive plan (*the LTIP") in 2007, Directors and certain senior managers
are not eligible to participate in the 2007 Scheme

Options granted under the 1996 5cheme have a fixed exercise price based on the market price at the date of grant The contractual life of the options
15 seven years Optlons cannot normally be exercised before the third anniversary of the date of grant For options granted to Directors and to certain
other employees since 2001, the options are exercisable only if at the time of exercise, or for at least 12 months In aggregate dunng the three years
before exercise, the percentage increase in Oxford BioMedica plc's total shareholder return since the grant of the option exceeds the percentage
increase In the FTSE techMARK mediscience index
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23 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS continued

Options granted under the 2007 Scheme also have a fixed exercise price based on the market price at the time of grant The contractual Iife of these
options 1s ten years Options cannot normally be exercised before the third anniversary of the date of grant

Options granted to employees at the Group's US subsidiary are generally awarded as a single grant at the time of joining the subsidiary, and have a
contractual life of ten years Twenty five percent of the total shares under option become exercisable twelve months after the date of grant, with the
remalnder becoming exercisable thereafter at the rate of 2 0834 percent per month

LTIP awards made to date are nil-cost options, exercisable at par on the third anniversary of the date of grant Release of the LTIP award will depend on
the satisfaction of a performance condition based on comparative Total Sharehclder Return against a comparator group of companies

Options, other than LTIP awards, have been valued using a Black-Schales option pricing model The LTIP awards, which contain complex market-based
conditions, were valued using a Monte Carlo model For each relevant option grant,indvidual valuation assumptions were assessed based upon
conditions at the date of grant The range of assumptions in the calcutation of share based payment in 2009 15 as follows

Share options

Share options

Share options

Share options

granted granted granted granted

21/03/06 08/03/07 13/03/08 25/03/09

Share options to 06/09/06 to 14/12/07 to 13/10/08 to 08/10/09
Share price at grant date 27 5p 10 30.25p 220pto4925p 68pto2375p 608pto1175p
Exercise price 2825pto310p 220pto4925p 575pto225p 610pto 1125p
Vesting period 1to 2 years number of options 21,875 - - -
Vesting period 2 to 3 years number of options 2,401,023 2,010,309 2477453 2,726,789
Total number of shares under option 2,422,898 2,010,309 2,477,453 2,726,789
Expected volatility (weighted average) 63 2% 63 2% 712% 752%
Expected life {years, welghted average) 583 570 570% 577
Risk free rate (weighted average) 453% 498% 4133% 271%
Expected rate of forfeit before vesting (weighted average) 36 0% 34 6% 28 1% 175%
Expectation of meeting performance criteria 100% N/a N/a N/a
Fair value per option 16 7pto22 2p 133pto307p 48pto148p 39pta?9p
LTIP award LTIP award LTIP award LTIP award

LTIP awards 03/04/07 13/03/08 13/10/08 25/03/09
Share price at grant date 48 5p 23 75p 6 80p 608p
Exercise price 10p 10p 10p 10p
Vesting period (years) 300 300 300 300
Total number of shares under option 4,079,495 5,723,852 2,875,000 7,296,000
Expected volatility 57 0% 60 4% 83 6% 60 0%
Expected life {years) 300 300 300 300
Risk free rate 542% 399% 391% 221%
Expected rate of forfeit before vesting 325% 27 7% 00% 00%
Expectation of meeting performance critena 66% 74% 85% 74%
Fatr value per option 129p 16 8p S1p i9p

Except for the 25 March 2009 LTIP award, expected volatility is based on historical volatility for a penod the same length as the expected option life
ending on the date of grant For the 25 March 2009 LFIP award a volatility cone analysis was used, as this approach provides better estimate of the
mean reverting annual rate of volatihty The risk-free rate of return is the yield on zero-coupon UK government bonds of a term consistent with the

expected option life
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Excluding the LTIP awards, which are exeraisable at par subject to satisfaction of the performance condition, the weighted average share price for
options granted during the year was 9 7p (2008 12 4p) The weighted average share price for options exercised dunng the year was 8 2p (2008

19 8p) The total charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was £808,000 (2008 £836,000), all of which related to equity-
settled share based payment transactions A reconciliation of movements in all options over the year to 31 December 2009 and an analysls of options
outstanding at the year end are shown below

2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exerclse
Share options excluding LTIP Number price Number price
Qutstanding at 1 January 18,006,978 30 2p 17,232,259 336p
Granted 2,726,789 8.7p 2,477,453 124p
Expired {2,087,071) 24.7p (994,595) 461p
Forfeited (1,393,530) 26.4p (444,039) 363p
Exercised {187,025) 8.2p (264,100} 198p
QOutstanding at 31 December 16,166,141 28.3p 18,006,978 302p
Exercisable at 31 December 6,408,645 34.4p 11,910,118 322p
Exeraisable and where market price exceeds exercise price at 31 December 173,330 70p - N/a
2009 2008
LTIP awards (options exercisable at par value 1p) Number Number
Qutstanding at 1 January 9,769,673 4,079,495
Granted 7,296,000 8,598,852
Forfeited - (2,908,674)
Outstanding at 31 December 17,065,673 9,769,673
Exercisable at 31 December - -
2009 2008
Weighted Weighted average Weighted Wetghted average
average remaining life (years) average remaining life {years)

exercise Number exercise Number
Range of exercise prices price of shares Expected Contractual price of shares Expected Contractual
LTIP Exercisable at par 10p 17,065,673 159 1.59 10p 9,769,673 210 210

Options

Under 10p 6 Op 1,540,482 419 6.85 73p 2,079,265 251 459
10p to 20p 12.4p 3,423,993 4,20 7.74 144p 1,592,940 336 608
20pto 30p 24.1p 5,057,789 1.31% 3.04 24 6p 6,643,473 239 417
30p to 40p 33.5p 1,113,432 2.82 5.23 332p 2,082,484 313 51
40p to 50p 45 3p 1,668,411 2.19 4.41 451p 2,246,782 314 532
50p to 60p 51.0p 3,362,034 1.39 1.39 510p 3,362,034 239 239

Total including LTIP 33,231,814 27,776,651

7t Oxford BloMedica pic
Annual Report & Accounts 2009




! Financial Statements
.|

| Notes to the Consolldated
Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2009

24 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

2009 2008

Group and Company £000 £000
At 1 January 109,686 109,101
Premium on shares 1ssued in subscription related to a StarGen development collaboration 150 -
Premium on shares 1ssued during the year under share option schemes 13 50
Premuum on shares issued in a share-settled bonus 158 -
Premuum on sharas issued in connection with an intellectual property purchase - 545
Net credit/(charge) for costs assoclated with issue of shares 36 {(10)
At 31 December 110,043 109,686

25 RETAINED LOSSES

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January (105,406) (96,201) (85,557 {10,340)
{Loss)/profit for the year {3,515) (10,041) 24,057 (85,217)
Share based payments (note 23) 808 836 - -
At 31 December {108,113) {105,406) (71,500) (95,557)

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary undertakings had reserves available for distribution at 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008
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26 OTHERRESERVES

Translation Merger
reserve reserve Total
Group £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2009 (692) 14,310 13,618
Exchange adjustments 16 - 16
At 31 December 2009 (676) 14,310 13,634
At 1 January 2008 (625) 14,310 13,685
Exchange adjustments (67) - (67}
At 31 December 2008 (692) 14,310 13,618

The Group merger reserve at 31 December 2009 and 2008 comprised £711,000 arlsing from consolidation of Oxford BioMedica (UK} Limited using the
merger method of accounting 1n 1996 and £13,599,000 from the apphcation of merger relief to the purchase of Oxxon Therapeutics Limited in 2007

Merger Share scheme

reserve reserve
Company £000 £000
At 1 January 2009 13,599 2,51
Creditin relation to employee share schemes - 808
At 31 December 2009 13,599 3,329
At 1 January 2008 13,599 1,685
Creditin refation to employee share schemes - 836
At 31 December 2008 13,599 2,521

Options over the Company's shares have been awarded to employees of subsidiary compantes In accordance with IFRS 2'Share-based Payment'the
expense In respect of these awards is recognised in the subsidiaries' financial statements (see note 23) In accordance with IFRIC 11, the Company has
treated the awards as a capital contribution to the subsidiaries, resulting 1n an Increase in the cost of Investment of £808,000 (2008 £836,000) (see

note 13) and a correspending credit to reserves

27 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Group Company
Reconciliation of loss before tax to net cash 2009 2008 2009 2008
generated by/(used in) operations £000 £000 £000 £000
Continuing operations
(Loss)/profit before tax {5,094) (12,033) 24,057 (85,217
Adjustment for
Depreciatton in 307 - -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1) {10) - -
Loss on disposal of intangible asset 78 - - -
Charge/{write-back) for impairment - 4,552 (24,215) 85,054
Finance income {669) {1,662} - -
Finance expense 33 24 - -
Charge in relation to employee share schemes 808 836 - -
Changes in working capltal
Decrease/{increase)} in trade and other receivables 2,322 3,074 1 m
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables {2,937) 983 21 (9)
Increase/(decrease) In deferred Income 5,322 {10,470) - -
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 731 (63) - -
Net cash generated/(used in) by operations 904 {20,610) (136} (173
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28 PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its Directors and employees The assets of the scheme are held in independently
adrmimstered funds The pension cost charge of £295,000 (2008 £302,000) represents amounts payable by the Group te the scheme Contributions of
£29,000 (2008 £37,000), Included in accruals, were payable to the scheme at the year end

29 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

The future aggregate mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2009 2008

Plant and Plant and

Property equipment Property equipment

Group £000 £000 £000 £000
Not later than one year 1,165 12 1,214 13
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,868 19 2,233 31
Later than five years 781 - - -
Total lease commitments 4,814 31 3,447 44
Total future minimum sublease payments receivable 1,183 - 1,797 -

The Group leases equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The Group also leases its laborataries and offices under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have various terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights The figures for property leases include a
redundant building in San Diego, USA which has been sub-fet A provision of £200,000 (2008 £308,000) has been made for the expected rental
shortfall under this lease (see note 18)

The Company had no operating lease commitments dunng the year (2008 none)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The receipt in 2009 of the initial fee of US$26 million (£16,641,000) from sanofi-aventis under the ocular collaboration triggered royalty liabilitiesto a
number of third party patent licensors, which are accounted for as cost of sales in the financial statements Each of the four ocular products i1s covered
by more than one third party patent hcence The patent licence agreements are complex, and they incorporate ‘royalty-stacking’ clauses which mit
the Group’s overall cost where there are royalty obligations to more than one licensor One licensor, whose patent is relevant to two of the four ocular
products, was paid a royalty of US$368,000 (£220,000) in 2009 The licensor has challenged Oxford BioMedica’s interpretation of the royalty stacking
clause in their licence, and has sought to increase the royalty payable to them to U5$3,315,000 The potential increase in the amount payable if the
licensor's view was to prevail would be US52,547,000 (£1,823,000) Oxford BioMedica has taken advice from a number of sources, including counsel
who oniginally representad the licansor in negotiating the patent hicence agreement in 2003 Following its review, Oxford BioMedica 1s confident that
the correct amount of royalty has been paid, and that there 1s no further liability tin connection with this matter There were no other contingent
liabilities at 31 December 2009 or at 31 December 2008

The Group had commitments of £77,000 for capital expenditure for leasehold improvements, plant and equiprmaent not prowided in the financial
statements at 31 December 2009 (2008 £49,000)
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Identity of related parties
The Group consists of a parent, Oxford BioMedica plc, two wholly-owned trading subsidianies and one subsidiary (Oxcton Therapeutics Limited) which
was acquired and became dormant in 2007 when its assets and trade were transferred to the principal trading company Oxford BioMedica (UK}

Limited The second trading subsidiary BioMedica Inc provides services in the USA to Oxford BioMedica (UK) Limited under a transfer pricing

agreement

The Parent Company 15 responsible for financing and setting Group strategy Oxford BioMedica (UK) Limited carnes out the Group strategy, employs all
the UK staff including the Directors, and owns and manages all of the Group’s intellectual property The proceeds of the [ssue of shares by the parent
are passed from Oxford BroMedica ple to Oxford BioMedica (UK) Limited as a loan, and Oxford BioMedica (UK} Limited manages Group funds and

makes payments, including the expeanses of the Parent Company

2009 2008
Company transactions with subsidiaries £000 £000
Purchases
Parent Company expenses pald by subsidiary (100) (183)
Transactions involving Parent Company shares:
Proceeds of Parent Company share 1ssues received by subsidiary 345 569
Proceeds of subsidiary employee share sales received by parent {3) (2}
Cash management
Cash loaned by parent to subsidiary 17 54

The loan from Oxford BioMedica plc to Oxford BioMedica (UK} Limited 15 unsecured and interest free The loan 1s not due for repayment within 12
months of the year end The year end balance on the loan was

2009 2008
Company year end balance ofloan £000 £000
Loan to subsidiary 110,420 110,161

in addition to the transactions above, aptions over the Company’s shares have been awarded to employees of subsidiary companies In accordance

with [FRIC 11, the Company has treated the awards as a capital contribution to the subsidiaries, resulting In a cumulative increase in the cost of
Investment of £3,329,000 (2008 £2,521,000)

There were no transactions {2008 none) with Oxxon Therapeutics Limited or with the dormant joint venture ViroTech Limited

Transactions with Directors and connected persons
On 1 July 2009, when Professor Alan Kingsman's position as Chairman became non-executive, he entered into 3 consultancy agreement with the
Group Fees of £37,500 were paid under this agreement in 2009

On 1 July 2008, when Professor Susan Kingsman retired from the Board, she entered into a consultancy agreement with the Group Fees of £50,000

(2008 £25,000) were paid under this agreement

A close family member of Andrew Wood was employed by the Group up te 31 Decemnber 2009 and was paid at market rate Total compensation cost,

comprising salary, bonus, national insurance and penston was £73,000 (2008 £66,000) In addition a termination payment of £30,000 was paid
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Technology and Product Glossary

LENTIVECTOR®

Our LentiVector technology Is an advanced
lentiviral-based gene delivery system, which Is
designed to overcome the safety and delivery
problems associated with earlier generations
of viral vectars It can stably deliver genes Into
cells with up to 100% efficiency and can
integrate genes into non-dividing cells,
including neurons In the braln and retinal cells
in the eye In such cell types, studies suggest
that gene expression could be maintained
indefinitely It also has a larger capacity than
most other vector systems and can
accommodate multiple therapeutic genes

ProSavin® Parkinson’s disease

ProSavin Is a gene-basad treatmant for
Parkinson’s disease, a progressive movement
disorder caused by the degeneration of
dopamine producing nerve cells In the brain
ProSavin uses our LentiVector system to deliver
the genes for three enzymes that are required
for the synthesis of dopamine The product is
administered locally to the region of the brain
called the stnatum, converting cells into
dopamine factories, thus replacing the patient's
own lost source of the neurotransmitter

RetinoStat®; wet age-related macular
degeneration

RetinoStat 15 a gene-based treatment for
neovascular *wet” age-related macular
degeneration {(AMD) and diabetic retinopathy
{DR) RetinoStat aims to preserve and improve
the vision of patients through anti-
anglogenesis, blocking the formation of new
blood vessels The product uses our LentiVector
system to deliver two anlti-angiogenic genes,
endostatin and anglostatin, directly to the
retina

StarGen™: Stargardt disease

StarGen 15 a gene-based therapy for the
treatment of Stargardt disease The disease 1s
caused by a mutation of the ABCR gene which
leads to the degeneration of photareceptors in
the ratina and wvision loss StarGen uses our
LentiVector system to deliver a corrected
version of the ABCR gene A single
administration of the product directly to the
retina could provide long-term or potentially
permanent correction
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UshStat™: Usher syndrome 1B

Usher syndrome is a leading cause of deaf-
blindness One of the most common subtypes 1s
Usher syndrome 1B, which 1s associated with a
mutation of the gene encoding Myosin VIIA
(MYO7A) This leads to progressive retinitis
ptgmentosa combined with a congenital
hearing defect UshStat uses our LentiVector
technology to deliver a corrected version of the
MYO7A gene to retinal cells and a single
administration could provide long-term or
potentially permanent stabilisation of ocular
function

EncorStat?. corneal graft rejection

Corneal grafting anises from a need to remove
and replace pathology ansing in the cornea
causing ‘clouding’ Although one of the most
successfully transplanted tissues, a significant
number of grafts are rejected due to
vascularisation EncorStat uses our LentiVector
system to deliver endostatin and angiostatin
ex vivo to corneas prior to grafting In order to
block vascularisation and to prevent graft
rejection

MoNuDin® motor neuron disease

MoNuDin s a gene-based treatment for motor
neuron disease This progressive, usually fatal,
neurodegenerative disease 1s caused by the
degeneration of motor neurons, the nerve cells
in the central nervous system that control
voluntary muscle movement MoNuDin uses our
LentiVector system to deliver a neuroprotective
gene, vascular endothelial growth factor (VEGF),
to prevent further degeneration of the motor
neurons and potentially restore moter function

5T4 TUMOUR ANTIGEN
-}
The 5T4 protein Is strongly expressed on
many types of cancer and studies suggest that
its presence correlates with metastatic spread
and poor dinical outcome It was identlfied
through research into the stmilarities between
the development of the placenta during
pregnancy and the progression of cancer 5T4
is produced by both cancerous cells and also
by placental and foetal cells, suggesting that
the process of Immunaological escape in
pregnancy and cancer Is based on similar
mechanisms

TroVax®: cancer

TroVax 15 a therapeutic vaccine that stimulates
the immune system to destroy cancerous cells
expressing the 5T4 tumour antigen The product
15 based on an attenuated vaccinia virus called
Modified Vaccinla Ankara (MVA), which has been
engineered to deliver the 5T4 antigen Vacania
viruses are commonly used as delivery systems
for the development of antigen-specific
vaccnes MVA is the vaccinia strain of cholce
because of its excellent safety profile

Targeted Antibody Therapy: cancer

The 5T4-targeted antibody therapyis a
humanised monodonal antibedy linked to the
potent anti-cancer agent, calicheamicin The
product binds to the 5T4 antigen on the surface
of cancerous cells Once bound, the complex s
internalised by the tumour cell, the
calicheamicin is released from the antibody, and
the free drug kills the cancerous celi
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ANTI-ANGIOGENESIS
I
The creation of new blood vessels, known as
anglogenesis, Is a critical element in tumour
formation and growth Endostatin and
angiostatin were discovered by one of the
best known researchers in the field of
angiogenesis, Dr Judah Folkman of Children's
Hospital and the Harvard Medical School in
Boston The proteins have shown potent anti-
cancer activity in preclinical models and a
potentially additive effect when used in
combination

EndoAngio-GT. cancer

EndoAngio-GT 1s a gene therapy for the
treatment of solid tumours The product uses a
viral vector to deliver the genes for endostatin
and angiostatin, which inhiblt tumour growth
by blocking the formation of new blood vessels

HI-8® PRIMEBOOST
P
Heterologous prime-boost immunotherapy
involves priming the immune system to a
target antigen using one delivery system and
then boosting the response by administration
of the antigen in a different vector This strategy
can stimulate greater levels of immunity,
particulatly cellular immune responses

Oxford BioMedica’s Hi-8 PrimeBoost vector
combination can stimulate potentially potent
and specific cellular immune respanses
agalinst diseased cells, even those expressing
very low levels of the antigen

Hi-8® MEL melanoma

Hi-8 MEL 1s a therapeutic vaccine for metastatic
melanoma The product employs two different
vector systems, comprising plasmid DNA and
MVA respectively, to induce a melanoma-
speaific cellular immune response Both vectors
contain the Mel3 polyepitope string, which
encodes seven defined peptides from five
different melanoma-specific antigens
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GDEPT
-]
Gene-directed enzyme prodrug therapy
(GDEPT) is the use of genetic delivery to
administer an enzyme into diseased cells that
activates a non-toxic prodrug into a toxic
agent Cyclophosphamide (CPA) Is an anti-
cancer prodrug that is activated in the liver by
a naturally occurring P450 enzyme and then
disperses via the airculation to the tumour
target

MetXia®: pancreatic cancer

MetXia is a GDEPT strategy to deliver a P450
enzymae to cancerous cells, thus enabling CPA 1o
be activated within the tumour MetXa uses a
highly-engineered retroviral delivery system to
achieve efficient expression of the P450 enzyme
within the cancerous cells It can be
administered locally to non-resectable
pancreatic cancer prior to treatment with CPA
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Advisors

Advisors

Financial Advisor

NM Rothschild & Sans Limited
1 King William Street

London EC4N 7AR

Financial Advisor

and Broker

JP Morgan Cazencve Limited
20 Moorgate

London EC2R 6DA

Registered Auditors
PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
9 Greyfriars Road

Reading RG1 1JG

Solicitors

Morrison & Foerster MNP
7th Floor CityPoint

One Ropemaker Street
London EC2Y 9AW

Registrars

Capita Registrars
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Company Secretary and
Registered Office
Andrew Wood

Medawar Centre

Robert Robinson Avenue
The Oxford Science Park
Oxford OX4 4GA
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